UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2017

Commission file number: 1-3285

3M COMPANY

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

DELAWARE 41-0417775
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
3M Center, St. Paul, Minnesota 55144
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Cdde

(651) 733-1110
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area fode

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans vejuired to file such reports),
and (2) has been subject to such filing requiremétthe past 90 days. YBS No[O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lasstted electronically and posted on its corpokatb site, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted pasted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§&B2 of this chapter) during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter periottti@registrant was required to submit and post $iles). Yedxl No[O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlege accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer, smaller
reporting company, or an emerging growth compadge the definitions of “large accelerated filegttelerated filer,” “smaller
reporting company,” and “emerging growth companyRiule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated fildx] Accelerated filed
Non-accelerated filed Smaller reporting compariy
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Emerging growth compariy

If an emerging growth company, indicate by checklniiethe registrant has elected not to use theraktd transition period for
complying with any new or revised financial accongtstandards provided pursuant to Section 13(8)eExchange Actd

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantstell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge Act). Yedd No

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of e&tiedssuer’s classes of common stock, as ofédtest practicable date.

Class Outstanding at March 31, 2017
Common Stock, $0.01 par value per share 597,28%bdres

This document (excluding exhibits) contains 76 page
The table of contents is set forth on page 2.
The exhibit index begins on page 72.




PART I

ITEM 1.

ITEM 2.

ITEM 3.
ITEM 4.
PARTII
ITEM 1.
ITEM 1A,
ITEM 2.
ITEM 3.
ITEM 4.
ITEM 5.
ITEM 6.

3M COMPANY
Form 10-Q for the Quarterly Period Ended March31, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS BEGINNING
PAGE

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Financial Statemer

Index to Financial Statements
ConsolidatecStatement of Incon
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Inc
Consolidated Balance Sh
Consolidated Statement of Cash FI
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem
Note 1 Significant Accounting Polici¢
Note 2 Acquisitions and Divestitur
Note 3 Goodwill and Intangible Asse
Note4. Supplemental Equity and Comprehensive Income Irddion
Note5. Income Taxe
Note 6. Marketable Securiti¢
Note 7. Pension and PostretiremeBenefit Plan
Note 8. Derivative:
Note9. Fair Value Measuremet
Note 10. Commitments and Contingenc
Note 11. Stoclk-Based Compensati
Note 12. Business Segmet
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiing

Management’s Discussion and An:s of Financial Condition and Results of Operat
Index to Management’s Discussion and Analysi

Overview

Results of Operatiol

Performance by Business Segn

Financial Condition and Liquidi

Cautionary Note Concerning Factors That | Affect Future Resul
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MarRis|
Controls and Procedul

OTHER INFORMATION

Legal Proceeding

Risk Factor

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Udero€eed
Defaults Upon Senior Securit

Mine Safety Disclosurt

Other Informatio

Exhibits

o0k, w

14
15

19
21
22
28
31
41

44
47

48
53
55
61
67
68

68

69
69
71
72
72
72
72



3M COMPANY
FORM 10-Q
For the Quarterly Period Ended March 31, 2017
PART I. Financial Information

Iltem 1. Financial Statements.

3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Income

(Unaudited)
Three months ended
March 31,

(Millions, except per share amounts) 2017 2016
Net sale $ 7,685 $ 7,409
Operating expenses

Cost of sales 3,869 3,678

Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,571 1,493

Research, development and related expenses 471 450

Total operating expenses 5,911 5,621

Operating income 1,774 1,788
Interest expense and income

Interest expense 45 47

Interest income (8) (5)

Total interest expense — net 37 42

Income before income taxes 1,737 1,746
Provision for income taxes 411 468
Net income including noncontrolling intere $ 1,326 $ 1,278
Less: Net income attributable to noncontrollingenesst 3 3
Net income attributable to 3| $ 1,323 $ 1,275
Weighted average 3M common shares outstanding € bas 598.1 607.4
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slddelhs — basic $ 221 $ 2.10
Weighted average 3M common shares outstanding dtedil 612.0 621.3
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slddehs — diluted $ 2.16 $ 2.05
Cash dividends paid per 3M common share $ 1175 $ 1.11

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancatkeBtents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited)

Three months ended

March 31,

(Millions) 2017 2016
Net income including noncontrolling inter $ 1,326 $ 1,278
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Cumulative translation adjustment 292 138

Defined benefit pension and postretirement plafpssatient 83 69

Cash flow hedging instruments, unrealized gainsjlos (76) (110
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 299 97
Comprehensive income (loss) including noncontrgliimerest 1,625 1,375
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to norradiimg interest (6) (2)
Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to 3M $ 1,619 $ 1,373

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancetkBtents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Unaudited)
March 31, December 31,
(Dollars in millions, except per share amount) 2017 2016
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,173 $ 2,398
Marketable securities — current 141 280
Accounts receivable — net 4,722 4,392
Inventories
Finished goods 1,764 1,629
Work in process 1,078 1,039
Raw materials and supplies 770 717
Total inventories 3,612 3,385
Other current assets 1,253 1,271
Total current assets 11,901 11,726
Marketable securities — non-current 17 17
Investments 133 128
Property, plant and equipment 23,946 23,499
Less: Accumulated depreciation (15,395) (14,983)
Property, plant and equipment — net 8,551 8,516
Goodwill 9,258 9,166
Intangible assets — net 2,269 2,320
Prepaid pension benefits 61 52
Other assets 1,102 981
Total assets 33,292 % 32,906
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings and current portion of lorgat debt 9209 $ 972
Accounts payable 1,701 1,798
Accrued payroll 532 678
Accrued income taxes 433 299
Other current liabilities 2,420 2,472
Total current liabilities 5,995 6,219
Long-term debt 10,802 10,678
Pension and postretirement benefits 3,764 4,018
Other liabilities 1,691 1,648
Total liabilities 22252 $ 22,563
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)
Equity
3M Company shareholders’ equity:
Common stock par value, $.01 par value, 944,033sb5ées issued 9 $ 9
Additional paid-in capital 5,189 5,061
Retained earnings 38,094 37,907
Treasury stock, at cost: 346,793,480 shares atiV2ikc2017; 347,306,778 shares at
December 31, 2016 (25,354) (25,434)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (6,949 (7,245
Total 3M Company shareholders’ equity 10,989 10,298
Noncontrolling intere: 51 45
Total equity 11,040 $ 10,343
Total liabilities and equity 33,292 $ 32,906

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinanciatkeBtents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)
Three months ended
March 31,
(Millions) 2017 2016
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net income including noncontrolling intere 1326 $ 1,278
Adjustments to reconcile net income including narioalling interest to net
cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 438 356
Company pension and postretirement contributions (248 (56)
Company pension and postretirement expense 81 59
Stock-based compensation expense 147 144
Deferred income taxes (84) (38)
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (237) (245)
Inventories (149 (37)
Accounts payable (124) (116)
Accrued income taxes (current and long-term) 225 334
Other — net (387) (419)
Net cash provided by operating activit 988 1,260
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) (287) (314)
Proceeds from sale of PP&E and other assets 1 18
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired — (4)
Purchases of marketable securities and investments (213 (225
Proceeds from maturities and sale of marketablerigEs and investments 351 164
Proceeds from sale of businesses 53 56
Other investing 5 25
Net cash used in investing activiti (90) (280
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Change in short-term debt — net (68) 138
Repayment of debt (maturities greater than 90 days) — —
Proceeds from debt (maturities greater than 90)days — —
Purchases of treasury stock (690 (1,227
Proceeds from issuance of treasury stock pursoasibtk option and benefit
plans 315 357
Dividends paid to shareholders (702 (672
Other — net (6) (22)
Net cash used in financing activiti (1,151 (1,426
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbaénts 28 (15)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (225 (461
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,398 1,798
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 2,173 % 1,337

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetke&tents are an integral part of this statement.



3M Company and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

NOTE 1. Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The interim consolidated financial statements au@udited but, in the opinion of management, refidichdjustments
necessary for a fair statement of the Company’salfated financial position, results of operatiansl cash flows for
the periods presented. These adjustments congistrofal, recurring items. The results of operatifamsany interim
period are not necessarily indicative of resultstiie full year. The interim consolidated finangtdtements and notes
are presented as permitted by the requiremen®@darterly Reports on Form 10-Q.

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q should be reacbnjunction with the Company’s consolidated ficiah
statements and notes included in its 2016 AnnupbRen Form 10-K. As described in Note 12, effeziin the first
quarter of 2017, the Company changed its busireggmeant reporting in its continuing effort to impeothe alignment
of businesses around markets and customers. Thasges included the integration of the former Reaid@vEnergy
Division into existing divisions, the combining ofo divisions to form the Automotive and Aerosp&mutions
Division, and consolidation of U.S. customer acdagtivity, impacting dual credit reporting. The @pany began
reporting comparative results under this new stimgctvith the filing of this Quarterly Report on Fod0-Q. In the
second quarter of 2017, the Company plans to uptidbeisiness segment disclosures in its 2016 AriReport on
Form 10-K via a Current Report on Form 8-K to reflhese changes.

Foreign Currency Translation

Local currencies generally are considered the fanat currencies outside the United States. Asmedsliabilities for
operations in local-currency environments are teded at month-end exchange rates of the periooriegh Income and
expense items are translated at month-end exchategeof each applicable month. Cumulative traiesiedjustments
are recorded as a component of accumulated othegpretiensive income (loss) in shareholders’ equity.

3M has a subsidiary in Venezuela, the financigkst@nts of which are remeasured as if its functionaency were
that of its parent because Venezuela’'s economica@ament is considered highly inflationary. The méng income of
this subsidiary represented less than 1.0 perde3itls consolidated operating income for 2016. Menezuelan
government sets official rates of exchange and itiong precedent to purchase foreign currencyeddhrates with local
currency. The government also operates variousrngdqehsecondary currency exchange mechanisms thablean
eliminated and replaced from time to time. Suckgand conditions have been and continue to beuoj change.
For the periods presented, the financial statenedr8M’s Venezuelan subsidiary were remeasuredzintg the rate
associated with the secondary auction mechanispo, d&@ Cambio Complementario (DICOM), or its predsoe.
During the same periods, the Venezuelan governmefiicial exchange was Tipo de Cambio Protegidd®@D), or

its predecessor.

Note 1 in 3M’s 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K gd®s additional information the Company considars i
determining the exchange rate used relative tdeteezuelan subsidiary as well as factors whicha:tedd to its
deconsolidation. The Company continues to monftesé¢ circumstances. Changes in applicable exchategeor
exchange mechanisms may continue in the futuresélbieanges could impact the rate of exchange apjdi¢o
remeasure the Company’s net monetary assets ified)ildenominated in Venezuelan Bolivars (VEF).oA#March 31,
2017, the Company had a balance of net monetaegsadenominated in VEF of less than 2 billion VEig ¢he DIPRO
and DICOM exchange rates were approximately 10 ¥&d710 VEF per U.S. dollar, respectively. A need t
deconsolidate the Company’s Venezuelan subsidiapésations may result from a lack of exchangegtuli VEF-
denominated cash coupled with an acute degradatithre ability to make key operational decisions tlu government
regulations in Venezuela. Based upon a reviewabfa as of March 31, 2017, the Company continoeshsolidate
its Venezuelan subsidiary. As of March 31, 201&,lhlance of intercompany receivables due fromdhlisidiary and
its equity balance were not significant.



Earnings Per Share

The difference in the weighted average 3M sharéstanding for calculating basic and diluted earsipgr share
attributable to 3M common shareholders is a resfutte dilution associated with the Company'’s stbeked
compensation plans. Certain options outstanding@utigese stock-based compensation plans were ¢lotied in the
computation of diluted earnings per share attriblet2o 3M common shareholders because they woultiane had a
dilutive effect (3.2 million average options foetthree months ended March 31, 2017; 9.0 millicerage options for
the three months ended March 31, 2016). The cortipngafor basic and diluted earnings per sharevall

Earnings Per Share Computations

Three months ended

March 31,

(Amounts in millions, except per share amounts) 2017 2016
Numerator

Net income attributable to 3M $ 1,323 $ 1,275
Denominator:

Denominator for weighted average 3M common shanestanding — basic 598.1 607.4

Dilution associated with the Company’s stock-basatpensation plans 13.9 13.9

Denominator for weighted average 3M common shamestanding — dilute! 612.0 621.3
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common sluwddlehs — basic $ 221 $ 2.10
Earnings per share attributable to 3M common slwddens — diluted $ 216 $ 2.05

New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@q&ASB) issued ASU No. 2014-0Revenue from Contracts
with Customersand in August 2015 issued ASU No. 2015-14, whistended the standard as to effective date. The
ASU provides a single comprehensive model to bd irséhe accounting for revenue arising from cortsavith
customers and supersedes most current revenuaenigepgyuidance, including industry-specific guidanThe
standard’s stated core principle is that an estityuld recognize revenue to depict the transferahised goods or
services to customers in an amount that refleetséimsideration to which the entity expects torftéled in exchange
for those goods or services. To achieve this cdreiple the ASU includes provisions within a figgeep model that
includes identifying the contract with a custonidentifying the performance obligations in the cant, determining
the transaction price, allocating the transactiocepto the performance obligations, and recoggizavenue when (or
as) an entity satisfies a performance obligatidre $tandard also specifies the accounting for saygees to obtain or
fulfill a contract with a customer and requires anged disclosures about the nature, amount, tiamiguncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from contracts witstomers. During 2016, the FASB also issued ASU2946-08,
Principal versus Agent Considerations (Reportingétrie Gross versus Nef§SU No. 2016-10ldentifying
Performance Obligations and Licensinf§SU No. 2016-12Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical Expedjeand
ASU No. 2016-20Technical Corrections and Improvements to Topic, 88/enue from Contracts with Customers
which amend ASU No. 2014-09. These amendmentsdedtiarification of principal versus agent guidairceituations
in which a revenue transaction involves a thirdypar providing goods or services to a customeisuoh
circumstances, an entity must determine whethenalere of its promise to the customer is to prewtte underlying
goods or services (i.e., the entity is the principahe transaction) or to arrange for the thiedtp to provide the
underlying goods or services (i.e., the entityhis agent in the transaction). The amendments glaniterms of
identifying performance obligations, how entitiesudd determine whether promised goods or serviceseparately
identifiable from other promises in a contract athéyefore, would be accounted for separately. dlhéance allows
entities to disregard goods or services that amatarial in the context of a contract and providesccounting policy
election to account for shipping and handling atiés as fulfillment costs rather than as additiggramised services.
With regard to the licensing, the amendments gldrifw an entity would evaluate the nature of itsnpise in granting a



license of intellectual property, which determindsether the entity recognizes revenue over tima arpoint in time.
The amendments also address implementation isslative to transition (adding a practical expedfentcontract
modifications and clarifying what constitutes a @ated contract when employing full or modifiedrosipective
transition methods), collectability, noncash coasidion, and the presentation of sales and oth@lasitype taxes
(allowing entities to exclude sales-type taxesemtéld from transaction price). Finally, the amendi:enake certain
technical corrections and provide additional guaaim the areas of disclosure of performance otitiga, provisions
for losses on certain types of contracts, scogng,other areas. Overall, ASU No. 2014-09, as aprqutovides for
either full retrospective adoption or a modifiettespective adoption by which it is applied onlytihe most current
period presented. For 3M, the ASU is effective dayd, 2018. The Company is continuing to evaltia¢estandard’s
impact on 3M'’s consolidated results of operatiomd financial condition. 3M has conducted initiabéyses, developed
project management relative to the process of aupfiis ASU, and is currently completing detaitamhtract reviews
to determine necessary adjustments to existinguetity policies and to support an evaluation ofdtamdard’s impact
on the Company’s consolidated results of operatimsfinancial condition. For the majority of 3M&svenue
arrangements, no significant impacts are expecédtese transactions are not accounted for undastry-specific
guidance that will be superseded by the ASU anemgdiy consist of a single performance obligatiotransfer
promised goods or services. However, in additioexganded disclosures regarding revenue, the ASild cfor
example, impact the timing of revenue recognitiosdéme arrangements for which software industrygifipgguidance
(which the ASU supersedes) is presently utilizdee Tompany currently anticipates utilizing the nfiedi retrospective
method of adoption on January 1, 2018.

In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-implifying the Measurement of Inventomhich modified previous
requirements regarding measuring inventory atahet of cost or market. Under previous standatdsmarket
amount required consideration of replacement cwdtrealizable value (NRV), and NRV less an appnately normal
profit margin. The new ASU replaced market with NRié¢fined as estimated selling prices in the omgicaurse of
business, less reasonably predictable costs of letiom, disposal and transportation. This elimidatee need to
determine and consider replacement cost or NRVdesgpproximately normal profit margin when measgiri
inventory. 3M adopted this standard prospectivelgibning January 1, 2017. The adoption did not lzaxreaterial
impact on 3M’s consolidated results of operatiomd financial condition.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016R¥cognition and Measurement of Financial Assetskandncial
Liabilities, which revises the accounting related to (1) thesification and measurement of investments iritgqu
securities and (2) the presentation of certainvaiue changes for financial liabilities measuretha value. The ASU
also amends certain disclosure requirements asedaiath the fair value of financial instrument$i€Tnew guidance
requires the fair value measurement of investmiarggjuity securities and other ownership interastmn entity,
including investments in partnerships, unincorpeagbint ventures and limited liability companiesl{ectively, equity
securities) that do not result in consolidation anelnot accounted for under the equity methodti&ntwill need to
measure these investments and recognize changgsyalue in net income. Entities will no longez bble to recognize
unrealized holding gains and losses on equity #ezsuithey classify under current guidance as atstel for sale in other
comprehensive income (OCI). They also will no lanige able to use the cost method of accountingdoity securities
that do not have readily determinable fair valuestead, for these types of equity investmentsdbatot otherwise
qualify for the net asset value practical expedientities will be permitted to elect a practicapiexception and
measure the investment at cost less impairmentgslosnus observable price changes (in orderlysiations). The
ASU also establishes an incremental recognitiondisiosure requirement related to the presentatidair value
changes of financial liabilities for which the famlue option (FVO) has been elected. Under thidance, an entity
would be required to separately present in OClpitr¢ion of the total fair value change attributatdénstrument-
specific credit risk as opposed to reflecting there amount in earnings. For derivative liabikti®r which the FVO
has been elected, however, any changes in faie\atubutable to instrument-specific credit riskuld continue to be
presented in net income, which is consistent wittient guidance. For 3M, this standard is effechigginning January
1, 2018 via a cumulative-effect adjustment to beigig retained earnings, except for guidance redativequity
securities without readily determinable fair valudsich is applied prospectively. The Company igently assessing
this ASU’s impact on 3M’s consolidated results pemtions and financial condition, however, 3M hissorically held
limited amounts of equity securities and cost métimvestments (less than $75 million in aggregatdarch 31, 2017),
and has not elected the FVO with respect to matiémencial liabilities.



In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016L@2asesreplacing existing lease accounting guidance. ridve
standard introduces a lessee model that would reeutities to recognize assets and liabilitiesfiost leases, but
recognize expenses on their income statementsnanamer similar to current accounting. The ASU dustsmake
fundamental changes to existing lessor accounogvever, it modifies what qualifies as a sales-tgpd direct
financing lease and related accounting and aligmsnaber of the underlying principles with thosdlef new revenue
standard, ASU No. 2014-09, such as evaluating haleatability should be considered and determinitgen profit can
be recognized. The guidance eliminates existingegtate-specific provisions and requires exparnpeditative and
guantitative disclosures. The standard requiresifireddretrospective transition by which it is apgaliat the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented in tlae geadoption. For 3M, the ASU is effective Jaryuhr2019.
Information under existing lease guidance with eespo rent expense for operating leases and thg&oy’s minimum
lease payments for capital and operating leasdsneih-cancelable terms in excess one year as arbleer 31, 2016 is
included in Note 14 in 3M’s 2016 Annual Report arid 10-K. The Company is currently assessing ttf8&A impact
on 3M'’s consolidated results of operations andrfaia condition.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-06ntingent Put and Call Options in Debt Instrumeitisis ASU
clarified guidance used to determine if debt insients that contain contingent put or call opticetuire separation of
the embedded put or call feature from the debtunsént and trigger accounting for the feature derévative with
changes in fair value recorded through income. Uittenew guidance, fewer put or call options endieeldn debt
instruments require derivative accounting. For 8\ ASU was effective January 1, 2017. The Comjsaoytstanding
debt with embedded put provisions did not requéasate derivative accounting under previous guieaAs a result,
the adoption of this standard did not have a nelteripact on the Company’s consolidated resuligpafrations and
financial condition.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-8implifying the Transition to the Equity MethodAafcounting
which eliminated the previous requirement to agpb/equity method of accounting retrospectivelyigiag prior
periods as if the equity method had always beelief)pvhen an entity obtained significant influermeer a previously
held investment. The new guidance requires thestoveo apply the equity method prospectively friva date the
investment qualifies for the equity method. Theestor would add the carrying value of the existingestment to the
cost of any additional investment to determineitiitéal cost basis of the equity method investmé&ior 3M, this ASU
was effective January 1, 2017 on a prospectivesphagth early adoption permitted. 3M will apply shguidance to
investments that transition to the equity methddrahe adoption date.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016M8&asurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instrusjevhich
revises guidance for the accounting for creditdssan financial instruments within its scope. Tha/ istandard
introduces an approach, based on expected lossestjinate credit losses on certain types of firmmestruments and
modifies the impairment model for available-foresdebt securities. The new approach to estimatieditdosses
(referred to as the current expected credit lossedel) applies to most financial assets measurachattized cost and
certain other instruments, including trade and otbeeivables, loans, held-to-maturity debt sem@msitnet investments
in leases and off-balance-sheet credit exposuréh. rdspect to available-for-sale (AFS) debt sdims] the ASU
amends the current other-than-temporary impairmeatel. For such securities with unrealized lossesties will still
consider if a portion of any impairment is relatedy to credit losses and therefore recognizedraslaction in income.
However, rather than also reflecting that credislamount as a permanent reduction in cost (aradrtiast) basis of
that AFS debt security, the ASU requires that ¢riedises be reflected as an allowance. As a resugr certain
circumstances, a recovery in value could resylir@vious allowances, or portions thereof, reverdiack into income.
For 3M, this ASU is effective January 1, 2020, vetrly adoption permitted. Entities are requiredpply the
standard’s provisions as a cumulative-effect adjestt to retained earnings as of the beginning efitist reporting
period in which the guidance is adopted. The Comgaourrently assessing this ASU’s impact on 3ebasolidated
results of operations and financial condition.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016QBssification of Certain Cash Receipts and CashirRentswhich
was intended to reduce diversity in practice in lo@ntain cash receipts and payments are presemdeclassified in the
statement of cash flows. The standard providedaguid in a number of situations including, amongiahsettlement
of zero-coupon bonds, contingent consideration magsmmade after a business combination, proceedstfre
settlement of insurance claims, and distributieteived from equity method investees. The ASU piswided

10



guidance for classifying cash receipts and paynthatshave aspects of more than one class of tash.fFor 3M, this
ASU is effective January 1, 2018, with early adoptpermitted. The Company early adopted ASU No6204 as of
January 1, 2017. Since the associated changeassifatation were immaterial to all prior periodegented, no impact
was reflected in the Company’s pre-2017 consolifladsults of operations and financial conditionspreed.

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016t8a-Entity Transfers of Assets Other Than Inventavhich
modifies existing guidance and is intended to rediigersity in practice with respect to the accounfor the income
tax consequences of intra-entity transfers of as3die ASU indicates that the current exceptioin¢come tax
accounting that requires companies to defer thennectax effects of certain intercompany transastiwould apply
only to intercompany inventory transactions. Tisatlie exception would no longer apply to intercampsales and
transfers of other assets (e.g., intangible assétg)er the existing exception, income tax expaesseciated with intra-
entity profits in an intercompany sale or trangfeassets is eliminated from earnings. Instead,dabst is deferred and
recorded on the balance sheet (e.g., as a pregset) aintil the assets leave the consolidated g®uplarly, the entity
is prohibited from recognizing deferred tax as§etshe increases in tax bases due to the interaompale or transfer.
For 3M, this ASU is effective January 1, 2018, vatirly adoption permitted as of January 1, 2018 dthndard
requires modified retrospective transition withuanzilative catch-up adjustment to opening retairsgdiags in the
period of adoption. Upon adoption, a company waulie off any income tax effects that had been detkéfrom past
intercompany transactions involving non-inventosgets to opening retained earnings. In additiorraity would
record deferred tax assets with an offset to ogerétained earnings for amounts that entity hagipusly not
recognized under existing guidance but would rezegander the new guidance. While 3M could initiatklitional
relevant transactions prior to this ASU’s adoptitate, based on deferred tax amounts related técappd past
intercompany transactions as of December 31, 2086Company does not expect this ASU to have arrabimpact
on 3M'’s consolidated results of operations andrfaia condition.

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016tf&rests Held through Related Parties That Arearr@iommon
Control, which modified previous guidance with respeditev a decision maker that holds an indirect inteirea
variable interest entity (VIE) through a common ttohparty determines whether it is the primary é&femary of the

VIE as part of the analysis of whether the VIE webnéed to be consolidated. Under the ASU, a decisiaker would
need to consider only its proportionate indirettiiast in the VIE held through a common controtypd?revious
guidance had required the decision maker to treatdmmon control party’s interest in the VIE ath#& decision maker
held the interest itself. As a result of the AStcertain cases, previous consolidation conclusioag change. For 3M,
the standard was effective January 1, 2017 witlospective application to January 1, 2016. 3M dughave
significant involvement with entities subject tonsolidation considerations impacted by VIE modetdes. As a result,
the adoption of this ASU did not have a materighact on the Company’s consolidated results of djpermand
financial condition.

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016Réstricted Cashwhich clarified guidance on the classification
and presentation of restricted cash in the statenfezash flows. Under the ASU, changes in resdatash and
restricted cash equivalents would be included alwitig those of cash and cash equivalents in therstnt of cash
flows. As a result, entities would no longer prageansfers between cash/equivalents and restraask/equivalents in
the statement of cash flows. In addition, a red@imn between the balance sheet and the statemfieash flows
would be disclosed when the balance sheet incloabes than one line item for cash/equivalents astticted
cash/equivalents. For 3M, this ASU is effectiveuky 1, 2018, with early adoption permitted. Ther(pany early
adopted ASU No. 2016-18 as of January 1, 2017.tDtiee immaterial use of restricted cash and mstticash
equivalents, no impact was reflected in the Comjsaore-2017 consolidated results of operationsfarahcial
condition presented.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017a)arifying the Definition of a Businegswhich narrows the existing
definition of a business and provides a frameworkefvaluating whether a transaction should be atteoifor as an
acquisition (or disposal) of assets or a busirElss.ASU requires an entity to evaluate if subsédlytiall of the fair

value of the gross assets acquired is concentiatedingle identifiable asset or a group of simideentifiable assets; if
S0, the set of transferred assets and activiti@ettively, the set) is not a business. To be ired a business, the set
would need to include an input and a substantisegss that together significantly contribute todbdity to create
outputs. The standard also narrows the definitiooutputs. The definition of a business affectsaaref accounting such

11



as acquisitions, disposals and goodwill. Undemién guidance, fewer acquired sets are expected totsidered
businesses. For 3M, this ASU is effective Janua301L8 on a prospective basis with early adoptemitted. 3M
would apply this guidance to applicable transactiafter the adoption date.

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017Suhplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairmektnder the new
standard, goodwill impairment would be measurethasamount by which a reporting unit’'s carryingueakxceeds its
fair value, not to exceed the carrying value ofdyitl. This ASU eliminates existing guidance thatjuires an entity to
determine goodwill impairment by calculating thepiad fair value of goodwill by hypothetically ageing the fair
value of a reporting unit to all of its assets &aMilities as if that reporting unit had been aicgd in a business
combination. For 3M, this ASU is effective prospeely to impairment tests beginning January 1, 20@th early
adoption permitted. 3M currently plans to early pidibis ASU in the fourth quarter of 2017. 3M woualgply this
guidance to applicable impairment tests after thap#ion date.

In February 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017dl&rifying the Scope of Asset Derecognition Guideaond
Accounting for Partial Sales of Nonfinancial Assdisis ASU addresses scope-related questions ribse after the
FASB issued its revenue guidance in ASU No. 2014R@%enue from Contracts with Customédrse new standard
clarifies the accounting for derecognition of noaficial assets and defines what is considered subistance
nonfinancial asset. Nonfinancial assets largelgtesio items such as real estate, ships and ictigdlieproperty that do
not constitute a business. The new ASU impactsiesiierecognizing (e.g. selling) nonfinancial &sger in substance
nonfinancial assets), including partial intereber¢in, when the purchaser is not a customer. Uihéemew guidance,
the seller would apply certain recognition and rmeament principles of ASU No. 2014-(Revenue from Contracts
with Customerseven though the purchaser is not a customer3Moithis new standard is effective coincident witik
Company’s January 1, 2018 adoption of ASU No. 2024The Company is currently assessing this ASkdjsact on
3M'’s consolidated results of operations and finahcondition.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017407proving the Presentation of Net Periodic Pensimst and Net
Periodic Postretirement Benefit Co3this ASU changes how employers that sponsor ééfirenefit pension and/or
other postretirement benefit plans present thgpeebdic benefit cost in the income statement. Wilde new standard,
only the service cost component of net periodicefienost would be included in operating expensesanly the
service cost component would be eligible for cdiziiéion into assets such as inventory. All other periodic benefit
costs components (such as interest, expected retupian assets, prior service cost amortizatiehaaruarial gain/loss
amortization) would essentially be reported outsifleperating income. For 3M, this ASU is effectidenuary 1, 2018
on a retrospective basis; however, guidance ligpitie capitalization to only the service cost cong is applied on
prospective basis. The components of 3M’s net daridefined benefit pension and postretirement fiecasts are
presented in Note 7. These include componentdrigtalbenefit of $32 million and $52 million forehhree months
ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, tlsaiavwno longer be included within operating experesed instead
would be reported outside of income from operatiomder the new standard.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-BBmium Amortization on Purchased Callable Dedxt8ities
which amends the amortization period for certairchased callable debt securities held at a premiilmder existing
standards, entities generally amortize the prendaran adjustment of yield over the contractualdiféhe instrument.
The new guidance shortens the amortization peddié earliest call date for certain callable dsaturities that have
explicit, noncontingent call features and are tédlaat a fixed price and preset date. The amendntknhot require an
accounting change for securities held at a discdtort3M, this ASU is effective January 1, 2019t modified
retrospective transition resulting in a cumulateféect adjustment to retained earnings as of tiggninéng of the first
reporting period in which the guidance is adopteatly adoption is permitted. 3M’s marketable segyportfolio
includes very limited instances of callable deltiusities held at a premium. As a result, the Corgpoes not expect
this ASU to have a material impact on 3M’s consatidl results of operations and financial condition.
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NOTE 2. Acquisitions and Divestitures
Acquisitions:

3M makes acquisitions of certain businesses from tio time that are aligned with its strategic mht&ith respect to,
among other factors, growth markets and adjacemymt lines or technologies.

There were no business combinations that closddgitive three months ended March 31, 2017.

In March 2017, 3M (Safety and Graphics Businesapanced that it entered into an agreement to ae@dott Safety,
which is headquartered in Monroe, North Carolimagrf Johnson Controls for $2.0 billion, subject imsing and other
adjustments. Scott Safety is a premier manufactfremovative products, including self-containgédithing apparatus
systems, gas and flame detection instruments, #iedt safety devices that complement 3M’s persaoaf@tg portfolio.
The business had revenues of approximately $571®mih 2016. The transaction is expected to cioghe second
half of 2017, subject to customary closing condisioregulatory approvals, and information or cotasiain
requirements with relevant works councils.

Divestitures:

3M may divest certain businesses from time to tiraged upon reviews of the Company'’s portfolio adeishg, among
other items, factors relative to the extent oftsgic and technological alignment and optimizatibcapital

deployment, in addition to considering if sellitptbusinesses results in the greatest value anefatithe Company and
for shareholders.

In January 2017, 3M (Safety and Graphics Businedls) the assets of its safety prescription eyewaainess, with
annual sales of approximately $45 million, to HOY&ion Care. The Company recorded a pre-tax gaB28fmillion
in the first quarter of 2017 as a result of thile eecorded in selling, general and administradi¥penses).

In December 2016, 3M (Safety and Graphics Busireg®ed to sell its identity management busine&etmalto N.V.
for $850 million, subject to closing and other adinents. In May 2017, 3M completed the related gateansfer of
control, as applicable. This business, with 2016éssaf approximately $205 million, is a leading yid®r in identity
management solutions, including biometric hardveare software that enable identity verification andhentication, as
well as secure materials and document readersCoh@gany expects a pre-tax gain of approximatel\0%#iflion as a
result of this divestiture.

The aggregate operating income of these two bustsesas less than $20 million in each of 2016 @icb2The
approximate amounts of major assets and liabil#gsociated with disposal groups classified as-fogidale as of
March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 includedaheviing:

March 31, December 31,
(Millions) 2017 2016
Accounts receivable $ 25 $ 25
Property, plant and equipment (net) 20 25
Intangible assets 25 35
Deferred revenue (other current liabilities) 30 35

In addition, approximately $250 million and $270lion of goodwill was estimated to be attributabdedisposal groups
classified as held-for-sale as of March 31, 201 Bacember 31, 2016, respectively, based uporiveltir value. The
amounts above have not been segregated and as#iethwithin the existing corresponding line iteors the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

Refer to Note 2 in 3M’s 2016 Annual Report on FAdaK for more information on 3M’s acquisitions adigestitures.
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NOTE 3. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

There were no acquisitions that closed during itis¢ three months of 2017. The amounts in the “Skation and other”
column in the following table primarily relate tbanges in foreign currency exchange rates. Thewjtidzhlances by
business segment as of December 31, 2016 and Nar&@017, follow:

Goodwill

December31, 2011 Acquisition Translation March 31, 201
(Millions) Balance activity and other Balance
Industrial $ 2,536 $ — 3 41 $ 2,577
Safety and Graphics 3,324 — 20 3,344
Health Care 1,609 — 18 1,627
Electronics and Energy 1,489 — 13 1,502
Consumer 208 — — 208
Total Company $ 9,166 $ — $ 92 $ 9,258

Accounting standards require that goodwill be g$te impairment annually and between annual t@stertain
circumstances such as a change in reporting untteedesting of recoverability of a significansasgroup within a
reporting unit. At 3M, reporting units generallyroespond to a division.

As described in Note 12, effective in the first gaaof 2017, the Company changed its business eegraporting in its
continuing effort to improve the alignment of itsdinesses around markets and customers. For adygirchanges that
resulted in reporting unit changes, the Companyiegphe relative fair value method to determine itthpact on
goodwill of the associated reporting units. Durthg first quarter of 2017, the Company completed#sessment of
any potential goodwill impairment for reporting tsmimpacted by this new structure and determinatirth impairment
existed.

Acquired Intangible Assets

The carrying amount and accumulated amortizaticecgfiired finite-lived intangible assets, in additto the balance
of non-amortizable intangible assets, as of Mafh?®17, and December 31, 2016, follow:

March 31, December 31,

(Millions) 2017 2016
Customer related intangible assets $ 1,935 $ 1,939
Patents 604 602
Other technology-based intangible assets 527 524
Definite-lived tradenames 417 420
Other amortizable intangible assets 213 211
Total gross carrying amount $ 3,696 $ 3,696
Accumulated amortization — customer related (824) (797)
Accumulated amortization — patents (506 (497
Accumulated amortization — other technology based (315) (302)
Accumulated amortization — definite-lived tradename (239 (236,
Accumulated amortization — other (176) (173)
Total accumulated amortization $ (2,060 $ (2,005

Total finite-lived intangible assets — net $ 1,636 $ 1,691
Norn-amortizable intangible assets (primarily tradensime 633 629

Total intangible assets — net $ 2269 $ 2,320
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Certain tradenames acquired by 3M are not amorbeeduse they have been in existence for over &S ykave a
history of leading-market share positions, haventse® are intended to be continuously renewedttendssociated
products of which are expected to generate castsffor 3M for an indefinite period of time.

Amortization expense for acquired intangible astmtshe three-month periods ended March 31, 201072016

follows:
Three months ended
March 31,
(Millions) 2017 2016

Amortization expense $ 64 $ 66

Expected amortization expense for acquired amdngzitangible assets recorded as of March 31,2017

Remainder
of After
(Millions) 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 202
Amortization expense $ 183 $ 195 $ 186 $ 177 $ 161 $ 146 $ 588

The preceding expected amortization expense istimate. Actual amounts of amortization expense ditigr from
estimated amounts due to additional intangibletassguisitions, changes in foreign currency excleanages,
impairment of intangible assets, accelerated amaiitin of intangible assets and other events. 3p&eses the costs
incurred to renew or extend the term of intangddeets.

NOTE 4. Supplemental Equity and Comprehensive Iname Information

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Three months ended March 31, 2017

3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated

Stock and Other

Additional Comprehensive Non-

Paid-in Retained Treasury Income controlling

(Millions) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at December 31, 2016 $ 10343 $ 5070 $ 37,907 $ (25434 $ (7,245 $ 45
Net incom: 1,326 1,323 3
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment 292 289 3
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjigsstment 83 83 —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaisslo (76) (76, —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 299
Dividends declared (702 (702
Stock-based compensation 128 128
Reacquired stock (678, (678
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 324 (434) 758
Balance at March 31, 2017 $ 11,040 $ 5198 $ 38,094 $ (25,354 $ (6,949 $ 51
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Three months ended March 31, 2016

3M Company Shareholders

Common Accumulated
Stock and Other
Additional Comprehensive Non-
Paid-in Retained Treasury Income controlling
(Millions) Total Capital Earnings Stock (Loss) Interest
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 11468 $ 4,800 $ 36,296 $ (23,308 $ (6,359 $ 39
Net incom: 1,278 1,275 3
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Cumulative translation adjustment 138 139 Q)
Defined benefit pension and post-retirement platjgsament 69 69 —
Cash flow hedging instruments - unrealized gaissjo (110 (110 —
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 97
Dividends declared (672 (672
Stock-based compensation 125 125
Reacquired stock (1,163 (2,163
Issuances pursuant to stock option and benefisplan 362 (393) 755
Balance at March 31, 2016 $ 11495 $ 4,925 $ 36,506 $ (23,716 $ (6,261 $ 41
Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incomé_¢ss) Attributable to 3M by Component
Three months ended March 31, 2017
Total
Defined Benefit Cash Flow Accumulated
Pension and Hedging Other
Cumulative Postretirement  Instruments, Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at December 31, 2016, net of tax: $ (2,008 $ (5,328 $ 91 $ (7,245
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications 226 — (101 125
Amounts reclassified out — 119 (18) 101
Total other comprehensive income (loss), before tax 226 119 (119 226
Tax effect 63 (36) 43 70
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 289 83 (76) 296
Balance at March 31, 2017, net of tax: $ (L,719) $ (5,245) ¢ 15 $ (6,949
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Three months ended March 31, 2016

Total
Defined Benefit Cash Flow Accumulated
Pension and Hedging Other
Cumulative Postretirement  Instruments,  Comprehensive
Translation Plans Unrealized Income
(Millions) Adjustment Adjustment Gain (Loss) (Loss)
Balance at December 31, 2015, net of tax: $ (1,679 $ (4,804 $ 124 $ (6,359
Other comprehensive income (loss), before tax:
Amounts before reclassifications 60 — (121 (61)
Amounts reclassified out — 103 (52) 51
Total other comprehensive income (loss), before tax 60 103 173 (20)
Tax effect 79 (34) 63 108
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 139 69 (110 98
Balance at March 31, 2016, net of tax: $ (1540) $ (4,735 $ 14 $ (6,261

Income taxes are not provided for foreign transtatielating to permanent investments in internatisubsidiaries, but
tax effects within cumulative translation does it impacts from items such as net investment heedgeactions.
Reclassification adjustments are made to avoid ldozdunting in comprehensive income items thaidse recorded as
part of net income.

Reclassifications out of Accumulated Other Comprehasive Income Attributable to 3M

Amount Reclassified from

Details about Accumulated Other Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive Income Components Three months ended March 31, Location on Income
(Millions) 2017 2016 Statement

Gains (losses) associated with, defined benefisiparand
postretirement plans amortization

Transition asset $ — 8 — See Note 7
Prior service benefit 22 23 See Note 7
Net actuarial loss (141 (126 See Note 7
Total before tax (119 (103)
Tax effect 36 34 Provision for income taxes
Net of tay $ 83 $ (69)
Cash flow hedging instruments gains (losses)
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 18 $ 53 Cost of sales
Interest rate swap contracts — (1) Interest expense
Total before tax 18 52
Tax effect (6) (18) Provision for income taxes
Net of tay $ 12 3 34
Total reclassifications for the period, net of tax $ 7L 3 (35)
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NOTE 5. Income Taxes

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction, and various states and forgigisdictions. With
few exceptions, the Company is no longer subjett.® federal, state and local, or non-U.S. inctamxeexaminations
by tax authorities for years before 2005.

The IRS has completed its field examination of@menpany’s U.S. federal income tax returns for tearg 2005
through 2014. The Company protested certain IR8ipos within these tax years and entered intcattheinistrative
appeals process with the IRS. In December 201X tmpany received a statutory notice of deficiefarythe 2006
year. The Company filed a petition in Tax Courtha first quarter of 2013 relating to the 2006 yaar.

Currently, the Company is under examination bylR® for its U.S. federal income tax returns for ylears 2015, 2016,
and 2017. It is anticipated that the IRS will coatplits examination of the Company for 2015 byehe of the fourth
quarter of 2017, for 2016 by the end of the finsaider of 2018, and for 2017 by the end of the &sarter of 2019. As
of March 31, 2017, the IRS has not proposed amjifgignt adjustments to the Company'’s tax positifmmavhich the
Company is not adequately reserved.

Payments relating to other proposed assessmesitsgaiiom the 2005 through 2017 examinations maybeanade
until a final agreement is reached between the Gamppnd the IRS on such assessments or upon adswution
resulting from the administrative appeals procegadicial action. In addition to the U.S. fedeeatamination, there is
also audit activity in several U.S. state and fgmgurisdictions.

3M anticipates changes to the Company’'s uncersipositions due to the closing and resolutionuafitissues for
various audit years mentioned above and closustatiites. Currently, the Company is estimatingaesse in
unrecognized tax benefits during the next 12 moatha result of anticipated resolutions of audiiés. The total
amounts of unrecognized tax benefits that, if recoed, would affect the effective tax rate as ofrthe31, 2017 and
December 31, 2016 are $348 million and $333 millr@spectively.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties ederlated to unrecognized tax benefits in tax rgpeThe
Company recognized in the consolidated statemeintcofne on a gross basis approximately $3 millibexpense and
$4 million of benefit for the three months endedrda31, 2017 and March 31, 2016, respectively. Ardh 31, 2017
and December 31, 2016, accrued interest and pemaitihe consolidated balance sheet on a grossweae $55

million and $52 million, respectively. Includedtimese interest and penalty amounts are interegpamaties related to
tax positions for which the ultimate deductibilisyhighly certain but for which there is uncertgiabout the timing of
such deductibility. Because of the impact of defértax accounting, other than interest and pesaltie disallowance
of the shorter deductibility period would not afféice annual effective tax rate but would accekethe payment of cash
to the taxing authority to an earlier period.

The effective tax rate for the first quarter of Z04as 23.7 percent, compared to 26.8 percent ifirsteuarter of 2016,
a decrease of 3.1 percentage points. Primary fathtat decreased the Company’s effective tax nate @ombined basis
by 3.6 percentage points for the first three monfia017 when compared to the same period for 20dl@ded an
increase in excess tax benefits related to emplslyaee-based payments, international taxes that iwegracted by
changes to the geographic mix of income beforestaxel prior year cash optimization actions, anérmitems. This
decrease was partially offset by a 0.5 percentag# pear-on-year increase related to remeasurentdi®M'’s

uncertain tax positions.

The provision for income taxes is determined usirggasset and liability approach. Under this apghpdeferred
income taxes represent the expected future taxequiesices of temporary differences between theingramounts and
tax basis of assets and liabilities. The Compangnds a valuation allowance to reduce its defetagdissets when
uncertainty regarding their realizability exits. #March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Cagnpad valuation
allowances of $51 million and $47 million on itsfeleed tax assets, respectively.
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NOTE 6. Marketable Securities

The Company invests in asset-backed securitiesficates of deposit/time deposits, commercial papad other
securities. The following is a summary of amouetorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet for nadrleesecurities
(current and non-current).

March 31, December 31,

(Millions) 2017 2016
Corporate debt securities $ 10 $ 10
Commercial paper 1 14
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 89 197
U.S. municipal securities 3 3
Asset-backed securities:

Automobile loan related 29 31

Credit card related 9 18

Other — 7
Asset-backed securities total 38 56
Current marketable securities $ 141 $ 280
U.S. municipal securities $ 17 $ 17
Non-current marketable securities $ 17 $ 17
Total marketable securities $ 158 $ 297

Classification of marketable securities as curognton-current is based on the nature of the siesiand availability
for use in current operations. At March 31, 201@ Brecember 31, 2016, gross unrealized gains ataifses (pre-tax)
were not material. The gross amounts of the rediljens or losses were not material. Cost of seesi$old use the
first in, first out (FIFO) method. Since these netdble securities are classified as available-dte-securities, changes
in fair value will flow through other comprehensivieome, with amounts reclassified out of other poghensive
income into earnings upon sale or “other-than-tenapd impairment.

3M reviews impairments associated with its markietalcurities in accordance with the measuremedague
provided by ASC 320nvestments-Debt and Equity Securitieben determining the classification of the impant as
“temporary” or “other-than-temporary”. A temporamgpairment charge results in an unrealized lossgegcorded in
the other comprehensive income component of shitetsd equity. Such an unrealized loss does naigedhet income
attributable to 3M for the applicable accountingipe because the loss is not viewed as other-teenporary. The
factors evaluated to differentiate between temposad other-than-temporary include the projectédréucash flows,
credit ratings actions, and assessment of thetayadlity of the underlying collateral, as well@ber factors.

The balances at March 31, 2017 for marketable &&suby contractual maturity are shown below. Attwnaturities
may differ from contractual maturities becauseisiseiers of the securities may have the right tpgyebligations
without prepayment penalties.

(Millions) March 31, 2017

Due in one year or less $ 95
Due after one year through five years 59
Due after five years through ten years 4
Total marketable securities $ 158
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3M has a diversified marketable securities pomfdiithin this portfolio, asset-backed securitiesmarily include
interests in automobile loans, credit cards andradisset-backed securities. 3M’s investment paliows investments
in asset-backed securities with minimum credinggiof Aa2 by Moody’s Investors Service or AA byasiard &
Poor’s or Fitch Ratings or DBRS. Asset-backed sgéeamust be rated by at least two of the afordioaad rating
agencies, one of which must be Moody’s Investorsi€e or Standard & Poor’s. At March 31, 2017 ,asset-backed
security investments were in compliance with thafiqy. Approximately 77.4 percent of all asset-bedlsecurity
investments were rated AAA or A-1+ by Standard &Poand/or Aaa or P-1 by Moody’s Investors Sendoe/or
AAA or F1+ by Fitch Ratings. Interest rate risk aomrddit risk related to the underlying collateralymimpact the value
of investments in asset-backed securities, whitéofa such as general conditions in the overaflicrearket and the
nature of the underlying collateral may affect liljaidity of investments in asset-backed securit&¥d does not
currently expect risk related to its holding inetslsacked securities to materially impact its ficiahcondition or
liquidity.
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NOTE 7. Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

Net periodic benefit cost is recorded in cost ¢désaselling, general and administrative expereed,research,
development and related expenses. Components périetlic benefit cost and other supplemental imfation for the
three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 follow:

Benefit Plan Information

Three months ended March 31,
Qualified and Non-qualified

Pension Benefits Postretirement
United States International Benefits
(Millions) 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit)
Service cost $ 67 $ 65 $ 33 $33 $13 $ 13
Interest cost 142 143 37 43 19 20
Expected return on plan assets (259 (260, (69) (78 (21) (23
Amortization of transition (asset) obligation — — — — — —
Amortization of prior service cost (benefit) (6) (6) 3) @) @3 @4
Amortization of net actuarial (gain) loss 97 88 30 22 14 16
Settlements, curtailments, special termination benand other — — — — — —
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit) after settletsenurtailments, speci
termination benefits and other $ 41 $ 30 $28 $17 $ 12 $ 12

For the three months ended March 31, 2017, coniibsi totaling $247 million were made to the Comgat.S. and
international pension plans and $1 million to itsetirement plans. For total year 2017, the Camgepects to
contribute approximately $300 million to $500 nahi of cash to its global defined benefit pensiod postretirement
plans. The Company does not have a required minicash pension contribution obligation for its Upfans in 2017.
Future contributions will depend on market condisipinterest rates and other factors. 3M’s annsurement date
for pension and postretirement assets and liaslis December 31 each year, which is also theusat for the related
annual measurement assumptions.

3M was informed during the first quarter of 200®attthe general partners of WG Trading Companwhith 3M’s
benefit plans hold limited partnership interests, the subject of a criminal investigation as vaslicivil proceedings by
the SEC and CFTC (Commodity Futures Trading Comiomsin March 2011, over the objections of 3M aixother
limited partners of WG Trading Company, the distdourt judge ruled in favor of the court appointedeiver’s
proposed distribution plan (and in April 2013, theited States Court of Appeals for the Second @imftirmed the
district court’s ruling). The benefit plan trusteeldings of WG Trading Company interests were adpliso reflect the
decreased estimated fair market value, inclusivestimated insurance proceeds, as of the annuaurezaent dates.
The Company has insurance that it believes, basedhat is currently known, will result in the prdida recovery of a
portion of the decrease in original asset valughénfirst quarter of 2014, 3M and certain 3M bénghns filed a
lawsuit in the U.S. District Court for the Distriof Minnesota against five insurers seeking insceatoverage for the
WG Trading Company claim. In September 2015, thetawled in favor of the defendant insurance coniggon a
motion for summary judgment and dismissed the l@awsuOctober 2015, 3M and the 3M benefit platedia notice of
appeal to the United States Court of Appeals ferlghth Circuit. As of the 2016 measurement dhaise holdings
represented less than one half of one percent ¢ &M value of total plan assets. 3M currentljidees that the
resolution of these events will not have a matexihlerse effect on the consolidated financial posivf the Company.

As part of a diversified investment strategy, th&pension and postretirement benefit plans magesiments in the
natural gas fired power generation industry duthgperiod 2011 through 2013. In April 2017, on¢hefse entities,
Panda Temple Power, LLC, filed for Chapter 11 baptgy protection in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court foe District of
Delaware. This investment represented less thaperant of the fair value of the U.S. pension postretirement
plans’ assets as of their 2016 measurement date.
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NOTE 8. Derivatives

The Company uses interest rate swaps, currencysswammodity price swaps, and forward and optiartre@ts to
manage risks generally associated with foreign &mgh rate, interest rate and commodity price fatibns. The
information that follows explains the various typdslerivatives and financial instruments used bl Bow and why
3M uses such instruments, how such instrumentaareunted for, and how such instruments impact Jiiancial
position and performance.

Additional information with respect to the impaots other comprehensive income of nonderivative megdgnd
derivative instruments is included in Note 4. Adxtial information with respect to the fair valuedafrivative
instruments is included in Note 9. References farmation regarding derivatives and/or hedgingriunsients associated
with the Company’s long-term debt are also madédte 10 in 3M’s 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Types of Derivatives/Hedging Instruments and Inclugn Income/Other Comprehensive Income

Cash Flow Hedges:

For derivative instruments that are designatedopradify as cash flow hedges, the effective portbthe gain or loss
on the derivative is reported as a component afratbmprehensive income and reclassified into agsiin the same
period during which the hedged transaction affearsings. Gains and losses on the derivative repiieg either hedge
ineffectiveness or hedge components excluded frmnassessment of effectiveness are recognizedrnent@arnings.

Cash Flow Hedging - Foreign Currency Forward andtiop Contracts:The Company enters into foreign exchange
forward and option contracts to hedge against tleeteof exchange rate fluctuations on cash flo@saiminated in
foreign currencies. These transactions are desidras cash flow hedges. The settlement or extensithese
derivatives will result in reclassifications (fraeecumulated other comprehensive income) to earminte period
during which the hedged transactions affect eamiflyl may dedesignate these cash flow hedge ne#tips in
advance of the occurrence of the forecasted tréinsad he portion of gains or losses on the deneainstrument
previously accumulated in other comprehensive ireéon dedesignated hedges remains in accumulated ot
comprehensive income until the forecasted transaciccurs. Changes in the value of derivative imsénts after
dedesignation are recorded in earnings and arededlin the Derivatives Not Designated as Hedgisrliments
section below. The maximum length of time over wh® hedges its exposure to the variability in fatoash flows of
the forecasted transactions is 36 months.

Cash Flow Hedging — Interest Rate Contradtee Company may use forward starting interestcatgracts to hedge
exposure to variability in cash flows from interpalyments on forecasted debt issuances. The aat@tizof gains and
losses on forward starting interest rate swapscisided in the tables below as part of the gais#jlaecognized in
income on the effective portion of derivatives assult of reclassification from accumulated otbemprehensive
income. Additional information regarding previougdgued and terminated interest rate contract®edound in Note
12 in 3M’s 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

In the first six months of 2016, the Company ertérn¢o a forward starting interest rate swaps éxgired in December
2016 with an aggregate notional amount of $300i@nilas a hedge against interest rate volatilitpeissed with a
forecasted issuance of fixed rate debt. Upon ismiahmedium-term notes in September 2016, 3M teated these
interest rate swaps. The termination resulted imamaterial loss within accumulated other comprehenincome that
will be amortized over the respective lives of thedot.

In the fourth quarter of 2016, the Company entémémi forward starting interest rate swaps with fiaral amount of
$200 million as a hedge against interest rate Nityedissociated with a forecasted issuance offfirate debt. In the first
quarter of 2017, the Company entered into forwéadiag interest rate swaps with a notional ama@ir#200 million as
a hedge against interest rate volatility associaii#l a forecasted issuance of fixed rate debt.
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The amortization of gains and losses on forwardistainterest rate swaps is included in the tabldsw as part of the
gain/(loss) recognized in income on the effectiggtipn of derivatives as a result of reclassifieatfrom accumulated
other comprehensive income.

As of March 31, 2017, the Company had a balan&i6fmillion associated with the after-tax net utirea gain
associated with cash flow hedging instruments @@@in accumulated other comprehensive income.imbigdes a
remaining balance of $5 million (after tax losdated to the forward starting interest rate swagsch will be
amortized over the respective lives of the debseBleon exchange rates as of March 31, 2017, 3Mcexpereclassify
approximately $13 million of the after-tax net ualieed foreign exchange cash flow hedging gaireaimings over the
remainder of 2017, approximately $2 million of tiféer-tax net unrealized foreign exchange cash fiedging gains to
earnings in 2018, and an immaterial amount of aétemet unrealized foreign exchange cash flow hegipsses to
earnings after 2018 (with the impact offset by eays/losses from underlying hedged items). 3M etgptrreclassify
approximately $9 million of the after-tax net urlized foreign exchange cash flow hedging gainsatmiegs over the
next 12 months.

The location in the consolidated statements ofime@nd comprehensive income and amounts of gathkases
related to derivative instruments designated als tas/ hedges are provided in the following table.

Pretax Gain (Loss) Recognized in

Pretax Gain (Loss) Income on Effective Portion of Ineffective Portio of Gain
Recognized in Other Derivative as a Result of (Loss) on Derivative ah
Comprehensive Reclassification from Amount Exclded from
Income on Effective Accumulated Other Effectiveness Testing
Three months ended March 31, 2017 Portion of Derative Comprehensive Income Recognized in Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ (100) Cost of sales $ 18 Cost of sales $ —
Interest rate swap contracts (1) Interest expens — Interest expens —
Total $ (101) $ 18 $ —
Three months ended March 31, 2016
(Millions) Amount Location Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ (120, Costofsales $ 53 Costofsales $ —
Interest rate swap contracts (1) Interest expense (1) Interest expense —
Total $ (121 $ 52 $ —

Fair Value Hedges:

For derivative instruments that are designatedopradify as fair value hedges, the gain or losshenderivatives as well
as the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged ittribatable to the hedged risk are recognized mesu earnings.

Fair Value Hedging - Interest Rate Swajp$éte Company manages interest expense using afriked and floating

rate debt. To help manage borrowing costs, the @asnmay enter into interest rate swaps. Under tags@gements,
the Company agrees to exchange, at specified algrthe difference between fixed and floatingrese amounts
calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notjpmatipal amount. The mark-to-market of these Yaitue hedges is
recorded as gains or losses in interest expenses arfitdet by the gain or loss of the underlyingptdastrument, which
also is recorded in interest expense. These faievaedges are highly effective and, thus, thermisnpact on earnings
due to hedge ineffectiveness. Additional informatiegarding designated interest rate swaps caourglfin Note 12 in
3M’s 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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The location in the consolidated statements ofriime@nd amounts of gains and losses related toafi@svinstruments
designated as fair value hedges and similar infaomaelative to the hedged items are as follows:

Gain (Loss) on Derivative Gain (Loss) on Hedged Item

Three months ended March 31, 2017 Recognized indome Recognized in Income
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expenge (5) Interest expense $ 5

Total $ 5) $ 5
Three months ended March 31, 2016
(Millions) Location Amount Location Amount
Interest rate swap contracts Interest expens  $ 29 Interest expens $ (29

Total $ 29 $ (29)

Net Investment Hedges:

The Company may use non-derivative (foreign culyatenominated debt) and derivative (foreign exclediogward
contracts) instruments to hedge portions of the @mg’'s investment in foreign subsidiaries and marfageign
exchange risk. For instruments that are desigratedjualify as hedges of net investments in forejggrations and
that meet the effectiveness requirements, theaias@r losses attributable to changes in spotamgdhrates are
recorded in cumulative translation within other gwehensive income. The remainder of the changalirevof such
instruments is recorded in earnings. Recognitiomaimings of amounts previously recorded in cunugddtanslation is
limited to circumstances such as complete or snbatly complete liquidation of the net investmémthe hedged
foreign operation. To the extent foreign currenepaiminated debt is not designated in or is dedasigrfrom a net
investment hedge relationship, changes in valubaifportion of foreign currency denominated dele tb exchange
rate changes are recorded in earnings throughriedinrity date.

3M'’s use of foreign exchange forward contracts giesied in hedges of the Company’s net investmefuraign
subsidiaries can vary by time period depending bamwforeign currency denominated debt balancegulatsd in such
relationships are dedesignated, matured, or aré/ngsued and designated. Additionally, variati@m©ccur in
connection with the extent of the Company’s desfoedign exchange risk coverage.

At March 31, 2017, the total notional amount ofefgn exchange forward contracts designated innvestment hedges
was approximately 150 million Euros and approxinya2@8 billion South Korean Won, along with a piijmel amount
of long-term debt instruments designated in netétment hedges totaling 4.4 billion Euros. The migtdates of these
derivative and nonderivative instruments designatetkt investment hedges range from 2017 to 2031.
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The location in the consolidated statements ofrime@nd comprehensive income and amounts of gathbases
related to derivative and nonderivative instrumelgsignated as net investment hedges are as folldwese were no
reclassifications of the effective portion of netéstment hedges out of accumulated other compsefleimcome into
income for the periods presented in the table below

Pretax Gain (Loss)
Recognized as
Cumulative Translation

within Other Ineffective Portion of Gain (Loss) ;m
Comprehensive Income Instrument and Amount Excluded
on Effective Portion of from Effectiveness Testing
Three months ended March 31, 2017 Instrument Regaized in Income
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ (121) N/A $ —
Foreign currency forward contracts (20 Cost of sales 2
Total $ (141) $ 2
Three months ended March 31, 2016
(Millions) Amount Location Amount
Foreign currency denominated debt $ (144 NI/A $ =
Foreign currency forward contracts (43) Cost of sales (2)
Total $ (187 $ (2)

Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments:

3M enters into foreign exchange forward contralag &re not designated in hedge relationshipsfsefin part, the
impacts of certain intercompany transactions arfdrtber mitigate short-term currency impacts. didiéion, the
Company enters into commodity price swaps to affsgbart, fluctuations in costs associated with tise of certain
precious metals. These derivative instruments arel@signated in hedging relationships; thereffaie value gains and
losses on these contracts are recorded in earfihgsCompany does not hold or issue derivativenfired instruments
for trading purposes.

The Company revised amounts previously presentdteitable below for the gain (loss) on derivativesognized in
income for the three months ended March 31, 20B8ive to foreign currency forward contracts. Timsnaterial
correction increased the previously presented aimmitthe loss recognized in income in the disclesiable below by
$58 million for the three months ended March 31L,&0r his revision had no impact on the Companyissotidated
results of operations, financial condition, or céelwvs.

The location in the consolidated statements ofriime@nd amounts of gains and losses related toafi@gvinstruments
not designated as hedging instruments are as fellow

Three months ended March 31, 2017
Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in

Income
(Millions) Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts Cost of sales $ 1)
Foreign currency forward contracts Interest expense 42
Total $ 41

Three months ended March 31, 2016
Gain (Loss) on Derivative Recognized in

Income
(Millions) Location Amount
Foreign currency forward/option contracts Cost of sales $ )
Foreign currency forward contracts Interest expense (65)
Total $ (70)
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Location and Fair Value Amount of Derivative Instrents

The following tables summarize the fair value of’8Merivative instruments, excluding nonderivatinstruments used
as hedging instruments, and their location in thesolidated balance sheet. Notional amounts betewpresented at
period end foreign exchange rates, except inteadstswaps, which are presented using the coniregption date’s
foreign exchange rate. Additional information wid#spect to the fair value of derivative instrumastsicluded in Note
9.

Gross Assets Liabilities
March 31, 2017 Notional Fair Fair
(Millions) Amount Location Value Amount Location Value Amount
Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contrac  $ 2,150 Other current asset: $ 42  Other current liabilitie $ 37
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 1,470 Other assets 57 Other liabilities 12
Interest rate swap contracts 400 Other current asset: 2 Other current liabilitie 1
Interest rate swap contracts 1,753 Other assets 22  Other liabilities 4
Total derivatives designated as hedgir
instruments $ 123 $ 54
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contrac $ 6,293 Other current asset:  $ 52  Other current liabilitie  $ 29
Total derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments $ 52 $ 29
Total derivative instruments $ 175 $ 83
Gross Assets Liabilities
December 31, 2016 Notional Fair Fair
(Millions) Amount Location Value Amount Location Value Amount
Derivatives designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contrac  $ 2,160 Other current asset: $ 107 Other current liabilitie  $ 9
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 1,45%ther assets 86 Other liabilities 3
Interest rate swap contracts 1,953 Other assets 25 Other current liabilitie 1
Total derivatives designated as hedgir
instruments $ 218 $ 13
Derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments
Foreign currency forward/option contracts $ 5,655 Other current assets $ 41  Other current liabilities $ 82
Total derivatives not designated as
hedging instruments $ 41 $ 82
Total derivative instruments $ 259 $ 95

Credit Risk and Offsetting of Assets and Liab#itié Derivative Instruments

The Company is exposed to credit loss in the esEnbnperformance by counterparties in interest sataps, currency
swaps, commodity price swaps, and forward and pmtamtracts. However, the Company’s risk is limitedhe fair
value of the instruments. The Company actively nowaiits exposure to credit risk through the useredlit approvals
and credit limits, and by selecting major interaaél banks and financial institutions as countdipsr3M enters into
master netting arrangements with counterpartieqwgassible to mitigate credit risk in derivativartsactions. A master
netting arrangement may allow each counterparhetcettle amounts owed between a 3M entity anddhaterparty
as a result of multiple, separate derivative tratisas. As of March 31, 2017, 3M has InternatiocBalaps and
Derivatives Association (ISDA) agreements with pplacable banks and financial institutions whichntaon netting
provisions. In addition to a master agreement @ihsupported by a primary counterparty’s parentrgogee, 3M also
has associated credit support agreements in plabe @ of its primary derivative counterparties wliniamong other
things, provide the circumstances under which ejplaety is required to post eligible collateral @vhthe market value
of transactions covered by these agreements exspedsied thresholds or if a counterparty’s crediing has been
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downgraded to a predetermined rating). The Complaeg not anticipate nonperformance by any of these
counterparties.

3M has elected to present the fair value of detreadissets and liabilities within the Company’s saidated balance
sheet on a gross basis even when derivative triimsa@re subject to master netting arrangementsray otherwise
qualify for net presentation. However, the follogitables provide information as if the Company &ksttted to offset
the asset and liability balances of derivativerunsients, netted in accordance with various critieriiie event of default
or termination as stipulated by the terms of ngtdrrangements with each of the counterpartiese&on counterparty,
if netted, the Company would offset the asset &tiility balances of all derivatives at the endla# reporting period
based on the 3M entity that is a party to the tatisns. Derivatives not subject to master nettiggeements are not
eligible for net presentation. As of the applicatidees presented below, no collateral had beelvester pledged
related to these derivative instruments.

Offsetting of Financial Assets under Master NettingAgreements with Derivative Counterparties

Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject

Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Assets Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
March 31, 2017 Consolidated Recognized Cash Catkral Net Amount of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Liabilities Received Derivative Assets
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 174 $ 60 $ — 3 114
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements 1 1
Total $ 175 $ 115
December 31, 2016
(Millions)
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 259 $ 39 $ — 3 220
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements — —
Total $ 259 $ 220

Offsetting of Financial Liabilities under Master Netting Agreements with Derivative Counterparties

Gross Amounts not Offset in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet that are Subject

Gross Amount of to Master Netting Agreements
Derivative Liabilities Gross Amount of
Presented in the Eligible Offsetting
March 31, 2017 Consolidated Recognized Cash Catktral Net Amount of
(Millions) Balance Sheet Derivative Assets Pledd Derivative Liabilities
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 77 $ 60 $ — 3 17
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements 6 6
Total $ 83 $ 23
December 31, 2016
(Millions)
Derivatives subject to master netting
agreements $ 93 $ 39 $ — 3 54
Derivatives not subject to master netting
agreements 2 2
Total $ 95 $ 56
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Currency Effects

3M estimates that year-on-year foreign currencysaations effects, including hedging impacts, desed pre-tax
income by approximately $37 million for the threemths ended March 31, 2017. These estimates intladsaction
gains and losses, including derivative instrumeetsigned to reduce foreign currency exchange isite and any
impacts from swapping Venezuelan bolivars into d@lars.

NOTE 9. Fair Value Measurements

3M follows ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosyresth respect to assets and liabilities that aeasured
at fair value on a recurring basis and nonrecurpiagjs. Under the standard, fair value is defireetha exit price, or the
amount that would be received to sell an asseair o transfer a liability in an orderly transactibetween market
participants as of the measurement date. The sthadko establishes a hierarchy for inputs useddasuring fair value
that maximizes the use of observable inputs andhmies the use of unobservable inputs by requitliag the most
observable inputs be used when available. Obserwapiits are inputs market participants would nseiuing the
asset or liability developed based on market dbtaiwed from sources independent of the Compangbbkrvable
inputs are inputs that reflect the Company’s asdiomp about the factors market participants wowld i valuing the
asset or liability developed based upon the béstrimation available in the circumstances. The mmais broken
down into three levels. Level 1 inputs are quotedgs (unadjusted) in active markets for identasdets or liabilities.
Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similasets or liabilities in active markets, quoted psibar identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that ao¢ active, and inputs (other than quoted pricea &ine observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectlyevel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for thetamskability.
Categorization within the valuation hierarchy iséd upon the lowest level of input that is sigmifitto the fair value
measurement.

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Faifiéaon a Recurring Basis:

For 3M, assets and liabilities that are measurddiavalue on a recurring basis primarily relaieavailable-for-sale
marketable securities, available-for-sale investséncluded as part of investments in the Constdid Balance Sheet)
and certain derivative instruments. Derivativesude cash flow hedges, interest rate swaps anshviestment hedges.
The information in the following paragraphs andeatprimarily addresses matters relative to themm€ial assets and
liabilities. Separately, there were no material f@lue measurements with respect to nonfinansises or liabilities
that are recognized or disclosed at fair valudén@ompany’s financial statements on a recurrirgistfar the three
months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016.

3M uses various valuation techniques, which anmgrily based upon the market and income approaghtsrespect
to financial assets and liabilities. Following isl@scription of the valuation methodologies usedHe respective
financial assets and liabilities measured at falue.

Available-for-sale marketable securities — excegtain U.S. municipal securities:

Marketable securities, except certain U.S. munla@paurities, are valued utilizing multiple sourcAsveighted average
market price is used for these securities. Markieep are obtained for these securities from aetyof industry
standard data providers, security master files fiamge financial institutions, and other third-gasburces. These
multiple prices are used as inputs into a distithhiturve-based algorithm to determine the daily\falue to be used.
3M classifies U.S. treasury securities as leveltiile all other marketable securities (excludinga&i@ U.S. municipal
securities) are classified as level 2. Marketablausties are discussed further in Note 6.

Available-for-sale marketable securities — certdis. municipal securities only:
In both 2016 and 2014, 3M obtained municipal bdnadis the City of Nevada, Missouri, which represght’s only

U.S. municipal securities holding as of March 3012 and December 31, 2016. Due to the nature &#gurity, the
valuation method utilized will include the financrealth of the City of Nevada, any recent munitlpand issuances by
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Nevada, and macroeconomic considerations relattktdirection of interest rates and the healtthefoverall
municipal bond market, and as such has been dbsi$ a level 3 security.

Available-for-sale investments:

Investments include equity securities that areetiaid an active market. Closing stock prices aaglifg available from
active markets and are used as being representditiae value. 3M classifies these securitieseagl 1.

Derivative instruments:

The Company’s derivative assets and liabilitieimithe scope of ASC 81Berivatives and Hedgingre required to
be recorded at fair value. The Company’s derivatihat are recorded at fair value include foreigmency forward and
option contracts, commaodity price swaps, interatd swaps, and net investment hedges where théngadgtrument is
recorded at fair value. Net investment hedgesubatforeign currency denominated debt to hedge 3itsnvestment
are not impacted by the fair value measurementatanunder ASC 820, as the debt used as the heitgitngment is
marked to a value with respect to changes in speign currency exchange rates and not with regpesther factors
that may impact fair value.

3M has determined that foreign currency forwardsnmodity price swaps, currency swaps, foreign euyeptions,
interest rate swaps and cross-currency swaps &itomsidered level 2 measurements. 3M uses inghes than quoted
prices that are observable for the asset. Thesgsimpclude foreign currency exchange rates, \itlasi, and interest
rates. Derivative positions are primarily valuethgsstandard calculations/models that use as baiis readily
observable market parameters. Industry standaedptaviders are 3M’s primary source for forward apdt rate
information for both interest rates and currendgsawith resulting valuations periodically validdtthrough third-party
or counterparty quotes and a net present valuarstod cash flows model.

The following tables provide information by levekfassets and liabilities that are measured avédire on a recurring
basis.

Fair Value Measurements

Description Fair Value at Using Inputs Considered as
(Millions) March 31, 2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:

Available-for-sale:
Marketable securities:

Corporate debt securities $ 10 $ — 3 10 $ =
Commercial paper 1 — 1 —
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 89 — 89 —
Asset-backed securities:
Automobile loan related 29 — 29 —
Credit card related 9 — 9 —
U.S. municipal securities 20 — — 20
Derivative instruments — assets:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 151 — 151 —
Interest rate swap contracts 24 — 24 —
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments — liabilities:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 78 — 78 —
Interest rate swap contracts 5 — 5 —
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Fair Value Measurements

Description Fair Value at Using Inputs Considered as
(Millions) December 31, 2016 Level 1 Level 2 Ledl
Assets:

Available-for-sale:
Marketable securities:

Corporate debt securities $ 10 $ — 3 10 $ —
Commercial paper 14 — 14 —
Certificates of deposit/time deposits 197 — 197 —
Asset-backed securities:
Automobile loan related 31 — 31 —
Credit card related 18 — 18 —
Other 7 — 7 —
U.S. municipal securities 20 — — 20
Derivative instruments — assets:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 234 — 234 —
Interest rate swap contracts 25 — 25 —
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments — liabilities:
Foreign currency forward/option contracts 94 — 94 —
Interest rate swap contracts 1 — 1 —

The following table provides a reconciliation oétheginning and ending balances of items measurfait #alue on a
recurring basis in the table above that used saarif unobservable inputs (Level 3).

Three months ended

Marketable securities — certain U.S. municipal seatties only March 31,
(Millions) 2017 2016
Beginning balance $ 20 % 12

Total gains or losses:
Included in earnings — —
Included in other comprehensive income — —
Purchases and issuances — 6
Sales and settlements — —
Transfers in and/or out of level 3 — —
Ending balance $ 20 $ 18

Change in unrealized gains or losses for the pénicldded in earnings for
securities held at the end of the reporting period — —

In addition, the plan assets of 3M’s pension arstretirement benefit plans are measured at fairevah a recurring
basis (at least annually). Refer to Note 11 in 3R046 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Assets and Liabilities that are Measured at Faiféaon a Nonrecurring Basis:

Disclosures are required for certain assets abditias that are measured at fair value, but ammgnized and disclosed
at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in periodsssquent to initial recognition. For 3M, such meaments of fair
value relate primarily to long-lived asset impaints During the three months ended March 31, 20tE/Company
recognized approximately $40 million in long-livadset impairments related to its Electronics aref@nbusiness
segment, with the complete carrying amount of sagdets written off and included in operating incaesults. There
were no material long-lived asset impairments lierthree months ended March 31, 2016.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The Company'’s financial instruments include cash@ash equivalents, marketable securities, accoaogivable,
certain investments, accounts payable, borrowiagd,derivative contracts. The fair values of cash@ash
equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payabteshort-term borrowings and current portioroofg-term debt
approximated carrying values because of the skamt-hature of these instruments. Available-for-sadeketable
securities and investments, in addition to certigirivative instruments, are recorded at fair vakefdicated in the
preceding disclosures. For its long-term debt,Gbenpany utilized third-party quotes to estimate ¥ailues (classified
as level 2). Information with respect to the cargyamounts and estimated fair values of these diaadimstruments
follow:

March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(Millions) Value Value Value Value
Long-term debt, excluding current portion $ 10,802 $ 11,337 $ 10,678 $ 11,168

The fair values reflected above consider the tarhtke related debt absent the impacts of derie#tidging activity.
The carrying amount of long-term debt referenceavalis impacted by certain fixed-to-floating intereate swaps that
are designated as fair value hedges and by thgrdg&in of fixed rate Eurobond securities issuedthiegyCompany as
hedging instruments of the Company’s net investrireits European subsidiaries. Many of 3M’s fixeder bonds were
trading at a premium at March 31, 2017 and DecerBbeP016 due to the low interest rates and tighteaf 3M'’s
credit spreads.

NOTE 10. Commitments and Contingencies
Legal Proceedings:

The Company and some of its subsidiaries are imebim numerous claims and lawsuits, principallyhi@ United
States, and regulatory proceedings worldwide. Thedede various products liability (involving procts that the
Company now or formerly manufactured and soldgliettual property, and commercial claims and latgsincluding
those brought under the antitrust laws, and enwiertal proceedings. Unless otherwise stated, timep@ay is
vigorously defending all such litigation. Additidriaformation about the Company’s process for disafe and
recording of liabilities and insurance receivabigated to legal proceedings can be found in NétsCbmmitments
and Contingencies” in the Company’s Annual ReparForm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016.

The following sections first describe the signifitéegal proceedings in which the Company is inedlvand then
describe the liabilities and associated insuraaceivables the Company has accrued relating sigtsficant legal
proceedings.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Litigation

As of March 31, 2017, the Company is a named defieavith multiple co-defendants, in numerous laitgsim various
courts that purport to represent approximately @ j@8ividual claimants, compared to approximate6® individual
claimants with actions pending at December 31, 2016

The vast majority of the lawsuits and claims reedlby and currently pending against the Compamgallse of some
of the Company’s mask and respirator products arf damages from the Company and other defendarasiéged
personal injury from workplace exposures to aslsesitica, coal mine dust or other occupationaksiésund in
products manufactured by other defendants or gyarahe workplace. A minority of the lawsuits éclaims resolved
by and currently pending against the Company gdgerbege personal injury from occupational expasto asbestos
from products previously manufactured by the Comparhich are often unspecified, as well as prodosasiufactured
by other defendants, or occasionally at Compangnjses.

The Company'’s current volume of new and pendingemais substantially lower than it experiencethatpeak of
filings in 2003. The Company expects that filingctdims by unimpaired claimants in the future waintinue to be at
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much lower levels than in the past. Accordinglg ttumber of claims alleging more serious injuriesluding
mesothelioma and other malignancies, will repreaagrieater percentage of total claims than in #s. @he Company
has prevailed in all eleven cases taken to trgluding nine of the ten cases tried to verdictlisuials occurred in
1999, 2000, 2001, 2003, 2004, 2007, 2015, and 2H®:ribed below), and an appellate reversal in 2008 2001
jury verdict adverse to the Company. The remaiwimsge, tried in 2009, was dismissed by the coufteatlose of
plaintiff's evidence, based on the court’s legatifing that the plaintiff had not presented suffitievidence to support a
jury verdict. In August 2016, 3M received a unanimalefense verdict from a jury in state court imtieky, in 3M's
first respirator trial involving coal mine dust. &lestate of the plaintiff alleged that the 3M 8¥as€pirator is defective
and caused his death because it did not protectrobmmharmful coal mine dust. The jury rejectedimtiéf’s claim and
returned a verdict finding no liability against 3Whe verdict is final as the plaintiff did not fil appeal.

The Company has demonstrated in these past toaépdings that its respiratory protection prodactseffective as
claimed when used in the intended manner and imteaded circumstances. Consequently the Compeligves that
claimants are unable to establish that their médmaditions, even if significant, are attributaldethe Company’s
respiratory protection products. Nonetheless the@amy'’s litigation experience indicates that clamhpersons with
malignant conditions are costlier to resolve tHandlaims of unimpaired persons, and it therefeleebes the average
cost of resolving pending and future claims on ragb@m basis will continue to be higher than ipexienced in prior
periods when the vast majority of claims were desdoy medically unimpaired claimants.

As previously reported, the State of West Virgitlapugh its Attorney General, filed a complain®03 against the
Company and two other manufacturers of respirgtooyection products in the Circuit Court of Lincddounty, West
Virginia, and amended its complaint in 2005. Theeaded complaint seeks substantial, but unspecifi@upensatory
damages primarily for reimbursement of the codegally incurred by the State for worker’'s compéinsaand
healthcare benefits provided to all workers witkggational pneumoconiosis and unspecified pundemmages. The
case was inactive from the fourth quarter of 200 late 2013, other than a case management camferin

March 2011. In November 2013, the State filed aiomato bifurcate the lawsuit into separate liaikind damages
proceedings. At the hearing on the motion, the todeclined to bifurcate the lawsuit. No liabilitpdbeen recorded for
this matter because the Company believes thatitialsi not probable and estimable at this timeatidition, the
Company is not able to estimate a possible losarage of loss given the lack of any meaningful avgey responses by
the State of West Virginia, the otherwise minimetivdty in this case and the fact that the comglaisserts claims
against two other manufacturers where a defendahéige of liability may turn on the law of jointdareveral liability
and by the amount of fault, if any, a jury mighbahte to each defendant if the case is ultimatéedg.

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Liabilities and InsuraReeeivables:

The Company annually conducts a comprehensive tega@w of its respirator mask/asbestos liabilitresonnection
with finalizing and reporting its annual resultsapferations, unless significant changes in tremdgew developments
warrant an earlier review. The Company reviewsmeaead historical claims data, including withounitiation, (i) the
number of pending claims filed against the Comp#iijythe nature and mix of those claims (i.e., fineportion of
claims asserting usage of the Company’s mask pireger products and alleging exposure to eaclsbéstos, silica,
coal or other occupational dusts, and claims plepdse of asbestos-containing products allegedhufaatured by the
Company), (iii) the costs to defend and resolvedpanclaims, and (iv) trends in filing rates anctosts to defend and
resolve claims, (collectively, the “Claims DataAs part of its comprehensive legal review, the Campprovides the
Claims Data to a third party with expertise in detiming the impact of Claims Data on future filitrgnds and costs.
The third party assists the Company in estimatirgcosts to defend and resolve pending and futamas. The
Company uses these estimates to develop its hentés of probable liability.

Developments may occur that could affect the Comisagstimate of its liabilities. These developmentdude, but are
not limited to, significant changes in (i) the ki&ssumptions underlying the Company’s accrual, dioly, the number
of future claims, the nature and mix of those chithe average cost of defending and resolvingngaand in
maintaining trial readiness (ii) trial and appedlautcomes, (iii) the law and procedure applicablidhese claims, and
(iv) the financial viability of other co-defendardgad insurers.
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In the first quarter of 2017, the Company made paysifor legal fees and settlements of $12 miligated to the
respirator mask/asbestos litigation. As of MarchZ117, the Company had an accrual for respiratmskfasbestos
liabilities (excluding Aearo accruals) of $583 naifl. This accrual represents the Company’s beshat of probable
loss and reflects an estimation period for futlaénes that may be filed against the Company apgnoacthe year
2050. The Company cannot estimate the amount agrugop of the range of amounts by which the ligbitiay exceed
the accrual the Company has established becauke ¢j inherent difficulty in projecting the numbef claims that
have not yet been asserted or the time period iohaflaiture claims may be asserted, (ii) the conmptanearly always
assert claims against multiple defendants wheredneages alleged are typically not attributed ttividual defendants
so that a defendant’s share of liability may tunrtloe law of joint and several liability, which caary by state, (iii) the
multiple factors described above that the Compamgsiciers in estimating its liabilities, and (ivetheveral possible
developments described above that may occur thed edfect the Company’s estimate of liabilities.

As of March 31, 2017, the Company’s receivableifisurance recoveries related to the respirator faabkstos
litigation was $4 million. The Company is seekirayerage under the policies of certain insolvent atier insurers.
Once those claims for coverage are resolved, tmep@ay will have collected substantially all of iesnaining
insurance coverage for respirator mask/asbestoa<la

Respirator Mask/Asbestos Litigation — Aearo Tecla@s

On April 1, 2008, a subsidiary of the Company pasgd the stock of Aearo Holding Corp., the paréataro
Technologies (“Aearo”). Aearo manufactured and s@dous products, including personal protectionigaent, such
as eye, ear, head, face, fall and certain respjrgtotection products.

As of March 31, 2017, Aearo and/or other compatfias previously owned and operated Aearo’s regpifatisiness
(American Optical Corporation, Warner-Lambert LLAD) Corp. and Cabot Corporation (“Cabot”)) are named
defendants, with multiple co-defendants, includimg Company, in numerous lawsuits in various caurtghich
plaintiffs allege use of mask and respirator prasland seek damages from Aearo and other defenfiarstbeged
personal injury from workplace exposures to aslsesitica-related, or other occupational dusts ébumproducts
manufactured by other defendants or generallyenatbrkplace.

As of March 31, 2017, the Company, through its Aearbsidiary, had accruals of $19 million for prodiiabilities and
defense costs related to current and future Aegleded asbestos and silica-related claims. Redmbitysfor legal costs,
as well as for settlements and judgments, is ctlyrehared in an informal arrangement among Ae@edot, American
Optical Corporation and a subsidiary of Warner Lanhland their respective insurers (the “Payor Gfpupability is
allocated among the parties based on the numbearawé each company sold respiratory products uhéenO

Safety” brand and/or owned the AO Safety Divisidimerican Optical Corporation and the alleged gearexposure
of the individual plaintiff. Aearo’s share of thertingent liability is further limited by an agreent entered into
between Aearo and Cabot on July 11, 1995. Thiseageat provides that, so long as Aearo pays to Cahoarterly fee
of $100,000, Cabot will retain responsibility aimbility for, and indemnify Aearo against, any puotlliability claims
involving exposure to asbestos, silica, or sificaducts for respirators sold prior to July 11, 39Because of the
difficulty in determining how long a particular mgator remains in the stream of commerce aftemdebld, Aearo and
Cabot have applied the agreement to claims armingf the alleged use of respirators involving@syre to asbestos,
silica or silica products prior to January 1, 199/th these arrangements in place, Aearo’s poteliiaility is limited

to exposures alleged to have arisen from the usespfrators involving exposure to asbestos, siticailica products
on or after January 1, 1997. To date, Aearo hadezldo pay the quarterly fee. Aearo could potdigtize exposed to
additional claims for some part of the pre-July 1995 period covered by its agreement with CabAte#ro elects to
discontinue its participation in this arrangementif Cabot is no longer able to meet its obligatian these matters.

In March 2012, Cabot CSC Corporation and Cabot Qatjon filed a lawsuit against Aearo in the Supe@ourt of
Suffolk County, Massachusetts seeking declaratligfras to the scope of Cabot’s indemnity obligasi under the
July 11, 1995 agreement, including whether Cabstratained liability for coal workers’ pneumocorifoslaims, and
seeking damages for breach of contract. In 204cturt granted Aearo’s motion for summary judgnuentwo
claims, but declined to rule on two issues: thejdiability for certain known coal mine dustiauits; and Cabot's
claim for allocation of liability between injuriedlegedly caused by exposure to coal mine dusirgades allegedly
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caused by exposure to silica dust. Following addil discovery, the parties filed new motions famsnary judgment.

In February 2016, the court ruled in favor of Aearothese two remaining issues, and ordered thadtCand not

Aearo, is solely responsible for all liability fire coal mine dust lawsuits under the 1995 agreer@atot has appealed
with a decision expected in 2017.

Developments may occur that could affect the esérnfAearo’s liabilities. These developments in&ubut are not
limited to: (i) significant changes in the numbéifuture claims, (ii) significant changes in theeaage cost of resolving
claims, (iii) significant changes in the legal =sf defending these claims, (iv) significant chesin the mix and
nature of claims received, (v) trial and appellzaécomes, (vi) significant changes in the law aratpdure applicable
to these claims, (vii) significant changes in tladility allocation among the co-defendants, (Miig financial viability
of members of the Payor Group including exhaustioavailable insurance coverage limits, and/or &xjetermination
that the interpretation of the contractual obligas on which Aearo has estimated its share oflitials inaccurate. The
Company cannot determine the impact of these patetgvelopments on its current estimate of Aeasbare of
liability for these existing and future claimsalfiy of the developments described above were torpttee actual
amount of these liabilities for existing and futataeims could be significantly larger than the amicaccrued.

Because of the inherent difficulty in projecting thumber of claims that have not yet been assahed,omplexity of
allocating responsibility for future claims amoing tPayor Group, and the several possible develojsnigat may occur
that could affect the estimate of Aearo’s liab#litj the Company cannot estimate the amount or @rg@ounts by
which Aearo’s liability may exceed the accrual @@mpany has established.

Environmental Matters and Litigation

The Company’s operations are subject to environatdgavs and regulations including those pertairimgir emissions,
wastewater discharges, toxic substances, and tidihg and disposal of solid and hazardous wastés@able by
national, state, and local authorities around thddy and private parties in the United States@mwad. These laws
and regulations provide, under certain circumstanadoasis for the remediation of contaminationyéstoration of or
compensation for damages to natural resourcedpamersonal injury and property damage claims. Thenpany has
incurred, and will continue to incur, costs andid@xpenditures in complying with these laws aagulations,
defending personal injury and property damage daand modifying its business operations in light
environmental responsibilities. In its effort tdisty its environmental responsibilities and compligh environmental
laws and regulations, the Company has establishetiperiodically updates, policies relating to eowimental
standards of performance for its operations wordigwi

Under certain environmental laws, including thetgdiStates Comprehensive Environmental Responsap€usation
and Liability Act of 1980 and similar state lawlsetCompany may be jointly and severally liablejdgfy with other
companies, for the costs of remediation of envirental contamination at current or former faciliteesd at off-site
locations. The Company has identified numeroustiors, most of which are in the United States, laictvit may have
some liability. Please refer to the section erditiEnvironmental Liabilities and Insurance Receivabldsat follows for
information on the amount of the accrual.

Environmental Matters

As previously reported, the Company has been vatiiptcooperating with ongoing reviews by locahtst, federal
(primarily the U.S. Environmental Protection Ager{&PA)), and international agencies of possibleéremmental and
health effects of various perfluorinated compoummasuding perfluorooctanyl compounds such as perfhoctanoate
(“PFOA"), perfluorooctane sulfonate (“PFOS”), omsiar compounds (“PFCs”). As a result of its phasg-decision in
May 2000, the Company no longer manufactures padluctanyl compounds. The company ceased manuifagtand
using the vast majority of these compounds witlmpraximately two years of the phase-out announcénaed ceased
all manufacturing and the last significant usehig themistry by the end of 2008. Through its ongdife cycle
management and its raw material composition idieatibn processes associated with the Companyisipsicovering
the use of all persistent and bio-accumulative riete the Company continues to control or eliméntdte presence of
certain PFCs in purchased materials or as bypredoncome of 3M’s fluorochemical manufacturing Eeses,
products, and waste streams.
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Regulatory activities concerning PFOA and/or PFO/tiaue in the United States, Europe and elsewlasick pefore
certain international bodies. These activitiesudel gathering of exposure and use information,agsgdessment, and
consideration of regulatory approaches. In Oct@®d6, the European Commission notified the Worlader
Organization of a draft regulation to restrict PF@#d its related substances under the EU’s REACguR&on
(Registration, Evaluation, Authorization, and Riesibn of Chemicals). If adopted, the regulationulebrestrict PFOA
and its related substances to concentrations raiggrthan 25 parts per billion in constituents thieo substances, in
mixtures, and in articles. As the database of egidf both chemicals has expanded, the EPA hasopeeehuman
health effects documents summarizing the availdata from these studies. In February 2014, the iBRiated external
peer review of its draft human health effects doents for PFOA and PFOS. The peer review panelmet i

August 2014. In May 2016, the EPA announced lifetimealth advisory levels for PFOA and PFOS at 76 peer
trillion (superseding the provisional levels esistitd by the EPA in 2009 of 400 parts per trillflonPFOA and 200
parts per trillion for PFOS). Where PFOA and PF@Sfaund together, EPA recommends that the coraiimbs be
added together, and the lifetime health advisoryPiBOA and PFOS combined is also 70 parts peotrilLifetime
health advisories, while not enforceable, servguidance and are benchmarks for determining if entrations of
chemicals in tap water from public utilities aréestor public consumption. In an effort to collestposure information
under the Safe Drinking Water Act, the EPA publgsba May 2, 2012 a list of unregulated substarioefjding six
PFCs, required to be monitored during the perici328015 by public water system suppliers to deteentire extent of
their occurrence. Through July 2016, the EPA regubréesults for 4,909 public water supplies natialevBased on the
2016 lifetime health advisory, 13 public water Siggpexceed the level for PFOA and 46 exceed the fer PFOS. A
technical advisory issued by EPA in September 2ii&boratory analysis of drinking water samplegest that 65
public water supplies had exceeded the combineal fev PFOA and PFOS. These results are based @oromore
samples collected during the period 2012-2015 andad necessarily reflect current conditions ofsthpublic water
supplies. EPA reporting does not identify the searaf the PFOA and PFOS in the public water sugplie

The Company is continuing to make progress in askwunder the supervision of state regulatorsddress its historic
disposal of PFC-containing waste associated withufaturing operations at the Decatur, Alabamataget Grove,
Minnesota, and Cordova, lllinois plants.

As previously reported, the Company entered intolantary remedial action agreement with the Alabddepartment
of Environmental Management (ADEM) to address ttesence of PFCs in the soil at the Company’s matwfiag
facility in Decatur, Alabama. Pursuant to a perissued by ADEM, for approximately twenty years, @@mpany
incorporated its wastewater treatment plant sluaiggaining PFCs in fields at its Decatur facilifter a review of the
available options to address the presence of Pr@®isoil, ADEM agreed that the preferred reméatiabption is to
use a multilayer cap over the former sludge incafion areas on the manufacturing site with subsetjgroundwater
migration controls and treatment. Implementatiothet plan continues and is expected to be conplat2018.

The Company continues to work with the Minnesotlufion Control Agency (MPCA) pursuant to the terofghe
previously disclosed May 2007 Settlement Agreenmaaidt Consent Order to address the presence ofrc@fs in the
soil and groundwater at former disposal sites irshifegton County, Minnesota (Oakdale and Woodbung) & the
Company’s manufacturing facility at Cottage GroMnnesota. Under this agreement, the Company’'sjpat
obligations include (i) evaluating releases of@@rPFCs from these sites and proposing respotisssic(ii) providing
treatment or alternative drinking water upon idigirig any level exceeding a Health Based Value (\HBor Health
Risk Limit (“HRL") (i.e., the amount of a chemica drinking water determined by the Minnesota Dépant of
Health (MDH) to be safe for human consumption avéfetime) for certain PFCs for which a HBV andHRL exists
as a result of contamination from these site9;r@imediating identified sources of other PFChas¢ sites that are not
controlled by actions to remediate PFOA and PF®@8;(&) sharing information with the MPCA about tzén
perfluorinated compounds. During 2008, the MPCAiéggsformal decisions adopting remedial optiongtierformer
disposal sites in Washington County, Minnesota @@#kand Woodbury). In August 2009, the MPCA issadarmal
decision adopting remedial options for the Compai@ottage Grove manufacturing facility. During #pging and
summer of 2010, 3M began implementing the agreet upmedial options at the Cottage Grove and Wogdsites.
3M commenced the remedial option at the Oakdageisitate 2010. At each location the remedial optiorere
recommended by the Company and approved by the MR€@ediation work has been completed at the Oalatad
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Woodbury sites, and they are in an operational teaance mode. Remediation will continue at theag@ttGrove site
during 2017.

In August 2014, the Illinois EPA approved a requssthe Company to establish a groundwater manageroae at its
manufacturing facility in Cordova, Illinois, whidhcludes ongoing pumping of impacted site grounéwajroundwater
monitoring and routine reporting of results.

The Company cannot predict what additional regueaations arising from the foregoing proceedingd activities, if
any, may be taken regarding such compounds orathgeguences of any such actions.

Environmental Litigation

As previously reported, a former employee filedugported class action lawsuit in 2002 in the Cir€ourt of Morgan
County, Alabama (the St. John case), seeking wtstidmages and alleging that the plaintiffs sufféear, increased
risk, subclinical injuries, and property damagerirexposure to certain perfluorochemicals at or tleaCompany’s
Decatur, Alabama, manufacturing facility. The canr005 granted the Company’s motion to dismissntamed
plaintiff's personal injury-related claims on thadis that such claims are barred by the exclusprityisions of the
state’s Workers Compensation Act. The plaintifisunsel filed an amended complaint in November 2061ing the
case to property damage claims on behalf of a ptegalass of residents and property owners irvitiaity of the
Decatur plant. In June 2015, the plaintiffs filedaanended complaint adding additional defendantsyding BFI
Waste Management Systems of Alabama, LLC; BFI Wisksteagement of North America, LLC; the City of Daoa
Alabama; Morgan County, Alabama; Municipal Utilgi@oard of Decatur; and Morgan County, Alabamaladliecatur
Utilities.

In 2005, the judge in a second purported classmataiwsuit filed by three residents of Morgan Coutlabama,
seeking unstated compensatory and punitive damagelsing alleged damage to their property from ssions of
certain perfluorochemical compounds from the Corgfgabecatur, Alabama, manufacturing facility thatrherly
manufactured those compounds (the Chandler caaelegl the Company’s motion to abate the case,teféde putting
the case on hold pending the resolution of clagffication issues in the St. John case. Despiesthy, plaintiffs filed
an amended complaint seeking damages for allegsdie injuries and property damage on behalf efthmed
plaintiffs and the members of a purported classfuiher action in the case is expected unlesuatitithe stay is
lifted.

In February 2009, a resident of Franklin Countyal¥eima, filed a purported class action lawsuit enGlircuit Court of
Franklin County (the Stover case) seeking compengatamages and injunctive relief based on theiegipdn by the
Decatur utility’s wastewater treatment plant of teagter treatment sludge to farmland and grasslarithe state that
allegedly contain PFOA, PFOS and other perfluoratbals. The named plaintiff seeks to representaaschf all
persons within the State of Alabama who have had&RPFOS, and other perfluorochemicals releasateposited on
their property. In March 2010, the Alabama Supr&oert ordered the case transferred from Franklinr®pto
Morgan County. In May 2010, consistent with its dilémg of the other matters, the Morgan County Gir€@ourt abated
this case, putting it on hold pending the resoluttbthe class certification issues in the St. Jodse.

In October 2015, West Morgan-East Lawrence Wat&ever Authority (Water Authority) filed an individl
complaint against 3M Company, Dyneon, L.L.C, andkiDaAmerica, Inc., in the U.S. District Court ftlre Northern
District of Alabama. The complaint also includepresentative plaintiffs who brought the complainteehalf of
themselves, and a class of all owners and posseskproperty who use water provided by the Watetharity and five
local water works to which the Water Authority slipg water (collectively, the “Water Utilities”).lie complaint seeks
compensatory and punitive damages and injunctiief lzased on allegations that the defendants’ ¢bais) including
PFOA and PFOS from their manufacturing process&etatur, have contaminated the water in the Tese@eRiver at
the water intake, and that the chemicals canno¢fm®ved by the water treatment processes utiligetids\Water
Authority. In September 2016, the court granted 8Mbotion to dismiss plaintiffs’ trespass claimshaprejudice,
negligence claims for personal injuries, and pavatisance claims, and denied the motion to disthesglaintiffs’
negligence claims for property damage, public mésaabatement of nuisance, battery and wantonness.
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In June 2016, the Tennessee Riverkeeper, Inc. (&eper), a non-profit corporation, filed a lawsnithe U.S. District
Court for the Northern District of Alabama agai@; BFI Waste Systems of Alabama; the City of Dacaflabama;
and the Municipal Utilities Board of Decatur, Morg@ounty, Alabama. The complaint alleges that #ferntdants
violated the Resource Conservation and RecoverynA@bnnection with the disposal of certain PFGstilgh their
ownership and operation of their respective sité® complaint further alleges such practices magegmt an imminent
and substantial endangerment to health and/onmthieomment and that Riverkeeper has suffered aficcemtinue to
suffer irreparable harm caused by defendants’raila abate the endangerment unless the courtsgitatequested
relief, including declaratory and injunctive relidfhe Company believes that the complaint lackdtmer

In July 2016, the City of Lake Elmo filed a lawstntthe U.S. District Court for the District of Miesota against 3M
alleging that the City suffered damages from drigkivater supplies contaminated with PFCs, includiogts to
construct alternative sources of drinking water.

In September 2016, the Water Works and Sewer Baiatte City of Gadsden, Alabama filed a lawsuithe Circuit
Court of Etowah County Alabama against 3M and vagicarpet manufacturers. The complaint allegesRRéts from
the defendants’ facilities contaminated the CoosaiRas its raw water source for drinking water ardks unstated
damages for the installation and operation ofteafibn system, expenses to monitor PFC levelsa@stdrofits and
sales.

In November 2016, the Town of Barnstable, Massaettsifiled an individual action in the U.S. Distr@ourt for the
District of Massachusetts seeking unstated compeatysand punitive damages and other relief agalvstind other
suppliers of AFFF for alleged contamination of #uiifer supplying drinking water to the Hyannis eratystem. The
town seeks to recover costs associated with thestigation, treatment, remediation, and monitoahgrinking water
supplies allegedly contaminated with certain PF&=dun AFFF. In January 2017, the County of Babista
Massachusetts, filed an individual action in th& \District Court for the District of Massachusetteking unstated
compensatory and punitive damages and other fglidfiding indemnification and contribution in cawgtion with
claims asserted against the County by the Townanfiable) against 3M and other suppliers of ARFFafleged
contamination of the aquifer supplying drinking @sato the Hyannis water system.

In January 2017, several hundred plaintiffs sued i@vsubsidiary Dyneon, and Daikin American (Defents) in
Lawrence and Morgan Counties, Alabama. The pl&ngéife owners of property, residents, and holdepsaperty
interests who receive their water from the West déorEast Lawrence Water and Sewer Authority (AutiprThey
assert common law claims for negligence, nuisatnespass, wantonness, and battery, and they seektine relief
and punitive damages. The plaintiffs contend thatdefendants own and operate manufacturing apdshsfacilities
in Decatur that have released and continue togelP&OA, PFOS and related chemicals into the greatsat and
surface water of their sites, resulting in discleargo the Tennessee River. The plaintiffs alsaeaa that the
defendants have discharged into Bakers Creek anBdbatur Utilities Dry Creek Wastewater Treatni@lant, which,
in turn, discharges wastewater containing thesend#s into the Tennessee River. The plaintiffstend that, as a
result the alleged discharges, the water suppljethd Authority to the plaintiffs was, and is, camtinated with PFOA,
PFOS, and related chemicals at a level dangerousr@ans.

As of March 31, 2017, nine purported class actisaee filed against 3M and other defendants in faldar state courts -
three in federal court in Colorado, five in federalrt in Pennsylvania, and one in state courtéewN ork. An

individual complaint was also filed in the fedecalrt in Pennsylvania. The complaints seek unstddedages and
other remedies, such as medical monitoring, aredjalthat the plaintiffs suffered personal injurd gmoperty damage
from drinking water supplies contaminated with agrtPFCs used in Aqueous Film Forming Foam (AFEEuerent or
former airports and air force military bases lodateColorado, Pennsylvania, and New York.

In December 2010, the State of Minnesota, by iterAty General Lori Swanson, acting in its capaagtyrustee of the
natural resources of the State of Minnesota, filéawsuit in Hennepin County District Court agaiBst to recover
damages (including unspecified assessment costseandnable attorney’s fees) for alleged injurydestruction of, and
loss of use of certain of the State’s natural resssiunder the Minnesota Environmental Responsé iabdity Act
(MERLA) and the Minnesota Water Pollution ContratAMWPCA), as well as statutory nuisance and comfaa/
claims of trespass, nuisance, and negligence w#pect to the presence of PFCs in the groundveatdace water, fish
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or other aquatic life, and sediments (the “NRD LaiV}. The State also seeks declarations under MkRiat 3M is
responsible for all damages the State may sufftrarfuture for injuries to natural resources fraleases of PFCs into
the environment, and under MWPCA that 3M is resfim@dor compensation for future loss or destructid fish,
aquatic life, and other damages.

In November 2011, the Metropolitan Council filedhation to intervene and a complaint in the NRD Laitvseeking
compensatory damages and other legal, declaratorngquitable relief, including reasonable attorhéess, for costs
and fees that the Metropolitan Council allegesilitlve required to assess at some time in the éuifuthe MPCA
imposes restrictions on Metropolitan Council’'s PFRi&harges to the Mississippi River, including itgtallation and
maintenance of a water treatment system. The Melitap Council’s intervention motion was based exesal theories,
including common law negligence, and statutorymstaunder MERLA for response costs, and under thebtota
Environmental Rights Act (MERA) for declaratory aequitable relief against 3M for PFOS and other PB{lution of
the waters and sediments of the Mississippi Ri®#r.did not object to the motion to intervene. Imdary 2012, 3M
answered the Metropolitan Council’'s complaint aifebfa counterclaim alleging that the Metropolitaouncil
discharges PFCs to the Mississippi River and diggsaPFC-containing sludge and bio solids fromammore of its
wastewater treatment plants onto agricultural laarttlocal area landfills. Accordingly, 3M’s comipliaagainst the
Metropolitan Council asks that if the court finthsit the State is entitled to any of the damagesaks, 3M be awarded
contribution and apportionment from the Metropalitaouncil, including attorneys’ fees, under MERLahd
contribution from and liability for the MetropolitaCouncil’s proportional share of damages awarddti¢ State under
the MWPCA, as well as under statutory nuisancecamimon law theories of trespass, nuisance, andgeage. 3M
also seeks declaratory relief under MERA.

In April 2012, 3M filed a motion to disqualify tH&tate of Minnesota’s counsel, Covington & BurlihgP (Covington).
In October 2012, the court granted 3M’s motionitmgdalify Covington as counsel to the State andta¢e and
Covington appealed the court’s disqualificatiottte Minnesota Court of Appeals. In July 2013, thieMésota Court of
Appeals affirmed the district court’s disqualificat order. In October 2013, the Minnesota Supremeryranted both
the State’s and Covington’s petition for reviewtlod decision of the Minnesota Court of AppealsApmil 2014, the
Minnesota Supreme Court affirmed in part, reveisguhrt, and remanded the case to the districttdoufurther
proceedings. The district court took evidence @ndisqualification issues at a hearing in Octolf¥r52 In February
2016, the district court ruled that Covington vielhthe professional ethics rule against represgiaticlient (here the
State of Minnesota) in the same or substantialbted matter where that person’s interests arermaliyeadverse to the
interests of a former client (3M). The district cpunowever, denied 3M’s motion to disqualify Cogian because it
further found that 3M impliedly waived by delayitmassert the conflict. Other activity in the cashich had been
stayed pending the outcome of the disqualificatssne, has resumed. Trial is scheduled to begiamuary 2018. In a
separate but related action, the Company filedisdiie Ramsey County District Court against Cotamgfor breach of
its fiduciary duties to the Company and for breathontract arising out of Covington’s represemtatdf the State of
Minnesota in the NRD Lawsuit. In September 2016,aburt granted 3M’s motion for leave to amenddbeplaint to
plead punitive damages. In February 2017, Covinggitied this lawsuit with a payment by Covingtarite insurer to
3M that is not material to 3M’s results of operasmr financial condition.

For environmental litigation matters describedhiis section for which a liability, if any, has bemtorded, the
Company believes the amount recorded, as welleapdhsible loss or range of loss in excess of steblished accrual
is not material to the Company’s consolidated rtssafl operations or financial condition. For thasatters for which a
liability has not been recorded, the Company beleany such liability is not probable and estimaviéd the Company
is not able to estimate a possible loss or randessfat this time.

Environmental Liabilities and Insurance Receivables

As of March 31, 2017, the Company had recordedliligls of $36 million for estimated “environmentamediation”
costs based upon an evaluation of currently availidzts with respect to each individual site alsth aecorded related
insurance receivables of $8 million. The Compartprds liabilities for remediation costs on an undimted basis
when they are probable and reasonably estimahierghty no later than the completion of feasibiktydies or the
Company’s commitment to a plan of action. Liat®itifor estimated costs of environmental remediatiepending on
the site, are based primarily upon internal ordttgiarty environmental studies, and estimates #staumber,
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participation level and financial viability of amgher potentially responsible parties, the exténhe contamination and
the nature of required remedial actions. The Compaljusts recorded liabilities as further inforratidevelops or
circumstances change. The Company expects thdt gay the amounts recorded over the periods wfediation for
the applicable sites, currently ranging up to 28rge

As of March 31, 2017, the Company had recordedliligls of $29 million for “other environmental ldlities” based
upon an evaluation of currently available factgniplement the Settlement Agreement and ConsentrQvitle the
MPCA, the remedial action agreement with ADEM, ém@dddress trace amounts of perfluorinated comp®imd
drinking water sources in the City of Oakdale, Mirata, as well as presence in the soil and grouedwahthe
Company’s manufacturing facilities in Decatur, Adafla, and Cottage Grove, Minnesota, and at two fodisposal
sites in Washington County, Minnesota (Oakdale\Ambdbury). The Company expects that most of thadipg will
occur over the next four years. During the firshiqer of 2017, the Company collected from its iesthe outstanding
receivable of $15 million related to “other envimental liabilities.”

It is difficult to estimate the cost of environmahtompliance and remediation given the uncersntegarding the
interpretation and enforcement of applicable emvinental laws and regulations, the extent of enviremtal
contamination and the existence of alternativertipanethods. Developments may occur that coula tafffe
Company’s current assessment, including, but natdd to: (i) changes in the information availatdgarding the
environmental impact of the Company’s operatiors products; (i) changes in environmental regulaicchanges in
permissible levels of specific compounds in drigkimater sources, or changes in enforcement theanigpolicies,
including efforts to recover natural resource daesagiii) new and evolving analytical and remediattechniques;
(iv) success in allocating liability to other potially responsible parties; and (v) the financielbility of other
potentially responsible parties and third-partyeimhitors. For sites included in both “environmemngathediation
liabilities” and “other environmental liabilitiesgt which remediation activity is largely complated remaining activity
relates primarily to operation and maintenancénefremedy, including required post-remediation nawimg, the
Company believes the exposure to loss in excegeaimount accrued would not be material to the gzmy's
consolidated results of operations or financialditton. However, for locations at which remediatexctivity is largely
ongoing, the Company cannot estimate a possibéedosange of loss in excess of the associatedlss$tad accruals
for the reasons described above.

Other Matters
Department of Labor Investigation

The U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) notified 3M ipid 2015 that it had commenced an investigatioBdfs
pension plan pursuant to the federal Employee &atint Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (ERIBhe DOL
has stated its investigation relates to certavapei equity investments, plan expenses, seculéneing, and
distributions of plan benefits. In response toaerDOL requests, 3M produced documents and magéogaes
available for interviews. In December 2016, the Di€dued certain subpoenas to 3M and 3M Investmeamagement
Corp. relating to this investigation. 3M has proeldiadditional responsive documents and is cooperatith the DOL
in its investigation. The DOL has not providedragiine for the completion of its investigation.

Product Liability Litigation

One customer obtained an order in the French cageist 3M Purification SAS (a French subsidianypctober 2011
appointing an expert to determine the amount ofroengial loss and property damage allegedly caugedidgedly
defective 3M filters used in the customer’s mantifeing process. An Austrian subsidiary of this saoastomer also
filed a claim against 3M Austria GmbH (an Austreubsidiary) and 3M Purification SAS in the Austrizourts

in September 2012 seeking damages for the sang ika Company reached an agreement in principettte those
two cases and expects to finalize the settlemennglthe second quarter of 2017. The amounts agregdeach of
these settlements were not material to the Compargyisolidated results of operations or finanadaldition.

As of March 31, 2017, the Company is a named defienich lawsuits involving approximately 1,790 plifiis
(compared to approximately 1,260 plaintiffs at Dmber 31, 2016), most of which are pending in federatate court
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in Minnesota, in which the plaintiffs claim theyderwent various joint arthroplasty, cardiovascudenq other surgeries
and later developed surgical site infections dui¢ouse of the Bair Hugger™ patient warming sysfEne complaints
seek damages and other relief based on theorasiaifliability, negligence, breach of express angdlied warranties,
failure to warn, design and manufacturing defeetidulent and/or negligent misrepresentation/cdnueat, unjust
enrichment, and violations of various state consunaeid, deceptive or unlawful trade practices anéilse advertising
acts. One case, from the U.S. District Court fer\Western District of Tennessee is a putative naiide class action.
The U.S. Judicial Panel on Multidistrict LitigatigDL) granted the plaintiffs’ motion to transfemd consolidate all
cases pending in federal courts to the U.S. Dis@taurt for the District of Minnesota to be managed multi-district
proceeding during the pre-trial phase of the ltiga In June 2016, the Company was served withtative class action
filed in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice &irCanadian residents who underwent various jitttroplasty,
cardiovascular, and other surgeries and later dpeel surgical site infections due to the use oBthie Hugger™
patient warming system. The representative pldis¢i€ks relief (including punitive damages) undan&lian law based
on theories similar to those asserted in the MDie Bair Hugger™ product line was acquired by 3Mad of the
2010 acquisition of Arizant, Inc., a leading marutfaer of patient warming solutions designed tovprn hypothermia
and maintain normal body temperature in surgictinggs. No liability has been recorded for this taabecause the
Company believes that any such liability is nothgaiole and estimable at this time.

In September 2011, 3M Oral Care launched Lava @#nCAD/CAM dental restorative material. The praduas
originally indicated for inlay, onlay, veneer, atrdwn applications. In June 2015, 3M Oral Care mtduly removed
crown applications from the product’s instructidosuse, following reports from dentists of pat®rdrowns
debonding, requiring additional treatment. The pidemains on the market for other applicatioh.cemmunicated
with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, as vealregulators outside the United States. 3M aleorned
customers and distributors of its action, offeeadcept return of unused materials and providendsf. As of March
31, 2017, there are three lawsuits pending tha¢ Wwesught by dentists and dental practices agaMstrhe complaints
allege 3M marketed and sold defective Lava Ultinmatderial used for dental crowns to dentists andeuvarious
theories, seek monetary damages (replacementaudtsusiness reputation loss), punitive damagsgpdjement of
profits, injunction from marketing and selling Lalétimate for use in dental crowns, statutory péaa) and attorneys’
fees and costs. One lawsuit, pending in the U.Stribi Court for the District of Minnesota, nameésaintiffs and
seeks certification of a class action of dentistthie United States and its territories, and adtiwvely seeks subclasses in
13 states. The other two lawsuits are individuahplaints against 3M — one in Madison County, lli;mand the other in
the U.S. District Court for the District of Minndso

For product liability litigation matters describadthis section for which a liability has been rested, the Company
believes the amount recorded is not material tdCbmpany’s consolidated results of operationsrarftial condition.
In addition, the Company is not able to estimap@ssible loss or range of loss in excess of thabéished accruals at
this time.
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NOTE 11. Stock-Based Compensation

The 3M 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan, as discuss&M’s 2016 Annual Report on Form 10-K, provides the
issuance or delivery of up to 123,965,000 sharédvwtommon stock pursuant to awards granted utdeplan.
Awards may be issued in the form of incentive stoplons, nonqualified stock options, progressieels options,
stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, ret#d stock units, other stock awards, and perfoceamits and
performance shares. The remaining total sharetablaifor grant under LTIP Program are 29,802,%l6faMarch 31,
2017.

The Company’s annual stock option and restrictedkstinit grant is made in February to provide argjrand
immediate link between the performance of individuduring the preceding year and the size of theitual stock
compensation grants. The grant to eligible emplsyeses the closing stock price on the grant dateoénting rules
require recognition of expense under a non-subigtamésting period approach, requiring compensagxpense
recognition when an employee is eligible to retiEmployees are considered eligible to retire atsgand after having
completed ten years of service. This retiree-eiiggmpulation represents 35 percent of the 201 dargrant stock-
based compensation award expense dollars; therdiigheer stock-based compensation expense is reagahim the
first quarter.

In addition to the annual grants, the Company makiesr minor grants of stock options, restrictextktunits and other
stock-based grants. The Company issues cash segsigitted stock units and stock appreciationtsigh certain
countries. These grants do not result in the isstiaficommon stock and are considered immaterigh&yompany.

Amounts recognized in the financial statements wagpect to stock-based compensation programshviiitude stock
options, restricted stock, restricted stock umiesformance shares and the General Employees’ $toabhase Plan
(GESPP), are provided in the following table. Calpied stock-based compensation amounts were retialeor the
three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016.

Stock-Based Compensation Expense

Three months ended

March 31,

(Millions) 2017 2016

Cost of sales $ 23 $ 23
Selling, general and administrative expenses 98 96
Research, development and related expenses 26 25
Stock-based compensation expenses $ 147 $ 144
Income tax benefits $ (148 $ (127
Stock-based compensation expenses (benefits)f et o $ 1 $ 17
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Stock Option Program

The following table summarizes stock option acyidtiring the three months ended March 31, 2017:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Number of Average Contractual Intrinsic Value
Options Exercise Price Life (months) (millions)
Under option —
January 1 36,196,232 $ 112.07
Granted:
Annual 5,409,628 175.93
Exercised (3,037,302 89.29
Canceled (42,849 156.38
March 31 38,525,70¢ $ 122.78 76 $ 2,641
Options exercisable
March 31 27,691,36¢ $ 106.36 63 $ 2,353

Stock options vest over a period from one yeahted years with the expiration date at 10 yeans flate of grant. As
of March 31, 2017, there was $125 million of comgsion expense that has yet to be recognized defateon-vested
stock option based awards. This expense is expéxteel recognized over the remaining weighted-ayereesting
period of 25 months. The total intrinsic valuestuick options exercised were $286 million and $2f8on during the
three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, ra@gplyctCash received from options exercised wasl$2#lion and
$315 million for the three months ended March 311, 2and 2016, respectively. The Company’s actuabémefits
realized for the tax deductions related to the @serof employee stock options were $106 milliod 83 million for
the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 201tectsely.

For the primary 2017 annual stock option grantyteéhted average fair value at the date of graad galculated using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and the agstions that follow.

Stock Option Assumptions

Annual
2017
Exercise price $ 175.76
Risk-free interest rate 2.1%
Dividend yield 2.5%
Expected volatility 17.3%
Expected life (months) 78
Black-Scholes fair value $ 23.51

Expected volatility is a statistical measure of éimount by which a stock price is expected to €flat# during a period.
For the 2017 annual grant date, the Company esithe expected volatility based upon the averdgfgeamost recent
one year volatility, the median of the term of ewpected life rolling volatility, the median of theost recent term of
the expected life volatility of 3M stock, and theglied volatility on the grant date. The expecteaht assumption is
based on the weighted average of historical grants.
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Restricted Stock and Restricted Stock Units

The following table summarizes restricted stock eesdricted stock unit activity during the threentts ended
March 31, 2017:

Weighted
Average
Number of Grant Date
Awards Fair Value
Nonvested balanc—
As of January 1 2,185,046 $ 145.64
Granted
Annual 604,256 176.10
Other 571 175.17
Vested (724,705) 127.57
Forfeited (12,014 153.49
As of March 31 2,053,154 $ 160.94

As of March 31, 2017, there was $133 million of g@msation expense that has yet to be recognizaigdeio non-
vested restricted stock units and restricted stbhis expense is expected to be recognized oveethaining weighted-
average vesting period of 26 months. The totalMalue of restricted stock units and restrictedlsthat vested during
the three months ended March 31, 2017 and 201&&2% million and $133 million, respectively. Ther@oany’s
actual tax benefits realized for the tax deducti@tated to the vesting of restricted stock unitd eestricted stock was
$47 million and $50 million for the three monthgled March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Restricted stock units granted generally vest tigezgs following the grant date assuming continemegloyment.
Dividend equivalents equal to the dividends payall¢he same number of shares of 3M common stakia®n these
restricted stock units during the vesting peridthaugh no dividend equivalents are paid on anthe$e restricted stock
units that are forfeited prior to the vesting d@@idends are paid out in cash at the vest dateesimicted stock units.
Since the rights to dividends are forfeitable, ¢hisrno impact on basic earnings per share caicokatWeighted
average restricted stock unit shares outstandmgnatuded in the computation of diluted earnings ghare.

Performance Shares

Instead of restricted stock units, the Company makeual grants of performance shares to membésefecutive
management. The 2017 performance criteria for thes®rmance shares (organic volume growth, retarmvested
capital, free cash flow conversion, and earninggbare growth) were selected because the Compéirydxethat they
are important drivers of long-term stockholder eallihe number of shares of 3M common stock thaldcactually be
delivered at the end of the three-year performamec®d may be anywhere from 0% to 200% of eachoperdince share
granted, depending on the performance of the Coyngaring such performance period. Non-substanteging
requires that expense for the performance sharescognized over one or three years depending @mwhch
individual became a 3M executive. The 2017 perforceashare grant accrues dividends, therefore tra dgate fair
value is equal to the closing stock price on the @& grant. Since the rights to dividends aredable, there is no
impact on basic earnings per share calculationsghél average performance shares whose perfornpeenicedl is
complete are included in computation of dilutech@ags per share.
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The following table summarizes performance shatieigcduring the three months ended March 31, 2017

Weighted
Average
Number of Grant Date
Awards Fair Value
Undistributed balance —

As of January 1 656,278 $ 142.98
Granted 181,898 189.75
Distributed (312,173) 124.63
Performance change 110,965 174.05
Forfeited (1,682) 159.53

As of March 31 635,286 $ 170.77

As of March 31, 2017, there was $51 million of cangation expense that has yet to be recognizededla
performance shares. This expense is expectedrecbgnized over the remaining weighted-averageimgsmperiod of
12 months. The total fair values of performanceehéhat were distributed were $55 million and #%Hion for the
three months ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, regelyciThe Company’s actual tax benefits realizedthe tax
deductions related to the distribution of perforemahares were $15 million for both the three meetided March 31,
2017 and 2016.

NOTE 12. Business Segments

3M'’s businesses are organized, managed and iniegraliped into segments based on differences kets
products, technologies and services. 3M managepésations in five business segments: Indust8afety and
Graphics; Health Care; Electronics and Energy;@adsumer. 3M’s five business segments bring togettimon or
related 3M technologies, enhancing the developmgininovative products and services and providmgefficient
sharing of business resources. Transactions anamugtable segments are recorded at cost. 3M istegrated
enterprise characterized by substantial intersego@aperation, cost allocations and inventory tfarss Therefore,
management does not represent that these segifiepeated independently, would report the opatpincome
information shown. The difference between operaititgme and pre-tax income relates to interestrivecand interest
expense, which are not allocated to business seégmen

Effective in the first quarter of 2017, as parBM’s continuing effort to improve the alignmentitsf businesses around
markets and customers the Company made the folipahianges:

1. Integrated the former Renewable Energy Division emisting divisions;

2. Combined two divisions to form the Automotive andr@space Solutions Division; and

3. Consolidated U.S. customer account activity - intipgedual credit reporting

Integration of former Renewable Energy Division
* The (a) solar and wind and (b) energy product l{iaésng with certain technology previously includad

Corporate and Unallocated) of the former Renewgblergy Division (RED) were integrated into the &rig
Electrical Markets Division and Electronics Matésiand Solutions Division, respectively, within the
Electronics and Energy business segment. In additie former RED’s window film product lines were
moved into the Commercial Solutions Division withihe Safety and Graphics business segment. Thigyeha
resulted in a decrease in previously reported alessand operating income for total year 2016 @B3%aillion
and $38 million, respectively, in the ElectroniceldEnergy segment. These decreases were offsebdy7a
million and $29 million increase in previously retsa total year 2016 net sales and operating income
respectively, in the Safety and Graphics businegment and a $4 million decrease and $9 millioneiase in
previously reported net sales and operating incoespectively, in Corporate and Unallocated.

Creation of Automotive and Aerospace Solutions Biein

» The former Automotive Division and Aerospace andan@eercial Transportation Division (both within the
Industrial business segment) were combined to etthat Automotive and Aerospace Solutions Division.
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Because this realignment was within the Indusbiainess segment, it had no impact on businessesggm
reporting.

Consolidation of U.S. customer account activitympacting dual credit reporting
* The Company consolidated its customer accountigctivthe U.S. into more centralized sales disrio

better serve customers. As discussed further béMahusiness segment reporting measures include dua
credit to business segments for certain U.S. saldgelated operating income. This dual credibiseldl on
which business segment provides customer accotiwitac‘sales district”) with respect to a partiem product
sold in the U.S. Previously, a customer in the th8y have been aligned to several sales distréstscéated
with multiple divisions or segments based on thtivildual products the customer purchased across 3M’
portfolio. The alignment of U.S. customer accountfewer, more focused sales districts therefoengkd the
attribution of dual credit across 3M’s businessnsents. As a result, previously reported aggregasiniess
segment net sales and operating income for total 3@16 increased $163 million and $36 million,
respectively, offset by similar increases in theglation of dual credit net sales and operatirgpme
amounts.

The financial information presented herein reflebtsimpact of the preceding product line reportthgnge between
business segments for all periods presented.

Business Segment Information

Three months ended

March 31,
(Millions) 2017 2016
Net Sales
Industrial $ 2,709 $ 2,599
Safety and Graphics 1,527 1,477
Health Care 1,423 1,391
Electronics and Energy 1,210 1,089
Consumer 1,042 1,050
Corporate and Unallocated 2 —
Elimination of Dual Credit (228 (297
Total Company $ 7685 $ 7,409
Operating Income
Industrial $ 625 $ 622
Safety and Graphics 399 359
Health Care 434 457
Electronics and Energy 225 195
Consumer 222 238
Corporate and Unallocated (81) (40)
Elimination of Dual Credit (50) (43
Total Company $ 1,774 $ 1,788

Corporate and unallocated operating income incladesriety of miscellaneous items, such as corpansestment
gains and losses, certain derivative gains ané$s®rtain insurance-related gains and lossdsjreditigation and
environmental expenses, corporate restructuringgelsaand certain under- or over-absorbed costsgergion, stock-
based compensation) that the Company may chooge aibcate directly to its business segmentsaBse this
category includes a variety of miscellaneous itdhis,subject to fluctuation on a quarterly anchaal basis.

3M business segment reporting measures includecdedit to business segments for certain U.S. saldgelated
operating income. Management evaluates each fitétdusiness segments based on net sales andiogenzome
performance, including dual credit U.S. reportiadurther incentivize U.S. sales growth. As a re2M reflects
additional (“dual”) credit to another business segtmwhen the customer account activity (“salegidis} with respect
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to the particular product sold to the external cosr in the U.S. is provided by a different businesgment. This
additional dual credit is largely reflected at theision level. For example, certain respirators arimarily sold by the
Personal Safety Division within the Safety and Giep business segment; however, a sales distribtnithe Industrial
business segment provides the contact for saldeeqfroduct to particular customers in the U.S.ketadn this
example, the non-primary selling segment (Indugtwauld also receive credit for the associatedsadts initiated
though its sales district and the related approtérgerating income. The assigned operating ina@faged to dual
credit activity may differ from operating incomeathwould result from actual costs associated withssales. The
offset to the dual credit business segment repisimeflected as a reconciling item entitled “Bhation of Dual
Credit,” such that sales and operating incometferld.S. in total are unchanged.

Certain sales and operating income results fotreleic bonding product lines are equally dividedwsen the
Electronics and Energy business segment and thestiia business segment.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM*

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of 3Mr{pany:

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidatechbalaheet of 3M Company and its subsidiaries &san€h 31,
2017, and the related consolidated statementscofie, comprehensive income, and cash flows fothitez-month
periods ended March 31, 2017 and 2016. Thesenmtfigmancial statements are the responsibility ef@ompany’s

management.

We conducted our review in accordance with thedsteds of the Public Company Accounting OversighamlaUnited
States). A review of interim financial informatigonsists principally of applying analytical proceesiand making
inquiries of persons responsible for financial asdounting matters. It is substantially less inpgcthan an audit
conducted in accordance with the standards of tiic®Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unitedt8s), the
objective of which is the expression of an opiniegarding the financial statements taken as a wiAaeordingly, we
do not express such an opinion.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any naterodifications that should be made to the accawyipg
consolidated interim financial statements for therbe in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in
the United States of America.

We previously audited, in accordance with the saadsl of the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8q&nited
States), the consolidated balance sheet as of Deredi, 2016, and the related consolidated statsnoéimcome,
comprehensive income, changes in equity, and dasis for the year then ended (not presented herang) in our
report dated February 9, 2017, we expressed aralifigd opinion on those consolidated financiatetaents. In our
opinion, the information set forth in the accompagyconsolidated balance sheet information as aebder 31, 2016,
is fairly stated in all material respects in redatto the consolidated balance sheet from whibastbeen derived.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Minneapolis, Minnesota
May 3, 2017

* Pursuant to Rule 436(c) of the Securities Act @3.9'Act”) this should not be considered a “repasithin the
meaning of Sections 7 and 11 of the Act and thepeddent registered public accounting firm liapilinder
Section 11 does not extend to it.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of kancial Condition and Results of Operations.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations (MD&A) is desdrto
provide a reader of 3M’s financial statements waitharrative from the perspective of managements3WD&A is
presented in the following sections:

*  Overview

* Results of Operations

» Performance by Business Segment

» Financial Condition and Liquidity

e Cautionary Note Concerning Factors That May Affegture Results

Forward-looking statements in Part |, ltem 2 mayolie risks and uncertainties that could causeltesudiffer
materially from those projected (refer to the satntitled “Cautionary Note Concerning FactorstTay Affect
Future Results” in Part |, Item 2 and the risk dastprovided in Part I, Item 1A for discussiontlése risks and
uncertainties).

OVERVIEW

3M is a diversified global manufacturer, technolagyovator and marketer of a wide variety of praduand services.
As more fully described in both the Performancaliginess Segment section in MD&A and in Note 1f&ative in the
first quarter of 2017, the Company changed itsimss segment reporting in its continued effortriprove the
alignment of businesses around markets and cussofieese changes included the integration of thedo Renewable
Energy Division into existing divisions, the comaiion of two divisions to form the Automotive an@space
Solutions Division, and consolidation of U.S. cusér account activity, impacting dual credit repagtiBusiness
segment information presented herein reflectsrfpact of these changes for all periods presented.

3M manages its operations in five operating busisegments: Industrial; Safety and Graphics; Hezédite;
Electronics and Energy; and Consumer. From a gebargerspective, any references to EMEA referumbe,
Middle East and Africa on a combined basis. Angrefices to “Membrana” refer to the former Sepanatidedia
business acquired by 3M from Polypore in 2015.

Earnings per share attributable to 3M common shaxdters — diluted:

The following table provides the increase (decreasdiluted earnings per share for the three-meetided March 31,
2017 compared to 2016.

Three months ended

(Earnings per diluted share) March 31, 2017
Same period last year $ 2.05
Increase/(decrease) in earnings per share - djldtezlto:

Organic growth, productivity and other 0.22
Divestitures (0.03
Foreign exchange impacts (0.04
Strategic investments (0.16
Income tax rate 0.09
Shares of common stock outstanding 0.03

Current period $ 2.16

Earnings per diluted share increased 11 centsgé t the first quarter of 2017 compared to theegeriod last year.
Organic growth, productivity and other include bfisefrom higher organic local-currency sales, lowewv material
costs, and business transformation, which is haaipgsitive impact on 3M’s productivity efforts. 8$e benefits were
partially offset by higher defined benefit pensamd postretirement expenses.
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Divestiture impacts, which are measured for th& fivelve months post-transaction, related to thestitures of
Polyfoam and the remaining portion of the libraygtem business (both in first quarter 2016), amddilrestitures of the
protective films business and cathode battery telciygy out-license business (both in fourth qua2@t6). In addition,
3M sold its prescription safety eyewear busineasydry 2017). On a combined basis, lower year-@m-gvestiture
gains in the first quarter of 2017 when comparethéofirst quarter of 2016 decreased earnings lpees

Foreign currency impacts (net of hedging) decreasedax earnings by approximately $34 millionttoe equivalent of
4 cents per diluted share, excluding the impadoi&ign currency changes on tax rates.

Operating income results include year-on-year imengtal strategic investments of $136 million, whictiuded
investments to accelerate growth in core platformthe amount of $36 million along with productiviind portfolio
actions, which were comprised of asset chargesacelerated depreciation of $80 million in additiorseverance and
other charges of $20 million. Additional discussmmstrategic investments is provided in the “Rissof Operations”
section.

The income tax rate was 23.7 percent in the fustrggr, down 3.1 percentage points versus lastsyBest quarter. The
decrease in tax rate was driven by a number obffacts referenced in Note 5.

Weighted-average diluted shares outstanding iffitftiequarter of 2017 declined 1.5 percent yearyear to 612.0
million, which increased earnings per diluted shdilee decrease in the outstanding weighted-avetiégted shares
relates to the Company’s purchase of $690 millibitscown stock in the first quarter of 2017.

Sales and operating income by business segment:

The following tables contain sales and operatingine results by business segment for the threehs@mnided

March 31, 2017 and 2016. In addition to the disicusbelow, refer to the section entitled “Perforrmaty Business
Segment” later in MD&A for a more detailed discassdf the sales and operating income results o€tirapany and
its respective business segments (including Cotpanad Unallocated). Refer to Note 12 for additionimrmation on
business segments, including Elimination of Duadditt Further discussion of the Company’s operaiticgme results
is in the section entitled “Operating Income” withthe “Results of Operations” section.

Three months ended March 31,

2017 2016 % change

Net Oper. Net Oper. Net Oper.
(Dollars in millions) Sales Income Sales Income Sales Income
Business Segments
Industrial $ 2709 $ 625 $ 2599 $ 622 4.2% 0.5%
Safety and Graphics 1,527 399 1,477 359 3.4% 11.2%
Health Care 1,423 434 1,391 457 2.3% (5.2%
Electronics and Energy 1,210 225 1,089 195 11.1% 15.1%
Consumer 1,042 222 1,050 238 (0.7% (6.8%
Corporate and Unallocated 2 (81) — (40) — —
Elimination of Dual Credit (228 (50) 297 (43) — —
Total Company $ 7685 $ 1,774 $ 7,409 $ 1,788 3.7% (0.8)%
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Three months ended March 31, 2017

Organic
Worldwide local- Total
Sales Change Analysis currency sales
By Business Segment sales Divestitures Transtati change
Industrial 5.7% (0.7% (0.8% 4.2%
Safety and Graphics 49 (0.8)% (0.6)% 3.4%
Health Care 3.1% — % (0.8% 2.3%
Electronics and Energy 11% (0.2)% (0.2)% 11.1%
Consumer (1.2% — % 0.5% (0.7%
Total Company 4.66 (0.4)% (0.5)% 3.7%

Divestitures reduced first-quarter sales by 0.£@et. As part of its portfolio management processhe first quarter of
2016, 3M (Safety and Graphics Business Group) ceteglthe sale of the remaining portions of itsdigrsystems
business. Also, in the first quarter of 2016, 3kd{istrial Business Group) divested the assets &6 Bkéssurized
polyurethane foam adhesives business (formerly knasvPolyfoam). This business is a provider ofaresed
polyurethane foam adhesive formulations and systataghe residential roofing, commercial roofingdainsulation
and industrial foam segments in the United Staf#fs annual sales of approximately $20 million. T®empany
recorded a pre-tax gain of $40 million in the figsiarter of 2016 as a result of the sale of Polyfead the remaining
portion of the library systems business (recordeskiling, general and administrative expenses).

In October 2016, 3M (Industrial Business) sold dksets of its temporary protective films busined8regis LLC. This
business, with annual sales of approximately $30omj is a provider of adhesive-backed temporawtgctive films
used in a broad range of industries. In Decemb&6 28M (Electronics and Energy Business) sold gsets of its
cathode battery technology out-licensing businegts, annual sales of approximately $10 millionUMICORE. The
aggregate selling price relative to these two lrssas was $86 million. The Company recorded agxrgdin of $71
million in the fourth quarter of 2016 as a restlthe sales of these businesses (recorded ingefleneral and
administrative expenses).

In January 2017, 3M (Safety and Graphics Busingds) the assets of its safety prescription eyeWwaainess, with
annual sales of approximately $45 million, to HOY#&ion Care. The Company recorded a pre-tax gaB28fmillion
in the first quarter of 2017 as a result of thike feecorded in selling, general and administratixpenses).

Refer to Note 2 in the Consolidated Financial Stetiets for additional detail concerning divestitures
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Sales and operating income by geographic area:

Percent change information compares the first guaft2017 with the same period last year, unléissraise indicated.
From a geographic perspective, any references tBAKfer to Europe, Middle East and Africa on a bimad basis.

Three months ended March 31, 2017

Europe, Latin
United Asia Middle East America/ Other
States Pacific & Africa Canada  Unallocated Worldwide

Net sdes (millions) $2941 $2433 $ 1577 $ 736 $ 2) $ 7,685

% of worldwide sales 38.2% 31.7% 20.5% 9.6% — 100.0%
Components of net sales change:
Volume — organic 1.7% 10.1% 3.7% 0.4% — 4.5%
Price (0.3 — 0.3 1.9 — 0.1
Organic local-currency sales 1.4 10.1 4.0 2.3 — 4.6
Divestitures (0.9 (0.1 (0.1 (0.5 — (0.4
Translation — (0.1) (4.0) 4.3 — (0.5)
Total sales change 0.5% 9.9% (0.1% 6.1% — 3.7%
Total sales change:
Industrial 45% 7.2% 06% 3.8% — 4.2%
Safety and Graphics 1.8% 5.3% 3.3% 4.8% — 3.4%
Health Care 2.2% 6.9 % 3.8)% 13.1% — 2.3%
Electronics and Energy 19% 17.2% 0.9% 2.3% — 11.1%
Consumer (4.8)% 8.7% 3.99% 85% — (0.7%
Organic local-currency sales change:
Industrial 5.8% 7.9% 52% 0.4% — 5.7%
Safety and Graphics 3.6% 5.9% 69% 2.0% — 4.8%
Health Care 2.2% 7.0% 08% 7.8% — 3.1%
Electronics and Energy 28% 17.4% 29% (0.4)% — 11.5%
Consumer (4.8% 6.8% (0.4% 2.4% — (1.2%

Additional information beyond what is included hetpreceding table is as follows:

* In Asia Pacific, where 3M'’s electronics and enédbgginess is concentrated, sales benefited fromgttrened
demand across most market segments in consumémeles. Total sales in Japan grew 15 percent and
China/Hong Kong grew 9 percent. On an organic locatency sales basis, both Japan and China/Hong Ko
grew 13 percent.

* In EMEA, Central/East Europe and Middle East/Afriotal sales and organic local-currency sales grew
percent. West Europe total sales declined 1 perasrdrganic local-currency sales growth of 5 pareas
more than offset by foreign currency translation.

* In Latin America/Canada, total sales declined Z@efrin Mexico, as organic local-currency saleswginoof 8
percent was more than offset by foreign currenagdiation. In Canada, total sales grew 4 percetpeld by
organic local-currency sales growth of 3 percemBilazil total sales growth of 20 percent was dritbg
foreign currency translation, as organic local-enay sales declined 3 percent.

Foreign currency translation reduced year-on-yakessslightly, with the translation-related saleséase in Latin
America/Canada more than offset by the decreaBMIBA. The U.S. dollar was stronger compared td fitsarter 2016
by 25 percent versus the Brazilian Real and 2 pénersus the Japanese Yen. The U.S. dollar wakeweampared to
the first quarter of 2016 by 4 percent versus theEnd 5 percent versus the Chinese Yuan.
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Managing currency risks:

As discussed above, the stronger U.S. dollar habative impact on sales and earnings in thetfirse months of
2017 compared to the same period last year. 3lizesila number of tools to hedge currency risk eeléd earnings. 3M
uses natural hedges such as pricing, productivétsd currency and hard currency-indexed billings| lacalizing
source of supply. 3M also uses financial hedgesitiate currency risk. In the case of more ligoidrencies, 3M
hedges a portion of its aggregate exposure, usitity 24 or 36 month horizon, depending on the cuayén question.
For less liquid currencies, financial hedging Egiuently more expensive with more limitations amte Thus this risk
is largely managed via local operational actiorisgigatural hedging tools as discussed abovetheretase, 3M’s
hedging approach is designed to mitigate a podfdoreign currency risk and reduce volatility,iodately allowing
time for 3M'’s businesses to respond to changesamtarketplace.

Financial condition:

3M generated $988 million of operating cash flowstie first three months of 2017, a decrease o2 $2iflion when
compared to the first three months of 2016. Reféhé section entitled “Financial Condition and wijty” later in
MD&A for a discussion of items impacting cash flows

In February 2016, 3M’s Board of Directors authodizbe repurchase of up to $10 billion of 3M’s oatsting common
stock, with no pre-established end date. In tha firee months of 2017, the Company purchased 880n of its

own stock, compared to $1.227 billion of stock fages in the first three months of 2016. As of Ma&t, 2017,
approximately $6.4 billion remained available untter February 2016 authorization. The Company esgegurchase
$2.5 billion to $4.5 billion of its own stock in 2@. In February 2017, 3M’s Board of Directors deetha first-quarter
2017 dividend of $1.175 per share, an increasepafréent. This marked the 59th consecutive yedividend increases
for 3M.

3M’s debt to total capital ratio (total capital ohefd as debt plus equity) was 51 percent at Maigtl2817, and 53
percent at December 31, 2016. 3M currently has Anchedit rating with a stable outlook from Standl& Poor’s and
has an Al credit rating with a stable outlook frbtmody’s Investors Service. The Company generatgsfgiant
ongoing cash flow and has proven access to capddtets funding throughout business cycles.

3M expects to contribute approximately $300 milltors500 million of cash to its global defined bftgension and
postretirement plans in 2017. The Company doesian¢ a required minimum cash pension contributigigation for
its U.S. plans in 2017.

Year 2017 announced acquisition (not closed as airth 31, 2017):

In March 2017, 3M (Safety and Graphics) announbedlit entered into an agreement to acquire S@détpfrom
Johnson Controls for $2.0 billion, subject to agsand other adjustments. This transaction is @gpeo close in the
second half of 2017. Refer to Note 2 for additicshatails.

Year 2017 divestiture and portfolio actions (nobskd as of March 31, 2017):

In May 2017, 3M (Safety and Graphics business)etlam the sale and transfer of control of its idgmbanagement
business. 3M expects a pre-tax gain of approxim&470 million as a result of this divestiture, wainitranslates to net
income of approximately $0.55 per diluted share.\8ilMno longer benefit from approximately $0.05 piuted share
related to the remaining 2017 income of the diviebtgsiness. In addition, 3M expects to make sigaift progress on
its plan to better optimize its portfolio and supphain footprint, with associated costs in thegenf $0.40 to $0.45 per
diluted share over the remainder of 2017. In t@&&l,expects the net impact of these items to agdomately $0.05

to $0.10 per diluted share to full year 2017 eaysin
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Net Sales:

Refer to the preceding sections entitled “Salesap@tating income by business segment” and “Sald®perating
income by geographic area” for discussion of selfesge.

Operating Expenses:

Three months ended

March 31,
(Percent of net sales) 2017 2016 Change
Cost of sales 50.4% 49.6% 0.8
Selling, general and administrative expenses 20.4 20.2 0.2
Research, development and related expenses 6.1 6.1 —
Operating income 23.1% 24.1% (1.0

3M expects global defined benefit pension and ptistment expense in 2017 (before settlementsqitments, special
termination benefits and other) to increase by exiprately $74 million pre-tax when compared to 20d6ich impacts
cost of sales; selling, general and administraxgenses (SG&A); and research, development antbdeéxpenses
(R&D). Refer to the 3M’s 2016 Annual Report on FatfK (MD&A section entitled Critical Accounting Esates —
Pension and Postretirement Obligations and Not®&fsion and Postretirement Benefit Plans) for ¢gpacind
concerning the change to the spot yield curve aggrand other factors that will impact pension postretirement
expenses in 2017. The year-on-year increase inatkfienefit pension and postretirement expensiiédiirst quarter
was $22 million.

The Company is investing in an initiative calledsimess transformation, with these investments itipgcost of sales,
SG&A, and R&D. Business transformation encompa#se®ngoing multi-year phased implementation oéaterprise
resource planning (ERP) system on a worldwide basisvell as changes in processes and internatfakigervice
delivery across 3M.

In the first quarter of 2017, year-on-year incretaéstrategic investments in growth, productivitdgportfolio actions
impacted 3M’s operating expenses were as follows:

Three months ended

(Millions) March 31, 2017

Cost of sales $ 79

Selling, general and administrative expenses 56

Research, development and related expenses 1
Total $ 136

Cost of Sales:

Cost of sales includes manufacturing, engineermyfeeight costs.

Cost of sales, measured as a percent of salesasent due to first quarter 2017 incremental sti@tegestments in
productivity and portfolio actions, foreign currgneffects (net of hedge gains), and higher defineefit pension and
postretirement expense. This was partially offgetaw material cost deflation, which was favoralyeapproximately 2
percent year-on-year. Selling prices increasedales year-on-year by 0.1 percent in first quadr7.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses:

SG&A in dollars increased 5.2 percent in the fipsarter of 2017, when compared to the same peaisidyear, impacted

by incremental strategic investments, lower yeayear divestiture gains (as discussed in Noter),lagher defined
benefit pension and postretirement expense.
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Research, Development and Related Expenses:

R&D in dollars increased $21 million in the firsiree months of 2017 compared to the same peribgdas. 3M
continued to invest in its key initiatives, incladimore R&D aimed at disruptive innovation programith the potential
to create entirely new markets and disrupt existirgkets.

Operating Income:

3M uses operating income as one of its primaryriass segment performance measurement tools. Refer table
below for a reconciliation of operating income masgfor the three months ended March 31, 2017 ge26046.

Three months ended

(Percent of net sales) March 31, 2017
Same period last year 24.1%
Increase/(decrease) in operating income marginiaue

Organic volume and productivity 1.2
Selling price and raw material impact 0.5
Foreign exchange impacts (0.4)
Strategic investments (1.8
Pension and postretirement benefit costs (0.3)
Divestiture gains (0.2

Current period 23.1%

Operating income margins declined 1.0 percentagesim the first quarter of 2017 when comparethifirst quarter
of 2016. Items that reduced operating income marigicluded year-on-year incremental strategic itnaests in
growth, productivity and portfolio actions. Additial items that reduced operating margins includeeign currency
effects (net of hedge gains), higher year-on-yefindd benefit pension and postretirement expearseJower year-on-
year divestiture gains. 3M benefited from highegamic local-currency sales growth and productiv@iyl also benefited
from lower raw material costs.

Interest Expense and Income:

Three months ended

March 31,
(Millions) 2017 2016
Interest expense $ 45 $ 47
Interest income (8) (5)
Total $ 37 % 42

Over the past few years, 3M has taken actionstterbeptimize its capital structure and reducedst of capital by
adding debt. These actions have led to an inciedagerest expense year-on-year, largely duegbdii average debt
balances. However, in the first quarter of 2015 ithcrease due to higher debt was more than dffséte impact of
foreign exchange hedging of intercompany loans.

Provision for Income Taxes:

Three months ended
March 31,
(Percent of pre-tax income) 2017 2016

Effective tax rate 23.7% 26.8%

The effective tax rate for the first quarter of Z04as 23.7 percent, compared to 26.8 percent ifirsteuarter of 2016,
a decrease of 3.1 percentage points. The changles rates between years are impacted by many$aete described
further in Note 5.
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The Company currently anticipates its 2017 full+yiex rate will be 26.0 to 27.5 percent. The rae eary from quarter
to quarter due to discrete items, such as theeswiht of income tax audits and changes in tax fdsemployee share-
based payment accounting; as well as recurringfacsuch as geographic mix of income before taresforeign
currency effects.

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interest:

Three months ended
March 31,
(Millions) 2017 2016

Net income attributable to noncontrolling inter $ 3 $ 3

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interesgtresents the elimination of the income or los#hatable to non-3M
ownership interests in 3M consolidated entitiese phimary noncontrolling interest relates to 3Migntdimited, of
which 3M’s effective ownership is 75 percent.

Currency Effects:

3M estimates that year-on-year currency effectduding hedging impacts, decreased pre-tax incoyrepproximately
$34 million for the three months ended March 311, 20T his estimate includes the effect of transtaprofits from local
currencies into U.S. dollars; the impact of curgefiectuations on the transfer of goods betweendgdrations in the
United States and abroad; and transaction gaintoasds, including derivative instruments desigioegtduce foreign
currency exchange rate risks and any impacts freapping Venezuelan bolivars into U.S. dollars. 3reates that
year-on-year derivative and other transaction gantslosses decreased pre-tax income by approxing@ million
for the three months ended March 31, 2017.

Significant Accounting Policies:
Information regarding new accounting standardadfuded in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financiatestents.
PERFORMANCE BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Disclosures relating to 3M’s business segmentgereided in Note 12. Effective in the first quart#r2017, as part of
3M'’s continuing effort to improve the alignmentitsf businesses around markets and customers, tmp&ty made the
following changes:

Integration of former Renewable Energy Division
» 3M'’s former Renewable Energy Division (RED) hasrbegegrated into existing divisions within the
Electronics and Energy business segment and Safietgraphics business segment. 3M is committed to
leadership in sustainability and to enabling theasmtement of energy solutions into the future.draéng
RED'’s offerings into larger divisions already sexyithese segments will provide increased scaléaitd on
strength by leveraging 3M'’s existing brands, gavtarket capabilities, and relationships to suppotvh
objectives.

Creation of Automotive and Aerospace Solutions Bioin

» 3M created the Automotive and Aerospace Solutionss@n, which combined the former Automotive
Division and Aerospace and Commercial Transpontaiitvision, which were both within the Industrial
business segment. Combining the strengths alorgthdt deep industry knowledge of each business will
enable this new division to utilize shared techgglplatforms and processes to deliver a broadesfset
innovative solutions, along with world-class qualind service to 3M’s customers. This combinatidhhelp
accelerate the Company’s profitable growth and etanddevance across the automotive, aerospace and
commercial transportation industries.
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Consolidation of U.S. customer account activitympacting dual credit reporting

» The Company consolidated its customer accountifctivthe U.S. into more centralized sales distid his
improved alignment reduces the complexity for coscs when interacting with multiple businesses iwith
3M, creating a better customer experience. 3M ssisegment reporting measures include dual ¢eedit
business segments for certain U.S. sales and dedgterating income. This dual credit is based oithvh
business segment provides customer account actitityrespect to a particular product sold in th& Urhe
alignment of U.S. customer accounts to fewer, niocased sales districts changed the attributiosuad credit
across 3M’s business segments.

Business segment information presented hereinctsftbe impact of these changes for all periodsemied. 3M
manages its operations in five business segmehtsrdportable segments are Industrial; Safety aagltcs;
Electronics and Energy; Health Care; and Consumer.

Corporate and Unallocated:

In addition to these five business segments, 3lyas<sertain costs to “Corporate and Unallocatedich is presented
separately in the preceding business segmentsaatlen Note 12. Corporate and Unallocated incliadesriety of
miscellaneous items, such as corporate investnans @nd losses, certain derivative gains and $osgetain
insurance-related gains and losses, certain litigand environmental expenses, corporate restingtaharges and
certain under- or over-absorbed costs (e.g. penstook-based compensation) that the Company detesmot to
allocate directly to its business segments. Becthuse&ategory includes a variety of miscellaneiterss, it is subject to
fluctuation on a quarterly and annual basis.

Corporate and Unallocated operating expenses isedday $41 million in the first quarter of 2017 wheompared to
the same period last year. In the first quarte2if7, a portion of the severance actions wereatefiein Corporate and
Unallocated. In addition, defined benefit pensiad aostretirement expense increased $22 million-gaayear, with
$9 million of this increase allocated to Corporatel Unallocated.

Operating Business Segments:

Information related to 3M'’s business segmentsHerfirst quarter of both 2017 and 2016 is preseint¢lde tables that
follow. Organic local-currency sales include botgamic volume impacts plus selling price impactsgdéisition
impacts, if any, are measured separately for tisetfivelve months post-transaction. The divestitomgacts, if any,
foreign currency translation impacts and total saleange are also provided for each business seghmgnreferences
to EMEA relate to Europe, Middle East and Africaapoombined basis.

Refer to the preceding “Sales and operating incbyngeographic area” section for organic local-coecsesales growth
by business segment within major geographic areas.
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Industrial Business:

Three months ended

March 31,
2017 2016
Sales (millions) $ 2,709 $ 2,599
Sales change analysis:
Organic local-currency 5.7% (1.9%
Acquisitions — 2.0
Divestitures (0.7 (0.1,
Translation (0.8) (3.0)
Total sales change 4.2% (3.0%
Operating income (millions) $ 625 $ 622
Percent change 0.5% 3.5%
Percent of sales 23.1% 23.9%

The Industrial segment serves a broad range ofetgr&uch as automotive original equipment manufac{OEM)

and automotive aftermarket (auto body shops aradl)etlectronics, appliance, paper and printiragkaging, food and
beverage, and construction. Industrial productldetapes, a wide variety of coated, non-woventzontied abrasives,
adhesives, advanced ceramics, sealants, specialéyiais, 3M purification (filtration products),odure systems for
personal hygiene products, acoustic systems predaicti components and products that are used mahefacture,
repair and maintenance of automotive, marine, @irend specialty vehicles. 3M is also a leadirapgl supplier of
precision grinding technology serving customerthmarea of hard-to-grind precision applicationmaustrial,
automotive, aircraft and cutting tools. 3M develapsl produces advanced technical ceramics for ddingn
applications in the automotive, oil and gas, satatustrial, electronics and defense industries.

First Quarter 2017 results:

Sales in Industrial totaled $2.7 billion, up 4.2qent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currency sateseased 5.7 percent,
divestitures reduced sales by 0.7 percent, anigfoirrency translation reduced sales by 0.8 perce

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales growth was broad-based, led by automotiveaarmspace solutions, advanced materials, abrasives
industrial adhesives and tapes, and automotivenadidet.
*  Automotive OEM business organic growth continuesttpace global auto builds.

Acquisitions and divestitures:
* In October 2016, 3M sold the assets of its temygpoaotective films business.
* InJanuary 2016, 3M completed its sale of the asse3M’s pressurized polyurethane foam adhesiusiless
(formerly known as Polyfoam).
e Acquisition sales growth in 2016 related to the Astg2015 acquisition of Membrana, a leading praviafe
microporous membranes and modules for filtratiothinlife sciences, industrial, and specialty segme

Operating income:
» Operating income margins decreased 0.8 percentdgtspas divestiture gains related to the firsirtgr 2016
sale of the Polyfoam business resulted in a netgeg/ear operating income margin penalty of 1.&cpetage
points.
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Safety and Graphics Business:

Three months ended

March 31,
2017 2016
Sales (millions) $ 1527 $ 1,477
Sales change analysis:
Organic local-currency 4.8% 2.6%
Acquisitions — 6.6
Divestitures (0.8 (2.3
Translation (0.6) (4.0)
Total sales change 3.4% 2.9%
Operating income (millions) $ 399 % 359
Percent change 11.2% 3.0%
Percent of sales 26.1% 24.3%

The Safety and Graphics segment serves a broad cdmgarkets that increase the safety, securitypaoductivity of
people, facilities and systems. Major product dffgs include personal protection products, sucteggiratory, hearing,
eye and fall protection equipment; traffic safetg @ecurity products, including border and cividggty solutions;
commercial solutions, including commercial graptshseting and systems, architectural design sokifior surfaces,
window films, and cleaning and protection proddotscommercial establishments; and roofing grantdessphalt
shingles.

First Quarter 2017 results:

Sales in Safety and Graphics totaled $1.5 billign3.4 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic local-cnesesales increased
4.8 percent, divestitures reduced sales by 0.8eperand foreign currency translation reduced daye3.6 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
« Sales increased in roofing granules, personalysadet traffic safety and security, while commersizutions
was flat.

Acquisitions and divestitures:
e InJanuary 2017, 3M sold its safety prescriptioavegar business.
» Acquisition sales growth in 2016 reflects the asiiigin of Capital Safety in August 2015. Capitafeédgis a
leading global provider of fall protection equiprhen
* In the first quarter of 2016, 3M divested the remdair of the library systems business.

Operating income:
* Operating income margins increased 1.8 percentaiggspas divestiture gains year-on-year partiaffget by
acquisition charges resulted in a net operatingrire margin benefit of 1.0 percentage points.

In May 2017, 3M (Safety and Graphics business)etlam the sale and transfer of control of its idgmbanagement
business. 3M expects a pre-tax gain of approxim&£70 million as a result of this divestiture Ntarch 2017, 3M
(Safety and Graphics) announced that it enter@dantagreement to acquire Scott Safety from Joh@sarrols for
$2.0 billion, subject to closing and other adjusttse This transaction is expected to close in #v@sd half of 2017.
Refer to Note 2 for additional details.
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Health Care Business:

Three months ended

March 31,
2017 2016
Sales (millions) $ 1,423 $ 1,391
Sales change analysis:
Organic local-currency 3.1% 6.3%
Acquisitions — 0.9
Translation (0.8 (3.1
Total sales change 2.3% 4.1%
Operating income (millions) $ 434  $ 457
Percent change (5.2% 11.5%
Percent of sales 30.5% 32.9%

The Health Care segment serves markets that inchadical clinics and hospitals, pharmaceuticalataleand
orthodontic practitioners, health information sysse and food manufacturing and testing. Produaissanvices
provided to these and other markets include meditdlsurgical supplies, skin health and infectimvention products,
inhalation and transdermal drug delivery systeme, @are solutions (dental and orthodontic produttsalth
information systems, and food safety products.

First Quarter 2017 results:

Sales in Health Care totaled $1.4 billion, up Z28&gnt in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currency satereased 3.1
percent and foreign currency translation reducéskday 0.8 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales increased in drug delivery systems, foodysafeal care, and medical consumables (which isprised
of the critical and chronic care and infection gnetion businesses).
» Sales declined in health information systems.
* In developing markets, Health Care organic locatency sales growth was led by China/Hong Kongwaai,
Brazil, and Mexico.

Acquisitions:
» Acquisition sales growth in 2016 related to the dha2015 purchase of Ivera Medical Corp. Iverais a
manufacturer of health care products that disirdect protect devices used for access into a patient
bloodstream.

Operating income:

» Operating income margins decreased, as 3M invé&&dnillion across the business to accelerate dutur
growth opportunities.
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Electronics and Energy Business:

Three months ended

March 31,
2017 2016
Sales (millions) $ 1,210 $ 1,089
Sales change analysis:
Organic local-currency 11.5% (12.6%
Divestitures (0.2) —
Translation (0.2 1.7
Total sales change 11.1% (14.3)%
Operating income (millions) $ 225 % 195
Percent change 15.1% (27.9%
Percent of sales 18.6% 17.9%

The Electronics and Energy segment includes salsifibat improve the dependability, cost-effectis=nand
performance of electronic devices; electrical patguincluding infrastructure protection; telecommuations networks;
and power generation and distribution. This segia@héctronics solutions include optical film satuts for the
electronic display industry; high-performance flumhd abrasives; high-temperature and display tép&ible circuits,
which use electronic packaging and interconnedtgohnology; and touch systems products. This setjisnemergy
solutions include pressure sensitive tapes andggslectrical insulation; infrastructure produttat provide both
protection and detection solutions; a wide arrafjlr-optic and copper-based telecommunicatiostesys; and
renewable energy component solutions for the soldrwind power industries.

First Quarter 2017 results:

Sales in Electronics and Energy totaled $1.2 lnijligp 11.1 percent in U.S. dollars. Organic locakrency sales
increased 11.5 percent, divestitures reduced bglés2, and foreign currency translation reducdelsshy 0.2 percent.

Total sales within the electronics-related and gyieelated businesses were up 17 percent and gmerespectively.
Total sales increased 17 percent in Asia Pacific.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:

e Sales increased 18 percent in 3M’s electronicgadlhusinesses, with increases in both displaynmateand
systems and electronics materials solutions, abubmesses drove increased inclusion in OEM piaisan
addition to strengthened demand in consumer elgicso

» Sales increased 1 percent in 3M’s energy-relatsthbases, as sales grew in electrical markets and flat in
telecommunications.

» Sales increased 17 percent in Asia Pacific, whit's 8lectronics business is concentrated.

Divestitures:
* In December 2016, 3M sold the assets of its cathattery technology out-licensing business, withuad
sales of approximately $10 million.

Operating income:
e Operating income margins increased 0.7 percentaigéspas benefits from higher organic volume waffset
by first quarter 2017 footprint and portfolio act® These actions resulted in a year-on-year apgraicome
margin penalty of 5.3 percentage points.
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Consumer Business:

Three months ended

March 31,
2017 2016
Sales (millions) $ 1,042 $ 1,050
Sales change analysis:
Organic local-currency (1.2% 2.7%
Translation 0.5 (2.7)
Total sales change (0.7% —%
Operating income (millions) $ 222 % 238
Percent change (6.8)% (1.2)%
Percent of sales 21.3% 22.7%

The Consumer segment serves markets that inclugrioeer retail, office retail, office business tsimess, home
improvement, drug and pharmacy retail, and othekets. Products in this segment include office $yippoducts,
stationery products, home improvement productsittgourself), home care products, protective matgsroducts,
certain consumer retail personal safety producid,ceansumer health care products.

First Quarter 2017 results:

Sales in Consumer totaled $1.0 billion, down O.iteet in U.S. dollars. Organic local-currency saleslined 1.2
percent, while foreign currency translation incexhsales by 0.5 percent.

On an organic local-currency sales basis:
» Sales grew in home improvement, consumer health ead home care.
» Stationery and office supplies declined due to okhimventory reductions, primarily in the U.S.io# retail
and wholesale market.

Operating income:
» Operating income margins declined year-on-yeapain due to increased growth investments in caxdqyims.

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND LIQUIDITY

3M continues its transition to a better-optimizegbital structure and is adding leverage at a medsueice. The strength
and stability of 3M’s business model and strong ftash flow capability, together with proven cdpitarkets access,
enable the Company to implement this strategy.dting in 3M’s businesses to drive organic growtmaéns the first
priority for capital deployment, including reseawnind development, capital expenditures, and comatzation
capability. Investment in organic growth will bepplemented by complementary acquisitions. 3M wWilbacontinue to
return cash to shareholders through dividends hacksepurchases. Sources for cash availabilittyarinited States,
such as ongoing cash flow from operations and adoesapital markets, have historically been sigfficto fund
dividend payments to shareholders and share repseshas well as funding U.S. acquisitions andr dtives as
needed. For those international earnings considerbd reinvested indefinitely, the Company curdseh&s no plans or
intentions to repatriate these funds for U.S. oi@na. However, if these international funds aredesl for operations in
the U.S., 3M would be required to accrue and p&. thxes to repatriate them. See Note 8 in 3M'$28inual Report
on Form 10-K for further information on earningssimlered to be reinvested indefinitely.

3M’s primary short-term liquidity needs are mettihgh cash on hand and U.S. commercial paper issaa8i

believes it will have continuous access to the cencial paper market. 3M’s commercial paper progpgmmits the
Company to have a maximum of $5 billion outstandiidn a maximum maturity of 397 days from datessfuance.
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Total debt:

The Company'’s total debt was approximately $11llibhiat both March 31, 2017 and December 31, 2018&4ay
2016, 3M issued 500 million Euro aggregate prinicggmaount of 5.75-year fixed rate medium-term nates February
2022 with a coupon rate of 0.375% and 500 milliemdEaggregate principal amount of 15-year fixee raedium-term
notes due 2031 with a coupon rate of 1.50%. IneSepér 2016, 3M issued $600 million aggregate poalcamount of
five-year fixed rate medium-term notes due 202hwitoupon rate of 1.625%, $650 million aggregaitecipal
amount of 10-year fixed rate medium-term notes20@6 with a coupon rate of 2.250%, and $500 mildggregate
principal amount of 30-year fixed rate medium-terotes due 2046 with a coupon rate of 3.125%. Athete 2016
issuances were under the medium-term notes pro(Barnes F). As of March 31, 2017, the total amafritebt issued
as part of the medium-term notes program (Seriemélusive of debt issued in 2011, 2012, 2014,528d4d the 2016
debt referenced above, is approximately $11.1obil{utilizing the foreign exchange rates applicatiléhe time of
issuance for the Euro denominated debt). Informatith respect to long-term debt issuances and nitiatufor the
periods presented is included in Note 10 of 3M'$&@@nnual Report on Form 10-K.

The strength of 3M’s capital structure and sigifitongoing cash flows provide 3M proven accessapital markets.
Additionally, the Company’s maturity profile is g@ered to help ensure refinancing needs in anyngrear are
reasonable in proportion to the total portfolio. 8itrently has an AA- credit rating with a stablelook from
Standard & Poor’s and has an Al credit rating wigtable outlook from Moody’s Investors Servicee Tompany's
ongoing transition to a more optimized capital cte, financed with additional low-cost debt, abirhpact 3M’s
credit rating in the future.

Effective February 24, 2017, the Company updatetinell-known seasoned issuer” (WKSI) shelf regisbn
statement, which registers an indeterminate amofuthébt or equity securities for future issuance sale. This
replaced 3M’s previous shelf registration dated Méy2014. In May 2016, in connection with the WIs&Elf, 3M
entered into an amended and restated distribugiogeanent relating to the future issuance and falm ime to time)
of the Company’s medium-term notes program (Séf)esp to the aggregate principal amount of $1Boini] which
was an increase from the previous aggregate pehaipount up to $9 billion of the same Series.

In March 2016, 3M amended and restated its exi$hg5 billion five-year revolving credit facilityxpiring in August
2019 to a $3.75 billion five-year revolving creféitility expiring in March 2021. This credit agreent includes a
provision under which 3M may request an increasgpab $1.25 billion (at lenders’ discretion), lging the total
facility up to $5.0 billion. This revolving credicility is undrawn at March 31, 2017. Under the7&3billion credit
agreement, the Company is required to maintaiBBE DA to Interest Ratio as of the end of eachdlgquarter at not
less than 3.0 to 1. This is calculated (as definge agreement) as the ratio of consolidated EBAT DA for the four
consecutive quarters then ended to total intesgmrese on all funded debt for the same period. atdi 31, 2017, this
ratio was approximately 45 to 1. Debt covenantsalarestrict the payment of dividends. Apart frdra tommitted
facilities, $293 million in stand-alone lettersarédit and bank guarantees were also issued asthnding at March 31,
2017. These lines of credit are utilized in conimectith normal business activities.

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities:

At March 31, 2017, 3M had $2.3 billion of cash, lcagjuivalents and marketable securities, of whigreximately
$2.0 billion was held by the Company’s foreign sdiasies and approximately $340 million was heldthbg United
States. Of the $2.0 billion held internationallySUdollar-based cash, cash equivalents and mal&etacurities totaled
$460 million, or 23 percent, which was investednioney market funds, asset-backed securities, agaumyities,
corporate medium-term note securities and othdr-figplity fixed income securities. At December 2016, cash, cash
equivalents and marketable securities held by thapgany’s foreign subsidiaries and by the UnitedeSt#otaled
approximately $2.35 billion and $350 million, respieely.
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Net Debt (non-GAAP measure):

Net debt is not defined under U.S. GAAP and maybeotomputed the same as similarly titled measused by other
companies. The Company defines net debt as tdvallelss the total of cash, cash equivalents aneicuand long-term
marketable securities. 3M believes net debt is ingéul to investors as 3M considers net debt amddmponents to be
important indicators of liquidity and financial psn. The following table provides net debt advtdrch 31, 2017, and
December 31, 2016.

March 31, December 31,
(Millions) 2017 2016
Total Debt $ 11,711 $ 11,650
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and marketabletsscu 2,331 2,695
Net Debt (non-GAAP measure) $ 9,380 $ 8,955

In the first three months of 2017, net debt inceeldsy $0.4 billion to a net debt balance of $91ddi, driven by a
decrease in cash, cash equivalents and markethletges.

Balance Sheet:
3M'’s strong balance sheet and liquidity provide @@mpany with significant flexibility to take adviage of numerous
opportunities going forward. The Company will coni to invest in its operations to drive growtltluding continual

review of acquisition opportunities.

The Company uses working capital measures that @agphasis and focus on certain working capitatas$hese
measures include working capital, accounts recéviaions, and inventory turns.

Working capital (non-GAAP measure):

(Millions) March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 Change

Current assets $ 11,9013 11,726% 175
Less: Current Liabilities (5,995) (6,219) 224
Working Capital $ 5,906% 5,507% 399

Various assets and liabilities, including cash sinort-term debt, can fluctuate significantly froramth to month
depending on short-term liquidity needs. Workingita is not defined under U.S. generally accegiecbunting
principles and may not be computed the same atasiyniitted measures used by other companies.ddm@pany
defines working capital as current assets minuseatifiabilities. Working capital increased $399limn compared with
December 31, 2016. Current asset balance changessged working capital by $175 million, drivenibgreases in
accounts receivable, and inventories (discusseleubelow), partially offset by decreases in casish equivalents,
and marketable securities. Current liability bakanbanges increased working capital by $224 milliargely due to
decreases in accounts payable and accrued pagadiklly offset by increases in accrued income$a8M believes
working capital is meaningful to investors as a suea of operational efficiency and short-term ficiahhealth.
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Accounts receivable and inventory turns (non-GAAReasUres):

Accounts receivable and inventory turns are nanddfunder U.S. generally accepted accounting iples and may
not be computed the same as similarly titled messsused by other companies. 3M defines accourds/edate turns as
quarterly net sales multiplied by 4 divided by engdaccounts receivable — net, and defines invertong as quarterly
manufacturing cost multiplied by 4 divided by erglinventory. 3M believes accounts receivable tismaeaningful to
investors as a measure of how efficiently the Campaanages credit and collects from its customtesinventory
turns calculation purposes, manufacturing cosefsdd as cost of sales less freight and engingeasts. 3M believes
inventory turns is meaningful to investors as asneaof how quickly inventory is sold. Details bése calculations
follow.

Accounts receivable turns (non-GAAP measure)

(Millions, except turns) March 31,2017 December 31, 2016
Quarterly net sales $ 7,685% 7,329
Ending accounts receivable - net $ 4,722% 4,392
Accounts receivable turns 6.51 6.67

Inventory turns (non-GAAP measure)
(Millions, except turns) March 31, 2017 December 31, 2016

Quarterly cost of sales $ 3,869% 3,716
Less: Freight and engineering $ 171$% 160
Manufacturing cost $ 3,698% 3,556
Ending inventory $ 3,612% 3,385
Inventory turns 4.10 4.20

Concerning accounts receivable, higher March 2@l&sscompared to December 2016 sales contributi taccounts
receivable increase. On a seasonal basis, bothiatsceeceivable and inventory turns are usuallhéigat year-end,
driven by typically lower year-end accounts recbleaand inventory balances.

Cash Flows:

Cash flows from operating, investing and financingjvities are provided in the tables that folldadividual amounts
in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows exdideffects of acquisitions, divestitures and excje rate impacts
on cash and cash equivalents, which are presestsgparate line items within the statement of fiasvs. Thus, the
amounts presented in the following operating, itimgsand financing activities tables reflect chamgebalances from
period to period adjusted for these effects.
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Three months ended

March 31,

(Millions) 2017 2016
Net income including noncontrolling inter $ 1,326 $ 1,278
Depreciation and amortization 438 356
Company pension contributions (247 (55)
Company postretirement contributions (1) (1)
Company pension expense 69 47
Company postretirement expense 12 12
Stock-based compensation expense 147 144
Income taxes (deferred and accrued income taxes) 141 296
Accounts receivable (237, (245
Inventories (149 (37)
Accounts payable (124 (116
Other — net (387 (419)

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 988 $ 1,260

Cash flows from operating activities can fluctusignificantly from period to period, as pensiondimg decisions, tax
timing differences and other items can significantipact cash flows.

In the first three months of 2017, cash flows pded by operating activities decreased $272 miltiompared to the
same period last year, with this decrease primdrily to the timing of pension contributions. Fdatgear 2017, the
Company expects to contribute approximately $30d0amito $500 million of cash to its global definbénefit pension
and postretirement plans, similar to the $383 amilicontributed for total year 2016. Additional farst that decreased
operating cash flows were increases in inventarg, ldgher year-on-year cash income taxes. Theses iteere partially
offset by year-on-year increases in depreciatiahamortization expense, which partially relatedirst quarter 2017
asset charges and accelerated depreciation withiklectronics and Energy business segment. Theioation of
accounts receivable, inventories and accounts payatreased working capital by $510 million in fivst three
months of 2017, compared to the working capitaléases of $398 million in the first three month2016. Additional
discussion on working capital changes is providadier in the “Financial Condition and Liquidity&stion.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Three months ended

March 31,

(Millions) 2017 2016
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) $ (287, $ (314
Proceeds from sale of PP&E and other assets 1 18
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired — (4)
Purchases and proceeds from maturities and satauddetable

securities and investments, net 138 (61)
Proceeds from sale of businesses 53 56
Other investing activities 5 25
Net cash used in investing activi $ (90) $ (280

Investments in property, plant and equipment engldeith across many diverse markets, helping tat ipesluct
demand and increasing manufacturing efficiency.iBésts in renewal and maintenance programs, wiectain to

cost reduction, cycle time, maintaining and rengwdarrent capacity, pollution reduction, and compdie. Costs related
to maintenance, ordinary repairs, and certain dteers are expensed. 3M also invests in new groapacity, both
through expansion of current facilities and by dinig new facilities. 3M also invests in corporabdratory facilities
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and information technology (IT). The Company expe&217 capital spending to be in the range of Billidn to $1.5
billion.

Refer to Note 2 for information on acquisitions alidestitures. The Company is actively consideadditional
acquisitions, investments and strategic allianard,from time to time may also divest certain beisses. Proceeds
from sale of businesses in the first three monftZda7 relate to the divestiture of the assethefirescription safety
eyewear business within the Safety and Graphicsbss segment.

Purchases of marketable securities and investragtproceeds from maturities and sale of marketsddarities and
investments are primarily attributable to assetkbdcsecurities, certificates of deposit/time degsosiommercial paper,
and other securities, which are classified as albtfor-sale. Refer to Note 6 for more detailswdt8M's diversified
marketable securities portfolio. Purchases of itmests include additional survivor benefit insurnglus cost method
and equity investments.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:

Three months ended

March 31,

(Millions) 2017 2016
Change in short-term debt — net $ (68) $ 138
Repayment of debt (maturities greater than 90 days) — —
Proceeds from debt (maturities greater than 90)days — —
Total cash change in debt $ (68) $ 138
Purchases of treasury stock (690 (1,227
Proceeds from issuances of treasury stock pursaanbck option and benefit

plans 315 357
Dividends paid to shareholders (702 (672
Other — net (6) (22)
Net cash used in financiractivities $ (1,151 % (1,426

Total debt was approximately $11.7 billion at bitarch 31, 2017 and year-end 2016. Total debt wasebdent of total
capital (total capital is defined as debt plus gquat March 31, 2017, compared to 53 percent @il wapital at year-end
2016.

Repurchases of common stock are made to suppo@tdhgany’s stock-based employee compensation plach$or
other corporate purposes. In February 2016, 3Mar8af Directors authorized the repurchase of upl billion of
3M'’s outstanding common stock, with no pre-estélgitsend date. The Company expects full-year 2043sghare
repurchases will be in the range of $2.5 billior$#5 billion. For more information, refer to thabte titled “Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities” in Part Il, ItenTRe Company does not utilize derivative instruredimked to the
Company’s stock.

3M has paid dividends each year since 1916. Inugekr2017, 3M’s Board of Directors declared a faqaarter 2017
dividend of $1.175 per share, an increase of 6gmerd his is equivalent to an annual dividend aff®4er share and
marked the 59th consecutive year of dividend iregedor 3M.

Other cash flows from financing activities may umb¢ various other items, such as distributions teates of
noncontrolling interests, changes in cash overdra@tinces, and principal payments for capital kease

Free Cash Flow (non-GAAP measure):
Free cash flow and free cash flow conversion atelafined under U.S. generally accepted accoumtimgiples
(GAAP). Therefore, they should not be considerediastitute for income or cash flow data prepareacitordance with

U.S. GAAP and may not be comparable to similatlgdi measures used by other companies. The Congedimes free
cash flow as net cash provided by operating ams/iess purchases of property, plant and equipritesttould not be
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inferred that the entire free cash flow amountvailable for discretionary expenditures. The Conypdefines free cash
flow conversion as free cash flow divided by netoime attributable to 3M. The Company believes &a&sh flow and
free cash flow conversion are meaningful to invessts they are useful measures of performanceh@n@dmpany uses
these measures as an indication of the strengtieafompany and its ability to generate cash. freedquarter of each
year is typically 3M’s seasonal low for free cakiwfand free cash flow conversion. Below find aagof free cash
flow for the three months ended March 31, 2017 2015.

Three months ended

March 31,
(Millions) 2017 2016
Major GAAP Cash Flow Categories
Net cash provided by operating activi $ 988 % 1,260
Net cash used in investing activil (90) (280
Net cash used in financing activit (1,151 (1,426)
Free Cash Flow (non-GAAP measure)
Net cash provided by operating activi $ 988 $ 1,260
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PP&E) (287 (314)
Free cash flow $ 701§ 946
Net income attributable to 3 $ 1,323  $ 1,275
Free cash flow conversion 53% 74%

CAUTIONARY NOTE CONCERNING FACTORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, including “Mageaent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Ctoadiand
Results of Operations” in Part I, Item 2, contdmsvard-looking statements within the meaning & Brivate
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. The Companay also make forward-looking statements in iotBports
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiomaterials delivered to shareholders and in prelesses. In
addition, the Company’s representatives may franetio time make oral forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements relate to future evantstypically address the Company’s expected futusness and
financial performance. Words such as “plan,” “exge@im,” “believe,” “project,” “target,” “anticipate,” “intend,”
“estimate,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “forecast” ad other words and terms of similar meaning, tylprddentify such
forward-looking statements. In particular, thesgude, among others, statements relating to:

» the Company'’s strategy for growth, future reveneeshings, cash flow, uses of cash and other messfr
financial performance, and market position,

* worldwide economic, political, and capital marketsditions, such as interest rates, foreign cugrexchange
rates, financial conditions of our suppliers andtoemers, and natural and other disasters or cliot@age
affecting the operations of the Company or its ieppand customers,

* new business opportunities, product developmeit fature performance or results of current or apdited
products,

» the scope, nature or impact of acquisitions, sgiatalliances and divestitures,

« the outcome of contingencies, such as legal andatgy proceedings,

« future levels of indebtedness, common stock re@ges and capital spending,

» future availability of and access to credit markets

» pension and postretirement obligation assumptiodsfature contributions,

* asset impairments,

» tax liabilities,

» information technology security, and

» the effects of changes in tax, environmental ahérataws and regulations in the United States dhero
countries in which we operate.

The Company assumes no obligation to update oseeuiy forward-looking statements.
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Forward-looking statements are based on certaimgssons and expectations of future events andigr¢imat are
subject to risks and uncertainties. Actual futwsults and trends may differ materially from histak results or those
reflected in any such forward-looking statemenfsetieling on a variety of factors. Important inforioatas to these
factors can be found in this document, includimgpag others, “Management’s Discussion and AnalysiEinancial
Condition and Results of Operations” under the hregedof “Overview,” “Financial Condition and Liquity” and
annually in “Critical Accounting Estimates.” Disaisn of these factors is incorporated by referdrma Part II, Item
1A, “Risk Factors,” of this document, and shouldcbasidered an integral part of Part I, ltem 2, Hdgement's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of Operations.” For additional informatmmcerning
factors that may cause actual results to vary nadiiefrom those stated in the forward-looking staents, see our
reports on Form 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K filed with thEGfrom time to time.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Adout Market Risk.

In the context of Item 3, 3M is exposed to markgk due to the risk of loss arising from adversandes in foreign
currency exchange rates, interest rates and contyrquriies. Changes in those factors could impaetQbmpany’s
results of operations and financial condition. &aliscussion of sensitivity analysis related tséhiypes of market
risks, refer to Part Il, Iltem 7A, Quantitative aQdalitative Disclosures About Market Risk, in 3N2816 Annual
Report on Form 10-K. There have been no materghgés in information that would have been providettie context
of Item 3 from the end of the preceding year uvtiirch 31, 2017. However, the Company does provgie r
management discussion in various places in thigt&uya Report on Form 10-Q, primarily in the Detlives note.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

a. The Company carried out an evaluation, undestipervision and with the participation of its mg@aent, including
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial iodfr, of the effectiveness of the design and opmratf the
Company’s “disclosure controls and procedures’d@med in the Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e)) asefand of the
period covered by this report. Based upon thatuatin, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Fio@h Officer
concluded that the Company’s disclosure controts@ncedures are effective.

b. There was no change in the Company’s internatrabover financial reporting that occurred durihg Company’s
most recently completed fiscal quarter that hasnwdty affected, or is reasonably likely to maddisi affect, the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting

The Company is implementing an enterprise resoplar@ning (“ERP”) system on a worldwide basis, whigkexpected
to improve the efficiency of certain financial aredated transaction processes. The gradual impletien is expected
to occur in phases over the next several yearsimpiementation of a worldwide ERP system will likaffect the
processes that constitute our internal control éwmancial reporting and will require testing fdfestiveness.

The Company completed implementation with respeeléments of certain processes/sub-processeanitedi
subsidiaries/locations and will continue to rolt e ERP system over the next several years. Asamy new
information technology application we implementsthpplication, along with the internal controlsofinancial
reporting included in this process, was appropisiatensidered within the testing for effectiven@sth respect to the
implementation in these instances. We concludegagsof its evaluation described in the above graghs, that the
implementation of the ERP system in these circunt&ts has not materially affected our internal adrdver financial
reporting.
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3M COMPANY
FORM 10-Q
For the Quarterly Period Ended March 31, 2017
PART Il. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

Discussion of legal matters is incorporated byrexiee from Part |, Item 1, Note 10, “Commitmentd &ontingencies
of this document, and should be considered anralk@grt of Part Il, ltem 1, “Legal Proceedings.”

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Provided below is a cautionary discussion of whatbelieve to be the most important risk factordiapple to the
Company. Discussion of these factors is incorpdrhtereference into and considered an integralgfdpart I, ltem 2,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahditions and Results of Operations.”

* Results are impacted by the effects of, and cearmg, worldwide economic, political, and capitednkets conditions.
The Company operates in more than 70 countrieslarides approximately 60 percent of its revenuesifoutside the
United States. The Company’s business is subjegibtmal competition and geopolitical risks and rbayadversely
affected by factors in the United States and othentries that are beyond its control, such asei@eonomic growth,
disruptions in financial markets, economic downsuimthe form of either contained or widespreaessmnary
conditions, inflation, elevated unemployment leyslaggish or uneven recovery, government defegiuction and
other austerity measures in specific countrieggions, or in the various industries in which tr@r@any operates;
social, political or labor conditions in specifiountries or regions; natural and other disastedimate change
affecting the operations of the Company or its@ongrs and suppliers; or adverse changes in th&abiiy and cost of
capital, interest rates, tax rates, tax laws, eharge control, ability to expatriate earnings atiar regulations in the
jurisdictions in which the Company operates.

* Change in the Company’s credit ratings could mase cost of fundinghe Company’s credit ratings are important to
3M’s cost of capital. The major rating agenciestirely evaluate the Company’s credit profile andigis debt ratings to
3M. This evaluation is based on a number of factetsch include financial strength, business andricial risk, as

well as transparency with rating agencies and tiraes of financial reporting. 3M currently has af-Aredit rating

with a stable outlook from Standard & Poor’s and ha Al credit rating with a stable outlook fromddig’s Investors
Service. The Company’s credit ratings have sergddwer 3M’s borrowing costs and facilitate acctesa variety of
lenders. The Company’s ongoing transition to adpeiptimized capital structure, financed with aibahial low-cost

debt, could impact 3M’s credit rating in the futuFailure to maintain strong investment grade getiwould adversely
affect the Company’s cost of funding and could asetly affect liquidity and access to capital masket

* The Company’s results are affected by competitavaditions and customer preferencBemand for the Company’s
products, which impacts revenue and profit margsaffected by (i) the development and timingted tntroduction of
competitive products; (ii) the Company’s resporsddwnward pricing to stay competitive; (iii) chasgn customer
order patterns, such as changes in the levelssefinry maintained by customers and the timingust@amer purchases
which may be affected by announced price changms)ges in the Company’s incentive programs, octisomer’s
ability to achieve incentive goals; and (iv) chamgecustomers’ preferences for our products, ulioly the success of
products offered by our competitors, and changesigsiomer designs for their products that can affecdemand for
some of the Company’s products.

* Foreign currency exchange rates and fluctuationthose rates may affect the Company’s abilitsetaize projected
growth rates in its sales and earnin@ecause the Company’s financial statements arendi@ated in U.S. dollars and
approximately 60 percent of the Company’s reveranesierived from outside the United States, the f@oy's results
of operations and its ability to realize projectgdwth rates in sales and earnings could be adyeaaffected if the U.S.
dollar strengthens significantly against foreigmrencies.
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* The Company’s growth objectives are largely defmart on the timing and market acceptance of its pr@auct
offerings, including its ability to continually rew its pipeline of new products and to bring thpsaducts to market.
This ability may be adversely affected by difficedt or delays in product development, such asnaility to identify
viable new products, obtain adequate intellectuaperty protection, or gain market acceptance of ppducts. There
are no guarantees that new products will proveetodmmercially successful.

* The Company'’s future results are subject to flations in the costs and availability of purchasednponents,
compounds, raw materials and energy, includingaaill natural gas and their derivatives, due to shgets, increased
demand, supply interruptions, currency exchandesrigatural disasters and other factofsie Company depends on
various components, compounds, raw materials, aadhg (including oil and natural gas and their d&tives) supplied
by others for the manufacturing of its productss fpossible that any of its supplier relationshipsld be interrupted
due to natural and other disasters and other evanlte terminated in the future. Any sustainedriniption in the
Company’s receipt of adequate supplies could havatarial adverse effect on the Company. In adulitichile the
Company has a process to minimize volatility in poment and material pricing, no assurance canyangdhat the
Company will be able to successfully manage piieetdiations or that future price fluctuations ooghges will not
have a material adverse effect on the Company.

* Acquisitions, strategic alliances, divestiturasd other unusual events resulting from portfolianagement actions
and other evolving business strategies, and passitganizational restructuring could affect futuesults.The
Company monitors its business portfolio and orgatiinal structure and has made and may continueate
acquisitions, strategic alliances, divestitures elmahges to its organizational structure. With eespo acquisitions,
future results will be affected by the Company’dighto integrate acquired businesses quickly abthin the
anticipated synergies.

* The Company’s future results may be affectedaéf@ompany generates fewer productivity improvesnitain
estimatedThe Company utilizes various tools, such as Laarsfma, and engages in ongoing global business
transformation. Business transformation is defiae@¢hanges in processes and internal/externateateiivery across
3M to move to more efficient business models tormep operational efficiency and productivity, whillowing 3M to
serve customers with greater speed and efficiefiuig. is enabled by the ongoing multi-year phaseulémentation of
an enterprise resource planning (ERP) system oorlwide basis. There can be no assurance that @ik projected
productivity improvements will be realized.

* The Company employs information technology systensupport its business, including ongoing phased
implementation of an ERP system as part of busitnessformation on a worldwide basis over the resiteral years.
Security breaches and other disruptions to the Gowgjs information technology infrastructure coufdarfere with the
Company’s operations, compromise information beiloggo the Company and its customers, supplierd,employees,
exposing the Company to liability which could acdety impact the Company’s business and reputatiothe ordinary
course of business, the Company relies on infoonagchnology networks and systems, some of whiehr@mnaged by
third parties, to process, transmit and store maat information, and to manage or support a ¥aeé business
processes and activities. Additionally, the Compemliects and stores certain data, including pedpri business
information, and may have access to confidentigdessonal information in certain of our businedses is subject to
privacy and security laws, regulations and custeim@osed controls. Despite our cybersecurity messs(including
employee and third-party training, monitoring ofwerks and systems, and maintenance of backup retelgive
systems) which are continuously reviewed and upggtathe Company’s information technology netwonkd a
infrastructure may still be vulnerable to damagdsruptions or shutdowns due to attack by hackets@aches,
employee error or malfeasance, power outages, cempiuuses, telecommunication or utility failureystems failures,
service providers including cloud services, natdishsters or other catastrophic events. It isiplasr such
vulnerabilities to remain undetected for an extehperiod, up to and including several years. Whitiehave
experienced, and expect to continue to experighese types of threats to the Company’s informatchnology
networks and infrastructure, none of them to datelad a material impact to the Company. Therebmagther
challenges and risks as the Company upgrades andisstlizes its ERP system on a worldwide basis.uoh events
could result in legal claims or proceedings, ligpibr penalties under privacy laws, disruptiorojrerations, and
damage to the Company’s reputation, which couldesbly affect the Company’s business. AlthoughQbepany
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maintains insurance coverage for various cyber#gaisks, there can be no guarantee that all amskssses incurred
will be fully insured.

* The Company'’s defined benefit pension and pastraent plans are subject to financial market rigtkat could
adversely impact our result§he performance of financial markets and discoatgs impact the Company’s funding
obligations under its defined benefit plans. Sigaifit changes in market interest rates, decrendée ifair value of plan
assets and investment losses on plan assets, landntdegislative or regulatory changes relatmgefined benefit plan
funding may increase the Company'’s funding oblmaiand adversely impact its results of operatémscash flows.

* The Company’s future results may be affectedanus legal and regulatory proceedings and legainpliance risks,
including those involving product liability, antitst, intellectual property, environmental, the Ur8reign Corrupt
Practices Act and other anti-bribery, anti-corrugti, or other mattersThe outcome of these legal proceedings may
differ from the Company’s expectations becauseotiteomes of litigation, including regulatory magteare often
difficult to reliably predict. Various factors oedelopments can lead the Company to change cugstintates of
liabilities and related insurance receivables wiggglicable, or make such estimates for mattengquely not
susceptible of reasonable estimates, such as ificagi judicial ruling or judgment, a significaséttlement, significant
regulatory developments or changes in applicable Aafuture adverse ruling, settlement or unfavégatevelopment
could result in future charges that could have ter@ adverse effect on the Company’s resultspefrations or cash
flows in any particular period. For a more detaitéstcussion of the legal proceedings involving@wnpany and the
associated accounting estimates, see the discuadiote 10 “Commitments and Contingencies” wittlie Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Iltem 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities @ahUse of Proceeds.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Repurchases of 3M common stock are made to sugfpp@ompany’s stock-based employee compensatios plad
for other corporate purposes. In February 2014,s3B8ard of Directors authorized the repurchasgpdabub12 billion
of 3M’s outstanding common stock, with no pre-ekstiled end date. In February 2016, 3M's Board a&Btors
replaced the Company’s February 2014 repurchasgamowith a new program. This new program authsrihe
repurchase of up to $10 billion of 3M’s outstandamnmon stock, with no pre-established end date.

Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities (registered pursuant to
Section 12 of the Exchange Act)

Maximum
Approximate
Dollar Value of
Total Number of ~ Shares that May
Shares Purchased Yet Be Purchased
Total Number of  Average Price as Part of Publicly  under the Plans

Shares Purchased Paid per Announced Plans  or Programs

Period (1) Share or Programs (2) (Millions)
January 1-31, 2017 1,245,558 $ 177.61 1,245,347 $ 6,835
February 1-28, 2017 1,038,368 182.41 1,037,719 $ 6,645
March 1-31, 2017 1,168,89¢ $ 190.75 1,168,89: $ 6,422
Total January 1-March 31, 2017 3,452,835 183.50 3,451,959 $ 6,422

(1) The total number of shares purchased includeshéjes purchased under the Board’s authorizatiessrithed
above, and (ii) shares purchased in connectiontétexercise of stock options.

(2) The total number of shares purchased as part dichuannounced plans or programs includes shaneshaised
under the Board’s authorizations described above.
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Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities— No matters require disclosure.

Item 4. Mine Safety DisclosuresPursuant to Section 1503 of the Dodd-Frank WaiB&tReform and Consumer
Protection Act (the “Act”), the Company is requireddisclose, in connection with the mines it opesainformation
concerning mine safety violations or other regulatoatters in its periodic reports filed with thEG. The information
concerning mine safety violations or other regulatoatters required by Section 1503(a) of the Adhtluded in
Exhibit 95 to this quarterly report.

Item 5. Other Information. — No matters require disclosure.

Item 6. Exhibits.

Exhibits. These exhibits are either incorporateddsgrence into this report or filed herewith wikfis report.
Exhibit numbers 10.1 through 10.31 are managen@mitacts or compensatory plans or arrangements.
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Index to Exhibits:

(3) Articles of Incorporation and bylaws

(3.1) Certificate of incorporation, as amendedfadlay 11, 2007, is incorporated by reference fiaum
Form 8-K dated May 14, 2007.

(3.2) Amended and Restated Bylaws, as adoptefidsvember 10, 2015, are incorporated by referdrama
our Form 8-K dated November 10, 2015.

(4) Instruments defining the rights of securitydes, including indentures:

(4.1) Indenture, dated as of November 17, 200@yden 3M and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., as successor trustee, with respeditits senior debt securities, is incorporated by
reference from our Form 8-K dated December 7, 2000.

(4.2)  First Supplemental Indenture, dated as lyf2®, 2011, to Indenture dated as of November2000,
between 3M and The Bank of New York Mellon Trusin@any, N.A., as successor trustee, with respect
to 3M’s senior debt securities, is incorporateddfgrence from our Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 2011.

(10) Material contracts and management compenspl#ons and arrangements:

(10.1) 3M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plaimg®rporated by reference from our ForrK 8ated May
12, 2016.

(10.2) Form of Stock Option Award Agreement un8er Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dateayM?2, 2016

(10.3) Form of Stock Appreciation Right Award Agneent under 3M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive
Plan is incorporated by reference from our Form 8ated May 12, 2016.

(10.4) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreernender 3M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Pfan i
incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dateayM 2, 2016.

(10.5) Form of Performance Share Award Agreemadeu3M Company 2016 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K dateayM 2, 2016.

(10.6) 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan (includemgendments through February 2, 201éh)éerporated b
reference from our Form 10-K for the year endeddbdwer 31, 2015.

(10.7) Form of Agreement for Stock Option Grawt&kecutive Officers under 3M 2008 Long-Term Indent
Plan is incorporated by reference from our Form 8ated May 13, 2008.

(10.8) Form of Stock Option Agreement for optigmanted to Executive Officers under the 3M 2008d-on
Term Incentive Plan, commencing February 9, 204 thdorporated by reference from our FormKLér
the year ended December 31, 2009.

(10.9) Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreementriestricted stock units granted to Executive Oficender
the 3M Long-Term Incentive Plan, effective Februgy®010, is incorporated by reference from our
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009.

(10.10) Form of 3M 2010 Performance Share Awamkuthe 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 8-K datemrdit 4, 2010.

(10.11) Form of Stock Option Agreement for U.S.doyees under 3M 2008 Long-Term Incentive Plan is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K fa ylear ended December 31, 2008.

(10.12) Form of Restricted Stock Unit AgreememtJoS. Employees under 3M 2008 Long-Term Incenian
is incorporated by reference from our Form 10-Ktfer year ended December 31, 2008.

(10.13) 3M 2005 Management Stock Ownership Prodiachuding amendments through February 2, 2016) is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K far ytlear ended December 31, 2015.

(10.14) Form of award agreement for non-qualiftatk options granted under the 2005 ManagemerkSto
Ownership Program, is incorporated by referencenfooir Form 8-K dated May 16, 2005.

(10.15) Amended and Restated 3M VIP Excess Plantdgporated by reference from our Form 10-Ktfur yea
ended December 31, 2016.

(10.16) Amended and Restated 3M VIP (Voluntaryebtiment Plan) Plus Plan is incorporated by referdémom
our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016.

(10.17) 3M Deferred Compensation Plan, as ametidedgh February 2008, is incorporated by referdroma
our Form 8-K dated February 14, 2008.
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(10.18) Amendment of 3M Deferred Compensation Bancorporated by reference from our Form 8-Kedat
Novembe 14, 2008.

(10.19) 3M Deferred Compensation Excess Plancarporated by reference from our Form 10-K forykar
ended December 31, 2009.

(10.20) 3M Performance Awards Deferred Compensaian is incorporated by reference from our FofaK1
for the year ended December 31, 2009.

(10.21) 3M Executive Annual Incentive Plan is irparated by reference from our Form 8-K dated Méy 1
2007.

(10.22) Description of changes to 3M Compensditam for Non-Employee Directors is incorporated by
reference from our Form 8-K dated August 8, 2005.

(10.23) 3M Compensation Plan for Non-Employee &wes, as amended, through November 8, 2004, is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-K far ytlear ended December 31, 2004.

(10.24) Amendment of 3M Compensation Plan for Nwnployee Directors is incorporated by referencenfro
our Form 8-K dated November 14, 2008.

(10.25) Amendment of 3M Compensation Plan for Nanployee Directors as of August 12, 2013, is
incorporated by reference from our Form 10-Q fer dnarter ended September 30, 2013.

(10.26) 3M Executive Life Insurance Plan, as ameeinds incorporated by reference from our Form lidkihe
year ended Decemt 31, 2003.

(10.27) Summary of Personal Financial PlanninyiSes for 3M Executives is incorporated by refegefrom
our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003.

(10.28) 3M policy on reimbursement of incentive/pants is incorporated by reference from our FobakKIfor
the year ended December 31, 2006.

(10.29) Amended and Restated 3M Nonqualified RenBian | is incorporated by reference from oumr@0-K
for the year ended December 31, 2016.

(10.30) Amended and Restated 3M Nonqualified R@nBian Il is incorporated by reference from ourrkrd.0-
K for the year ended December 31, 2016.

(10.31) Amended and Restated 3M Nonqualified RenBian Il is incorporated by reference from oarrf 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2016.

(10.32) Amended and restated five-year creditegent as of March 9, 2016, is incorporated by esfee from
our Form 8-K dated March 11, 2016.

(10.33) Registration Rights Agreement as of Augyg009, between 3M Company and State Street Badk
Trust Company as Independent Fiduciary of the 3\plegee Retirement Income Plan, is incorporated
by reference from our Form 8-K dated August 5, 2009
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Filed herewith, in addition to items, if any, sdexlly identified above:

(12)
(15)

(31.1)
(31.2)
(32.1)
(32.2)

(95)
(101)

Calculation of ratio of earnings to fixed ofpes.

A letter from the Company'’s independent resgisd public accounting firm regarding unaudite@iim
consolidated financial statements.

Certification of the Chief Executive Offiggursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-OxleyofA2002,

18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officpursuant to Section 302 of the Sarba®esey Act of 2002, 1
U.S.C. Section 1350.

Certification of the Chief Executive Offiggursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyofA2002,

18 U.S.C. Section 1350.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officpursuant to Section 906 of the Sarba@etey Act of 2002, 1
U.S.C. Section 1350.

Mine Safety Disclosures.

The following financial information from 3Kompany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thaqukr
ended March 31, 2017, filed with the SEC on Mag(®l 7, formatted in Extensible Business Reporting
Language (XBRL): (i) the Consolidated Statemerihobme for the three-month periods ended

March 31, 2017 and 20186, (ii) the Consolidatedestaint of Comprehensive Income for the three-month
periods ended March 31, 2017 and 2016 (iii) thesobdated Balance Sheet at March 31, 2017 and
December 31, 2016, (iv) the Consolidated StatemEe@ash Flows for the three-month periods ended
March 31, 2017 and 2016, and (v) Notes to Constdii&inancial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caussddiport to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduatp authorized.

3M COMPANY
(Registrant)

Date: May 3, 2017

By /s/ Nicholas C. Gangestad
Nicholas C. Gangestad,

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Mr. Gangestad is the Principal Financial Officaddas
been duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Reayis.)
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3M COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CALCULATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

EARNINGS
Income before income taxes

Add:
Interest expense (including amortizatic
of capitalized interest)

Portion of rent under operating leases
representative of the interest compone

Less:
Equity in undistributed income of 20-
50% owned companies

TOTAL EARNINGS AVAILABLE
FOR FIXED CHARGES

FIXED CHARGES

Interest on debt (including capitalized
interest)

Portion of rent under operating leases
representative of the interest compone

TOTAL FIXED CHARGES

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED
CHARGES

EXHIBIT 12
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(Millions)
Three months
ended
March 31, Year Year Year Year Year
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
$ 1,737 $ 7,053 $ 6,823 $ 7,026 $ 6,562 $ 6,351
50 219 171 164 166 191
26 100 101 104 103 92
3 3
$ 1,810 $ 7,363 $ 7,090 $ 7,295 $ 6,832 $ 6,631
48 208 162 159 166 194
26 100 101 104 103 92
$ 74 $ 308 $ 263 $ 263 $ 269 $ 286
24.5 23.9 27.0 27.7 25.4 23.2



EXHIBIT 15
May 3, 2017
Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, N.E.
Washington, DC 20549
Commissioners:
We are aware that our report dated May 3, 2017unmeaview of interim financial information of 3M @tpany and its
subsidiaries for the three month periods ended Maig 2017 and 2016 and included in the Compamgsterly report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 28li@dorporated by reference in its Registrationie®tents on Form
S-8 (Registration Nos. 333-30689, 333-30691, 338504333-73192, 333-101727, 333-109282, 333-1282%3,
130150, 333-151039, 333-156626, 333-156627, 3331$6333-174562, 333-181269, 333-181270 and 33321)1
and Form S-3 (Registration Nos. 333-216219, 33-88683-42660, and 333-109211) dated May 3, 2017.
Very truly yours,

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota
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EXHIBIT 31.1

SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Inge G. Thulin, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 16§@M Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgdtéde a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sucteshents
were made, not misleading with respect to the pecmvered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly
present in all material respects the financial ool results of operations and cash flows of Registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant hade:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresgused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensutertbgerial information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madevim to us by others within those entities, paraciyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahcia
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopybwide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacet of financial statements for external purposes i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’'sldssire controls and procedures and presentedsin th
report our conclusions about the effectivenessi®efdisclosure controls and procedures, as of te en
of the period covered by this report based on swetuation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Regissanternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethia
case of an annual report) that has materially tffte@r is reasonably likely to materially affettte
Registrant’s internal control over financial refogt and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | kadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal
control over financial reporting, to the Registtamtuditors and the audit committee of the Regmtsaboard
of directors (or persons performing the equivafanttions):

(@)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiov
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the Registrant’s ability to regord
process, summarize and report financial informatéor

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a

significant role in the Registrant’s internal catover financial reporting.

/sl Inge G. Thulin

Inge G. Thulin
Chief Executive Officer

May 3, 2017
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EXHIBIT 31.2

SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION

I, Nicholas C. Gangestad, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 16§@M Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgdtéde a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sucteshents
were made, not misleading with respect to the pecmvered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly
present in all material respects the financial ool results of operations and cash flows of Registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disate
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Registrant hade:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresgused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensutenhgerial information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is madevim to us by others within those entities, paraciyl
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finahcia
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopybwide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacet of financial statements for external purposes i
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’'sldssire controls and procedures and presentedsin th
report our conclusions about the effectivenessi®efdisclosure controls and procedures, as of te en
of the period covered by this report based on swetuation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in the Regissanternal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethia
case of an annual report) that has materially tffte@r is reasonably likely to materially affettte
Registrant’s internal control over financial refogt and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and | kadisclosed, based on our most recent evaluationterhal
control over financial reporting, to the Registtamtuditors and the audit committee of the Regmtsaboard
of directors (or persons performing the equivafanttions):

(@)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiov
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the Registrant’s ability to regord
process, summarize and report financial informatsord

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a

significant role in the Registrant’s internal catover financial reporting.

/sl Nicholas C. Gangestad

NicholasC. Gangestad
Chief Financial Officer

May 3, 2017

80



EXHIBIT 32.1
SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION
In connection with the Quarterly Report of 3M Compdthe “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ethde
March 31, 2017 as filed with the Securities andtz&xge Commission on the date hereof (the “Repdrtihge G.
Thulin, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, tifgr pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adbptgsuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, tieaty knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh
1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand
results of operations of the Company.

/sl Inge G. Thulin

Inge G. Thulin
Chief Executive Officer

May 3, 2017
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EXHIBIT 32.2
SARBANES-OXLEY SECTION 906 CERTIFICATION
In connection with the Quarterly Report of 3M Compdthe “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ethde
March 31, 2017 as filed with the Securities andHaxge Commission on the date hereof (the “RepdrtNicholas C.
Gangestad, Chief Financial Officer of the Compameytify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, agpsetbpursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, tieaty knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefiction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh
1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand
results of operations of the Company.

/sl Nicholas C. Gangestad

Nicholas C. Gangest
Chief Financial Officer

May 3, 2017
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EXHIBIT 95
MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

For the first quarter of 2017, the Company hadalewing mine safety information to report in acdance with Section 1503(a) of the Act, in conracivith the Pittsboro,
North Carolina mine, the Little Rock, Arkansas mithlee Corona, California mine, and the Wausau, @fist mine (including Greystone Plant):

Received
Received Notice of
Total Dollar Value Notice of Potentieto Aggregate
Mine or Operating Section of MSHA TotaNumber Pattern of Have Pattern Legal Actions Aggregate  Legal Actions
Name/MSHA Section 104 Section 104(d) Section ecdion Assessments of Mining Violations Undere8tion Pending as of Legal Actions  Resolved
Identification S&S Citations 104(b) Citations and  110(b)(2) 107(a) Proposed Related Under Sectio 104(e) Last Day of Initiated During During Period
Number #) Orders (#) Orders (#)  Violations (#) Orders (#) ($) Fatalities (#) 104(e) (yes/no) (yes/no) Period (#) Period (#) #)
3M Pittsboro ID: 3102153 — — — — — 3 = — No No —
3M Little Rock ID: 0300426 — — — — — 3 — — No No —
3M Corona Plant ID: 0400191 2 — — — — 3 — — No No —
Greystone Plant ID: 4700119 1 — — — — 3 1,208 — No No —
Wausau Plant ID: 4702918 1 — — — — 3 3,873 — No No —
Total 4 — — — — 3 5,081 — — — —
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